
  
Page 1 

 
  

FARMERSVILLE CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR SESSION AGENDA 

May 26, 2015, 6:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers, City Hall 

205 S. Main Street 
 
I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

 Call to Order, Roll Call, Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance  

 Welcome guests and visitors: Anyone wanting to speak on any items that are not 
the subject of a Public Hearing on this agenda is asked to speak at this time, with 
an individual time limit of 3 minutes.  This forum is limited to a total of 30 minutes.  
Please note that the City Council cannot comment or take any action on this 
item. 

 Announcements relating to items of public interest: Announcements regarding 
local or regional civic and charitable events, staff recognition, commendation of 
citizens, traffic issues, upcoming meetings, awards, acknowledgement of 
meeting attendees, birthdays, and condolences.   

 Yards of Yard Sales will be held on June 6th sponsored by the 
Farmersville Chamber of Commerce 

 The Latter Day Saints Church missionaries will be doing a service project 
for the City of Farmersville on May 29th  

 May 31st will be proclaimed First Baptist Church’s 150th year celebration 

II. READING OF ORDINANCES 
A.  First reading to consider, discuss and act upon an ordinance prohibiting parking 

on Sycamore Street 

B.  First reading to consider, discuss and act upon an ordinance regarding the Rate 
Review Mechanism settlement between Atmos and member cities of ACSC 

III. REGULAR AGENDA 
A. Consider, discuss and act upon City Financial Reports 

B. Consider, discuss and act upon renaming an inactive City account at First 
National Bank of Trenton for use as a TIRZ account  

C. Consider, discuss and act upon a market adjustment for Community Waste 
Disposal 

D. Consider, discuss and act upon planning services for the JW Spain Athletic 
Complex Project per presentations from Halff Associates, Inc. and MESA  

E. Consider, discuss and act upon Margaret Vigil’s resignation from the Main 
Street Board 

F. Reorganize Boards and Commissions to each Board and Commission  

G. Update on Chaparral Trail project 

H. Update on street, water and wastewater General Obligation Bond projects 

I. Update on Highway 380 project 

J. Update on wastewater treatment facility 



  
Page 2 

 
  

K. Update on Collin County dispatch services 

L. Receive, discuss and act upon information regarding platting, permitting and 
application of the International Codes in the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction, 
and the “City-County Plat Approval Agreement (Exclusive City Control)” 
(“1445 Agreement”) prepared by Collin County and entered into by and 
between Collin County and the City 

 
 

IV. REQUEST FOR CONSIDERATION OF PLACING ITEMS ON FUTURE AGENDAS  

 

V. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
Dated this the 22nd day of May, 2015. 

 
Joseph E. Helmberger, P.E., Mayor 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this 

meeting to discuss any matters listed on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Government Code, including, but 

not limited to, Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 

551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about 

Security Devices), 551.087 (Economic Development), 418.175-183 (Deliberations about Homeland Security 

Issues) and as authorized by the Texas Tax Code, including, but not limited to, Section 321.3022 (Sales Tax 

Information). 
 

Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need assistance should contact the City 

Secretary at 972-782-6151 or Fax 972-782-6604 at least two (2) working days prior to the meeting so that 

appropriate arrangements can be made.  Handicap Parking is available in the front and rear parking lot of the 

building. 
 

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted in 
the regular posting place of the City Hall building for Farmersville, Texas, in a place and 
manner convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said 
Notice was posted May 22, 2015 by 5:00 P.M. and remained so posted continuously at 
least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of said meeting.  

       
Edie Sims, City Secretary 



PROUDLY SPONSORED BY  
Farmersville Chamber of Commerce 



 

PROCLAMATION 
 
WHEREAS, in May 1865, John Crumpler Averitt (1818 – 1895) was a frontier church 
planter and constructed a “brush arbor”—a temporary shelter constructed from rough 
trees and irregular lumber with a thatched brush roof—in which to hold a series of 
evangelistic meetings; and 

WHEREAS, on May 14, 1865, fourteen attendees joined with Averitt to organize the 
First Baptist Church; and 

WHEREAS, Averitt served as the founding pastor only until the next year; and 

WHEREAS, Edward Frederick Tatum, the second pastor, also served for only a year 
before he left Farmersville; and 

WHEREAS, Tatum had been one of the founding members in 1865, along with his 
cousin Greenberry B. Robinson; and 

WHEREAS, the third pastor was W. D. Chapman, another of the founding members 
who served for a much longer term (1869 – 1875) in a part-time, bivocational fashion; 
and 

WHEREAS, Chapman led the Baptists to pursue the construction of their own 
meeting house and for $30 they acquired the property upon which the old brush arbor 
had been constructed; and 

WHEREAS, with a newly erected wooden building complete with a steeple and bell, 
the congregation now consisted of sixty-seven members; and 

WHEREAS, First Baptist Church enjoyed growth alongside the community and the 
congregation called its first full-time pastor in 1893; and 

WHEREAS, in 1895, the congregation bought the land upon which the Masonic Hall 
had stood and constructed there in 1900 the house of worship that the First Baptist 
Church uses to this day; and 

WHEREAS, the original bell from the 1877 building occupies the belfry to this day; 
and 

WHEREAS, the succession of short-term pastorates ended when the church invited 
Matthew Mueller to shepherd the congregation who remained in Farmersville for 
thirteen years (1930 – 1943), becoming the second-longest tenured pastor in the 
history of the church; and 

WHEREAS, the ministries of First Baptist Church have a worldwide reach and during 
the twenty-first century alone, the congregation has been involved in strengthening and 
planting churches by sending members to Cuba, Thailand, Hong Kong, China, 
Guatemala, the United Kingdom, Senegal, and Ecuador. Within the United States, the 
congregation has assisted in evangelistic and church planting efforts in the Rio Grande 
Valley of Texas; Bozeman, Montana; and Franklin, Kansas. Disaster Recovery and 
construction teams from the congregation have responded to Hurricanes Katrina, Rita, 



and Ike; the Joplin, MO, tornado; and the December 2013 ice storm here in 
Farmersville. Disaster Relief volunteers from the congregation have ministered to 
disaster victims as varied as a tsunami in American Samoa, a lava flow in Hawaii, an 
explosion in West, Texas, and a surge of underage immigrants in Laredo, Texas; and 

WHEREAS, the church’s facilities house the Farmersville Food Pantry and a key role, 
together with other sister churches in the community, in providing financial assistance to 
citizens of Farmersville who are unable to pay their utility bills. The First Baptist Church 
voted to establish a new not-for-profit corporation dedicated to providing assistance to 
needy families in Farmersville, funding the new organization with a $25,000 grant from 
the church’s general fund; and 

WHEREAS, As a new generation of young Christians emerge and take the helm at FBC 
Farmersville, we look back on fifteen decades of faithful ministry in Farmersville that has 
brought many of our residents into the Christian faith, has encouraged them to treat 
their fellow citizens according to the teachings of Jesus Christ, has drawn them out of 
their comfortable lives in Farmersville and has engaged them in worldwide ministry to 
meet physical and spiritual needs, and has helped to shape the community in which we 
live. We have every reason to hope that our past has set the trajectory for the years yet 
to come. 
 
 
THEREFORE, the City of Farmersville, its Mayor and Council, hereby recognize First 
Baptist Church of Farmersville as a viable asset to the City of Farmersville and 
surrounding communities, having continuously served throughout Collin County for 
150 years, and hereby acknowledge First Baptist Church of Farmersville.  
 
BE IT KNOWN, the 26th day of May, 2015, is proclaimed as:  
 

First Baptist Church of Farmersville Day 

in Farmersville, Collin County, Texas. 

 
 
____________________________________ 
Joseph E. Helmberger, P.E., Mayor 



 

TO:  Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: Ben White, City Manager 

DATE:  May 26, 2015 

SUBJECT: First reading – Consider, discuss and act an ordinance prohibiting parking 
on Sycamore Street 

 
 An ordinance is attached for review. 

 
  
ACTION:   Approve or disapprove the ordinance as presented. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(II – A)  



ORDINANCE NO. O-2015–0609–001 Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF FARMERSVILLE 
ORDINANCE O-2015–0609–001 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FARMERSVILLE, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF FARMERSVILLE, TEXAS, AS HERETOFORE 
AMENDED, THROUGH THE AMENDMENT OF CHAPTER 71, “TRAFFIC AND 
VEHICLES,” BY AMENDING ARTICLE V – STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, 
BY AMENDING SECTION 71-147, “NO PARKING AND LOADING ZONE AREAS,” 
BY AMENDING SUBSECTION (g) REGARDING PARKING RESTRICTIONS IN THE 
100 BLOCK OF NORTH MAIN AND ADDING A NEW SUBSECTION (i) REGARDING 
PARKING RESTRICTIONS ON SYCAMORE STREET, BY AMENDING AND 
MODIFYING THE MAP CONTAINED IN SECTION 71-151, ENTITLED “MAP OF 
RESTRICTED PARKING,” TO REFLECT THE REVISIONS MADE TO SECTION 71-
147 BY THIS ORDINANCE AND BY DELETING SECTION 71-152, “PARKING 
PROHIBITED,” IN ITS ENTIRETY; PROVIDING A PENALTY; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
PUBLICATION; PROVIDING ENGROSSMENT AND ENROLLMENT; PROVIDING A 
SAVINGS CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Farmersville, Texas (“City”), desires to eliminate certain 
conflicts between Section 71-147 and 71-152 and prohibit the parking of vehicles on 
and along both sides of Sycamore Street; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Farmersville, Texas finds that all 

prerequisites to the adoption of this Ordinance have been met;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FARMERSVILLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
SECTION 1. Findings Incorporated 

 
All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative and 

factual determinations of the City of Farmersville and they are hereby approved and 
incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 
 
SECTION 2. Amendment of Chapter 71, “Traffic and Vehicles”, Through the 

Amendment of Article V – “Stopping, Standing and Parking,” by 
Amending Section 71-147, “No Parking and Loading Zone Areas,” by 
Amending Subsection (g) Regarding Parking Restrictions in the 100 
Block of North Main and Adding a New Subsection (i) Regarding 
Parking Restrictions on Sycamore Street 

 
 From and after the effective date of this Ordinance, Section 71-147 of the Code 
of Ordinances, City of Farmersville, Texas, entitled, “No Parking and Loading Zone 
Areas,” is hereby amended by amending Subsection (g) and adding a new Subsection 
(i) to read as follows:  



ORDINANCE NO. O-2015–0609–001 Page 2 of 4 

 
“Sec. 71-147.  No parking and loading zone areas. 
 
. . . .  
(g) The area on the west side of Main Street from 110 North Main 
Street to 103 South Main Street, between Candy Street and McKinney 
Street, as indicated by yellow curb markings on the street in accordance 
with the map on file in the city secretary's office, is designated as a 15 
Minute Loading Zone between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. only. 
It shall otherwise be unlawful and considered a violation of this article for 
any person, corporation, partnership, or any other entity to allow any 
vehicle owned by it to be parked or unattended on either side of the 100 
block of North Main Street. 
 
. . . . 
 
(i) It shall be unlawful and considered a violation of this article for any 
person, corporation, partnership, or any other entity to allow any vehicle 
owned by it to be parked or unattended on either side of the entire length 
of Sycamore Street.” 

 
SECTION 3. Amendment of Section 71-151, “Map of Restricted Parking,” by 

Amending and Modifying the Map to Reflect the Revisions Made to 
Section 71-151 by this Ordinance. 

 
 From and after the effective date of this Ordinance, Section 71-151 of the Code 
of Ordinances, City of Farmersville, Texas, entitled, “Map of Restricted Parking,” shall 
be amended and modified to reflect the revisions made to Section 71-147 by this 
Ordinance.   
 
SECTION 4. Deletion of Section 71-152, “Parking Prohibited,” In Its Entirety 
 
 From and after the effective date of this Ordinance, Section 71-152 of the Code 
of Ordinances, City of Farmersville, Texas, entitled, “Parking Prohibited,” is hereby 
deleted in its entirety.   
 
SECTION 5.  PENALTY 
 
Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall be 
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction in the municipal court of the City 
of Farmersville, Texas, shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the sum of two 
thousand dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense; and each and every day such violation 
shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense.   
 



ORDINANCE NO. O-2015–0609–001 Page 3 of 4 

SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY 
 
It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the several provisions of 
this Ordinance are severable, and if any court of competent jurisdiction shall judge any 
provisions of this Ordinance to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, such judgment shall 
not affect any other provisions of this Ordinance which are not specifically designated 
as being illegal, invalid or unenforceable. 
 
SECTION 7.  REPEALER 
 
This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other Ordinances, resolutions, and/or policies 
of the City, whether written or otherwise, and shall not repeal any of the provisions of 
those ordinances except in those instances where the provisions of those ordinances 
are in direct conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance.  Any and all ordinances, 
resolutions, and/or policies of the City, whether written or otherwise, which are in any 
manner in conflict with or inconsistent with this Ordinance shall be and are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such conflict and/or inconsistency. 
 
SECTION 8.  PUBLICATION 
 
The City Secretary of the City of Farmersville is hereby directed to publish in the Official 
Newspaper of the City of Farmersville the Caption, Penalty and Effective Date Clause of 
this Ordinance as required by Section 52.011 of the Texas Local Government Code. 
 
SECTION 9.  ENGROSSMENT AND ENROLLMENT 
 
The City Secretary of the City of Farmersville is hereby directed to engross and enroll 
this Ordinance by copying the exact Caption and the Effective Date clause in the 
minutes of the City Council of the City of Farmersville and by filing this Ordinance in the 
Ordinance records of the City. 
 
SECTION 10.  SAVINGS 
 
All rights and remedies of the City of Farmersville are expressly saved as to any and all 
violations of the provisions of any Ordinances which have accrued at the time of the 
effective date of this Ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations and all pending 
litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under such 
Ordinances, same shall not be affected by this Ordinance but may be prosecuted until 
final disposition by the courts. 
 
SECTION 11.  EFFECTIVE DATE   
 
This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and publication in 
accordance with and as provided by Texas law. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. O-2015–0609–001 Page 4 of 4 

PASSED on first reading on the 26th day of May, 2015, and second reading on the 9th 
day of June, 2015, at properly scheduled meetings of the City Council of the City of 
Farmersville, Texas, there being a quorum present, and approved by the Mayor on the 
date set out below. 
 

APPROVED THIS 9th DAY OF JUNE, 2015. 
      
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Joseph E. Helmberger, P.E., Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Edie Sims, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:   
 
 
_____________________________ 
Alan D. Lathrom, City Attorney 
 



 

TO:  Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: Ben White, City Manager 

DATE:  May 26, 2015 

SUBJECT: First reading – Consider, discuss and act upon an ordinance regarding the 
Rate Review Mechanism settlement between Atmos and member cities of 
ACSC 

 
 An ordinance is attached for review. 

  
ACTION:   Approve or disapprove the ordinance as presented. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(II – B)  



ORDINANCE # O-2015-0609-002 Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF FARMERSVILLE 
ORDINANCE # O-2015-0609-002 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FARMERSVILLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A NEGOTIATED SETTLEMENT BETWEEN THE ATMOS 
CITIES STEERING COMMITTEE (“ACSC”) AND ATMOS ENERGY CORP., MID-TEX 
DIVISION REGARDING THE COMPANY’S 2014 AND 2015 RATE REVIEW 
MECHANISM FILINGS; APPROVING A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH 
ATTACHED RATE TARIFFS AND PROOF OF REVENUES; DECLARING EXISTING 
RATES TO BE UNREASONABLE; ADOPTING TARIFFS THAT REFLECT RATE 
ADJUSTMENTS CONSISTENT WITH THE NEGOTIATED SETTLEMENT; FINDING 
THE RATES TO BE SET BY THE SETTLEMENT TARIFFS TO BE JUST AND 
REASONABLE AND IN THE PUBLIC INTEREST; REQUIRING THE COMPANY TO 
REIMBURSE ACSC’S REASONABLE RATEMAKING EXPENSES; DETERMINING 
THAT THIS ORDINANCE WAS PASSED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF THE TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT; ADOPTING A SAVINGS 
CLAUSE; DECLARING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND REQUIRING DELIVERY OF 
THIS ORDINANCE TO THE COMPANY AND THE ACSC’S LEGAL COUNSEL. 

WHEREAS, the City of Farmersville, Texas (“City”) is a gas utility customer of Atmos 
Energy Corp., Mid-Tex Division (“Atmos Mid-Tex” or “Company”), and a regulatory 
authority with an interest in the rates and charges of Atmos; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is a member of the Atmos Cities Steering Committee (“ACSC”), a 
coalition of similarly-situated cities served by Atmos Mid-Tex (“ACSC Cities”) that have 
joined together to facilitate the review of and response to natural gas issues affecting 
rates charged in the Atmos Mid-Tex service area; and  
 
WHEREAS, ACSC and the Company worked collaboratively to develop a new Rate 
Review Mechanism (“RRM”) tariff that allows for an expedited rate review process by 
ACSC Cities as a substitute to the Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program (“GRIP”) 
process instituted by the Legislature, and that will establish rates for the ACSC Cities 
based on the system-wide cost of serving the Atmos Mid-Tex Division; and  
 
WHEREAS, the initial RRM Tariff was in effect for four (4) years; and  
 
WHEREAS, ACSC Cities and Atmos Mid-Tex entered into another settlement 
agreement and revised the RRM Tariff; and  
 
WHEREAS, ACSC Cities and Atmos Mid-Tex compromised and reached agreements 
on the amount of the rate increases to be in effect for the RRM Tariff filings for 2012 and 
2013; and  
 



ORDINANCE # O-2015-0609-002 Page 2 of 4 

WHEREAS, ACSC Cities and Atmos Mid-Tex were unable to reach an agreement on 
the 2014 RRM Tariff filing, resulting in the ACSC Cities’ rejection of the 2014 RRM filing; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Atmos Mid-Tex appealed the ACSC Cities’ actions rejecting its 2014 RRM 
filing to the Railroad Commission of Texas (“Commission”), pursuant to the provisions of 
the RRM Tariff; and 
 
WHEREAS, Atmos Mid-Tex and ACSC litigated the appeal of the 2014 RRM filing at 
the Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, on February 27, 2015, Atmos Mid-Tex filed its 2015 RRM Tariff filing, 
requesting to increase natural gas base rates system-wide by $28.762 million; and 
 
WHEREAS, ACSC coordinated its review of Atmos Mid-Tex RRM filing through its 
Executive Committee, assisted by ACSC’s attorneys and consultants, to resolve issues 
identified in the Company’s RRM filing; and  
 
WHEREAS, Atmos Mid-Tex has agreed to withdraw its appeal of ACSC’s rejection of its 
2014 RRM Tariff rate increase; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Executive Committee, as well as ACSC’s counsel and consultants, 
recommend that ACSC Cities approve the attached Settlement Agreement (Attachment 
A to this Ordinance) as well as the tariffs attached thereto, resolving both the 2014 and 
the 2015 RRM Tariff filings, which together will increase the Company’s revenues by 
$65.7 million over the amount allowed under City-approved rates set in 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, the attached tariffs implementing new rates are consistent with the 
negotiated Settlement Agreement and are just, reasonable, and in the public interest; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the RRM Tariff should be renewed for a period of time commencing in 
2016 and continuing until the RRM Tariff is suspended by ordinance of the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the RRM Tariff contemplates reimbursement of ACSC’s reasonable 
expenses associated with RRM applications;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FARMERSVILLE, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1:  That the findings set forth in this Ordinance are hereby in all things 
approved. 
 
SECTION 2:  That the City Council finds that the Settlement Agreement (Attachment A 
to this Ordinance) represents a comprehensive settlement of gas utility rate issues 
affecting the rates, operations, and services offered by Atmos Mid-Tex within the 



ORDINANCE # O-2015-0609-002 Page 3 of 4 

municipal limits arising from Atmos Mid-Tex’s 2014 and 2015 RRM filings, is in the 
public interest, and is consistent with the City’s authority under Section 103.001 of the 
Texas Utilities Code. 
 
SECTION 3:  That the existing rates for natural gas service provided by Atmos Mid-Tex 
are unreasonable.  The new tariffs attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Attachment C, are just and reasonable, and are designed to allow Atmos Mid-Tex to 
recover annually an additional $65.7 million in revenue over the amount allowed under 
currently approved rates, or $21 million over currently-billed rates, as shown in the Proof 
of Revenues attached hereto and incorporated herein as Attachment B; such tariffs are 
hereby adopted. 
 
SECTION 4:  That the ratemaking treatment for pensions and other post-employment 
benefits in Atmos’ next RRM filing shall be as set forth on Attachment D, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein. 
 
SECTION 5:  That in an effort to streamline the regulatory review process, the Atmos 
Mid-Tex RRM Tariff is renewed for a period commencing with the Company’s March 1, 
2016 RRM filing for calendar year 2015, effective June 1, 2016, and continuing 
thereafter until such time as the City adopts an ordinance suspending operation of the 
RRM Tariff. 
 
SECTION 6:  That Atmos Mid-Tex shall reimburse the reasonable ratemaking expenses 
of the ACSC in processing the Company’s RRM application. 
 
SECTION 7:  That to the extent any resolution or ordinance previously adopted by the 
Council is inconsistent with this Ordinance, it is hereby repealed.  
 
SECTION 8:  That the meeting at which this Ordinance was approved was in all things 
conducted in strict compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government 
Code, Chapter 551. 
 
SECTION 9:  That if any one or more sections or clauses of this Ordinance is adjudged 
to be unconstitutional or invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the 
remaining provisions of this Ordinance and the remaining provisions of the Ordinance 
shall be interpreted as if the offending section or clause never existed. 
 
SECTION 10:  That consistent with the City Ordinance that established the RRM 
process, this Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage with rates 
authorized by attached tariffs to be effective for bills rendered on or after June 1, 2015. 
 
SECTION 11:  That a copy of this Ordinance shall be sent to Atmos Mid-Tex, care of 
Chris Felan, Vice President of Rates and Regulatory Affairs Mid-Tex Division, Atmos 
Energy Corporation, 5420 LJB Freeway, Suite 1862, Dallas, Texas 75240, and to 
Geoffrey Gay, General Counsel to ACSC, at Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, 
P.C., 816 Congress Avenue, Suite 1900, Austin, Texas 78701. 



ORDINANCE # O-2015-0609-002 Page 4 of 4 

PASSED on first reading on the 26th day of May, 2015, and second reading on the 9th 
day of June, 2015 at properly scheduled meetings of the City Council of the City of 
Farmersville, Texas, there being a quorum present, and approved by the Mayor on the 
date set out below. 
 
 APPROVED THIS 9th DAY OF JUNE, 2015. 
 
 
 
        BY: ______________________________ 
       Joseph E. Helmberger, P.E., Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY: ______________________________ 

Edie Sims, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
BY: ______________________________ 

Alan D. Lathrom, City Attorney 
 
 



City Messaging
2015 RRM Rate Filing

Atmos Energy — Mid-Tex Division
May2015

• Atmos Energy Mid-Tex Division initiated a Rate Review Mechanism (RRM) process, in
collaboration with its cities, from 2008 through 2011. Following the 2012 rate case (i.e., GUD
10170), Atmos Energy and the city coalitions expressed mutual interest in creating a new
RRM process.

• The RRM is a systematic process collaboratively developed by Atmos Energy (Mid-Tex
Division) and the city coalitions, specifying how rates will be set over a specified period of
time.

• Your coalitions provided an ordinance approving the RRM for CY 13 and CY 14. The $65.7M
referenced in the documents provided by your attorney represents the settlement of the
two RRM filings (CY 13 and CY 14). The CY 14 filing represents a $21.9 million increase over
current rates.

• Benefits of the RRM process:
o Suspends Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program (GRIP) filings
o Avoids costly rate case expenses that would be borne by customers
o Provides transparent process for annual review of all Company expenses and

investment
o Provides for certain caps and discounts negotiated by your attorneys
o Limits growth to residential customer charge to $0.40 with this current RRM

settlement.

• Overall impact to customers:
o Average Residential customer (using 46.1 Ccf a month) will have an increase of

$0.97/month or 1.63%
o Average Commercial customer (using 370.7 Ccf a month) will have an increase of

$2.95/month or .88%
o Average Industrial customer (4,527 MMBtu) will have an increase of $78.10/month

or 1.31%
o Average Transportation customer (4,527MMBtu) will have an increase of

$78.10/month or 2.34%



Edie Sims

From: Geoffrey Gay <gmglglawfirm.com>
Sent: Friday, May 08, 2015 12:00 PM
To: Abilene - Place 6 (Odis Dolton) ; Abilene (Daniel Santee); Abilene (Mindy Patterson); Addison

(Chris Terry); Allen (Eric Ellwanger); Allen (Kevin Hammeke); Allen (Shelley George); Allen
(Shelli Siemer); Alvarado (Debbie Thomas); Angus (Eben Stover); Anna (Natha Wilkison);
Anna (Philip Sanders); Argyle (Paul Frederiksen); Argyle, Bedford,Colleyville, Farmers
Branch,Grapevine, Hurst, Parker (Matthew Boyle); Arlington (Bettye Kemper); Arlington (Brandi
Stigler); Arlington (David Barber); Aubrey (Accounting Department); Aubrey (Matthew
McCombs); Aubrey (Roy Magno); Bedford (David Miller); Bedford (Michael Wells); Bedford
(Roger Gibson); Bellmead (Cynthia Ward); Bellmead (Everett “Bo” Thomas); Benbrook (Sherri
Newhouse); Beverly Hills (Donna Hawkins); Blossom (Stacey Prestridge); Blue Ridge (Nacy
Southard); Blue Ridge (Phillip Pulliam); Bowie (Ricky Tow); Bowie (Tracey Jennings); Boyd
(Joy Patterson); Bridgeport (Jesica McEachern); Brownwood (Bobby Rountree); Brownwood
(Pat Chesser)

Cc: Geoffrey Gay; Georgia Crump; Holly Whitehurst
Subject: ACTION REQUIRED: Atmos Mid-Tex Settlement Package
Attachments: Memo to ACSC with Settlement Package.PDF; Ordinance accepting Settlement. DCC;

Attachments to Ordinance.PDF; Model Staff Report for Ordinance.PDF; “AVG certification”.txt

Importance: High

The ACSC Executive Committee has reached a settlement with Atmos Mid-Tex that resolves all
issues related to the Company’s 2014 RRM rate filing, as well as the 2015 RRM rate filing. The
Executive Committee, its consultants, and ACSC’s general counsel recommend that each member of
ACSC adopt the attached Ordinance.

Included in this email is a memo explaining the settlement with Atmos Mid-Tex, as well as a Model
Staff Report for your use. Please schedule this action for your earliest available Council meeting, and
provide a copy of the adopted Ordinance to Chris Felan, Atmos Energy Corp., 5420 LBJ Freeway,
Suite 1862, Dallas, Texas 75240 and to Geoffrey Gay at the address shown below. If you have any
questions, please call Geoffrey Gay (512-322-5875) or Georgia Crump (512-322-5832).

Geoffrey M. Gay
Principal
T +1 512.322.5875
F +1 512.472.0532

Lloyd
. Gosselink

IIL’S .V[

, •‘ . :c

Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, P.C.
816 Congress Ave., Suite 1900
Austin, TX 78701
http://www.LG LawFirm .com!

1



IRS CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: To the extent this communication contains a statement relating in any way to
federal taxes, that statement is not a “covered opinion” and was not written or intended to be used, and it cannot
be used, by any person (I) as a basis for avoiding federal tax penalties that may be imposed on that person, or
(II) to promote, market or recommend to another party any transaction or matter addressed herein.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:
This email (and all attachments) is confidential, legally privileged, and covered by the Electronic
Communications Privacy Act. Unauthorized use or dissemination is prohibited. If you have received this
message in error please delete it immediately. For more detailed information click
http ://www.lglawfirm.comlemail-disclaimer/.

NOT AN E-SIGNATURE:
No portion of this email is an “electronic signature” and neither the author nor any client thereof will be bound
by this e-mail unless expressly designated as such as provided in more detail at www.lglawfirm.com/electronic-
signature-disclaimer!.

2



816 Congress Avenue, Suite 1900

L_Ac,7c1 Austin, Texas 78701

A

_______________

5l2322.5800p

0SSe1111.1( 512472.0532

ATTORNEYS AT LAW lglawfirm.com

MEMORANDUM

TO: ACSC Members

FROM: Geoffrey M. Gay

DATE: May 8, 2015

RE: Settlement Agreement with Atmos Mid-Tex

CONFIDENTIAL/ATTORNEY-CLiENT COMMUNICATION

Attached please find a Rate Ordinance that approves a Settlement Agreement between
Atmos Cities Steering Committee (“ACSC”) and Atmos Energy Corporation, Mid-Tex Division
(“Atmos” or “Company”) that resolves the 2015 RRIvI proceeding pending with Cities for a rate
increase that is approximately $15 million less than what the Company would be entitled to
receive under the GRIP statute. Additionally, the Settlement Agreement resolves the 2014 RRIVI
case that Atmos appealed to the Railroad Commission. Settlement of both cases was authorized
by the ACSC Executive Committee. The Settlement produces a result that is better than what
would be the expected result of continued litigation at the Commission.

The attached package includes a Rate Ordinance (provided in Word) that approves the
Settlement Agreement and a Model Staff Report supporting the Ordinance. Also provided are
the Attachments to the Rate Ordinance, which include: the Settlement Agreement, a proof of
revenues, the new tariffs, and a spreadsheet establishing a baseline for pensions for the next
RRM filing.

Your city should adopt the Ordinance with attachments. As an alternative to the
Ordinance, you may adopt a resolution approving the Settlement Agreement, if that is your
preference. A package containing a model resolution will be sent under separate cover.

Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, PC

4764387.1



Attachment A

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN ATMOS ENERGY CORP., MID-TEX
DIVISION AND ATMOS CITIES STEERING COMMITTEE

WHEREAS, this agreement (“Settlement Agreement”) is entered into by Atmos
Energy Corp’s Mid-Tex Division and Atmos Cities Steering Committee (“ACSC”) whose
members include the Cities of Abilene, Addison, Allen, Alvarado, Angus, Anna, Argyle,
Arlington, Aubrey, Bedford, Bellmead, Benbrook, Beverly Hills, Blossom, Blue Ridge, Bowie,
Boyd, Bridgeport, Brownwood, Buffalo, Burkburnett, Burleson, Caddo Mills, Canton,
Carrollton, Cedar Hill, Celeste, Celina, Centerville, Cisco, Clarksville, Cleburne, Clyde, College
Station, Colleyville, Colorado City, Comanche, Commerce, Coolidge, Coppell, Copperas Cove,
Corinth, Corral City, Crandall, Crowley, Dalworthington Gardens, Denison, DeSoto,
Duncanville, Eastland, Edgecliff Village, Emory, Ennis, Euless, Everman, Fairview, Farmers
Branch, Farmersville, Fate, Flower Mound, Forest Hill, Fort Worth, Frisco, Frost, Gainesville,
Garland, Garrett, Grand Prairie, Grapevine, Gunter, Haltom City, Harker Heights, Haskell,
Haslet, Hewitt, Highland Park, Highland Village, Honey Grove, Hurst, Hutto, Iowa Park, Irving,
Justin, Kaufman, Keene, Keller, Kemp, Kennedale, Kerens, Kerrville, Killeen, Krum, Lake
Worth, Lakeside, Lancaster, Lewisville, Lincoln Park, Little Elm, Lorena, Madisonville,
Malakoff, Mansfield, McKinney, Melissa, Mesquite, Midlothian, Murphy, Newark, Nocona,
North Richland Hills, Northlake, Oakleaf, Ovilla, Palestine, Pantego, Paris, Parker, Pecan Hill,
Petrolia, Plano, Ponder, Pottsboro, Prosper, Quitman, Red Oak, Reno (Parker County),
Richardson, Richland, Richland Hills, Roanoke, Robinson, Rockwall, Roscoe, Rowlett, Royse
City, Sachse, Saginaw, Sansom Park, Seagoville, Sherman, Snyder, Southlake, Springtown,
Stamford, Stephenville, Sulphur Springs, Sweetwater, Temple, Terrell, The Colony, Trophy
Club, Tyler, University Park, Venus, Vernon, Waco, Watauga, Waxahachie, Westlake, White
Settlement, Whitesboro, Wichita Falls, Woodway, and Wylie.

WHEREAS, on February 28, 2014, Atmos filed with the ACSC Cities an application,
hereinafter referred to as the 2014 RRM filing, to adjust rates pursuant to Rider RRM - Rate
Review Mechanism, which were subsequently consolidated into GUD No. 10359 at the Railroad
Commission of Texas; and

WHEREAS, on February 27, 2015, Atmos filed with the ACSC Cities an application,
hereinafter referred to as the 2015 RRIvI filing, to adjust rates pursuant to Rider RRM - Rate
Review Mechanism; and

WHEREAS, the Settlement Agreement resolves all issues between Atmos and ACSC
(“the Signatories”) regarding the 2014 RRM filing, which is currently pending before the
Commission, and the 2015 RRM filing, which is currently pending before the ACSC Cities, in a
manner that the Signatories believe is consistent with the public interest, and the Signatories
represent diverse interests; and

WHEREAS, the Signatories believe that the resolution of the issues raised in the 2014
RRIVI filing and the 2015 RRM filing can best be accomplished by each ACSC City approving
this Settlement Agreement and the rates, terms and conditions reflected in the tariffs attached to
this Settlement Agreement as Exhibit A;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements and covenants
established herein, the Signatories, through their undersigned representatives, agree to the



Attachment A

following Settlement Terms as a means of fully resolving all issues between Atmos and the
ACSC Cities involving the 2014 RRM filing and 2015 RRM filing:

Settlement Terms

Upon the execution of this Settlement Agreement, the ACSC Cities will approve an
ordinance or resolution to approve the Settlement Agreement and implement the rates,
terms and conditions reflected in the tariffs attached to the Settlement Agreement as
Exhibit A. (Attachment A to the Ordinance ratifying the Agreement). Said tariffs
should allow Atmos to recover annually an additional $65.7 million in revenue over
the amount allowed under currently approved rates by implementation of rates shown
in the proof of revenues attached as Exhibit B. (Attachment B to the Ordinance
ratifying this Agreement). The uniform implementation of gas rates, terms and
conditions established by the Settlement Agreement shall be effective for bills
rendered on or after June 1, 2015. Consistent with the City’s authority under Section
103.00 1 of the Texas Utilities Code, the Settlement Agreement represents a
comprehensive settlement of gas utility rate issues affecting the rates, operations and
services offered by Atmos within the municipal limits of the ACSC Cities arising from
Atmos’ 2014 RRM filing and 2015 RRM filing. No refunds of charges billed to
customers by Atmos under the RRM in past periods shall be owed or owing.

2. In an effort to streamline the regulatory review process, Atmos and the ACSC Cities
have agreed to renew the Rate Review Mechanism (“Rider RRM”) for a period
commencing with the Company’s March 1, 2016 filing under this mechanism for the
calendar year 2015, effective June 1, 2016, and continuing thereafter until such time as
either the ACSC Cities issue an ordinance stating a desire to discontinue the operation
of the tariff or Atmos files a Statement of Intent. Atmos and the ACSC Cities further
agree that the RRIVI tariff shall remain in effect until such time as new, final rates are
established for Atmos. Upon approval of this Settlement Agreement by the ACSC
Cities, Atmos shall file an updated RRIV1 Tariff with each city reflecting the provisions
of this agreement.

3. Atmos and the ACSC Cities agree that rate base as of December 31, 2014 in the
amount of$ 1,955,948,256 is just and reasonable and shall be recovered in rates.

4. Atmos and the ACSC Cities agree that a pension and other postemployment benefits
balance as of December 31, 2014 in the amount of $18,284,949 is just and reasonable
and shall be used as the beginning balance for purposes of determining pension and
other postemployment benefits to be recovered in the next RRM filing (Attachment D
to the Ordinance ratifying the Agreement).

5. With regard to the treatment of Atmos’ Rule 8.209 regulatory asset under the RRM,
Atmos and the ACSC Cities agree to the following with respect to any pending and
future RRM filings:

a. the capital investment in the Rule 8.209 regulatory asset in the 2014 RRM filing
and 2015 RRM filing is reasonable and consistent with the requirements of Rule
8.209;

2



Attachment A

b. the classification of projects included in the Rule 8.209 regulatory asset in the
2014 RRM filing and 2015 RRM filing is reasonable and consistent with the
requirements of Rule 8.209 and shall serve as a basis for classification of projects
in future RRM filings;

c. the treatment of blanket replacement projects, system upgrades, relocations, and
transmission line replacements in the Rule 8.209 regulatory asset in the 2014 RRM
filing and 2015 RRIvI filing is reasonable and consistent with the requirements of
Rule 8.209 and shall be included in future RRIVI filings.

d. the incurred expenses included in the Rule 8.209 regulatory asset in the 2014
RRM and the 2015 RRM are reasonable and consistent with the requirements of
Rule 8.209 and shall be included in future RRM filings;

e. interest on the Rule 8.209 regulatory asset account shall be calculated using the
pre-tax cost of capital most recently approved by the Commission. The use of the
pre-tax cost of capital is consistent with Rule 8.209. A return on Rule 8.209
capital investment is only earned once the investment is included in rate base. No
change in the Company’s calculation of the interest component in its Rule 8.209
regulatory asset accounts is warranted through the period ended May 3 1, 2015.
Beginning June 1, 2015, interest expense shall be calculated monthly using simple
interest (i.e. 11.49% divided by 12, or approximately 0.96% per month) applied to
the total value of the Rule 8.209 asset investment (exclusive of interest) until such
time the Rule 8.209 regulatory asset is approved for inclusion in the Company’s
rate base.

f. While Atmos and the ACSC Cities agree to apply the treatments and
methodologies set forth in this paragraph, subsections (a) — (e) in all future RRM
filings, the regulatory authority retains its right to disallow any capital investment
that is not shown to be prudently incurred, and any expense not shown to be
reasonable and necessary, in future RRM filings.

g. Atmos and the ACSC Cities acknowledge that their agreement regarding the
treatment and methodologies applicable to Rule 8.209 capital investments under
the RRM tariff shall not prejudice the right of either party to argue for different
treatments or methodologies in a future statement of intent proceeding.

6. Revenues approved pursuant to Paragraph 1 of the Settlement Agreement include
reimbursement of rate case expenses owed to the ACSC Cities in connection with the
2014 RRM filing.

7. The Signatories agree that each ACSC city shall approve this Settlement Agreement
and adopt an ordinance or resolution to implement for the ACSC Cities the rates,
terms, and conditions reflected in the tariffs attached to the Settlement Agreement as
Exhibit A. Atmos and ACSC further agree that at such time as all of the ACSC Cities
have passed an ordinance or resolution consistent with the Settlement and Atmos has
received such ordinance or resolution, Atmos shall withdraw its appeal of the currently
pending R.RM filing before the Railroad Commission of Texas in connection with the
2014 RRM filing.

3



Attachment A

8. Atmos and the ACSC Cities further agree that the express terms of the Rider RRM are
supplemental to the filing, notice, regulatory review, or appellate procedural process of
the ratemaking provisions of Chapter 104 of the Texas Utilities Code. If the statute
requires a mandatory action on behalf of the municipal regulatory authority or Atmos,
the parties will follow the provisions of such statute. If the statute allows discretion on
behalf of the municipal regulatory authority, the ACSC Cities agree that they shall
exercise such discretion in such a way as to implement the provisions of the RRM
tariff. If Atmos appeals an action or inaction of an ACSC City regarding an RRM
filing to the Railroad Commission, the ACSC Cities agree that they will not oppose the
implementation of interim rates or advocate the imposition of a bond by Atmos
consistent with the RRIvI tariff. Atmos agrees that it will make no filings on behalf of
its Mid-Tex Division under the provisions of Section 104.30 1 of the Texas Utilities
code while the Rider RRM is in place. In the event that a regulatory authority fails to
act or enters an adverse decision regarding the proposed annual RRM adjustment, the
Railroad Commission of Texas shall have exclusive appellate jurisdiction, pursuant to
the provisions of the Texas Utilities Code, to review the action or inaction of the
regulatory authority exercising exclusive original jurisdiction over the RRIvI request.
In addition, the Signatories agree that this Settlement Agreement shall not be
constmed as a waiver of the ACSC Cities’ right to initiate a show cause proceeding or
the Company’s right to file a Statement of Intent under the provisions of the Texas
Utilities Code.

9. The Signatories agree that the terms of the Settlement Agreement are interdependent
and indivisible, and that if any ACSC city enters an order that is inconsistent with this
Settlement Agreement, then any Signatory may withdraw without being deemed to
have waived any procedural right or to have taken any substantive position on any fact
or issue by virtue of that Signatory’s entry into the Settlement Agreement or its
subsequent withdrawal. If any ACSC city rejects this Settlement Agreement, then this
Settlement Agreement shall be void ab initio and counsel for the ACSC Cities shall
thereafter only take such actions as are in accordance with the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct.

10. The Signatories agree that all negotiations, discussions and conferences related to the
Settlement Agreement are privileged, inadmissible, and not relevant to prove any
issues associated with Atmos’ 2014 RRM filing and 2015 RRJVI filing.

11. The Signatories agree that neither this Settlement Agreement nor any oral or written
statements made during the course of settlement negotiations may be used for any
purpose other than as necessary to support the entry by the ACSC Cities of an
ordinance or resolution implementing this Settlement Agreement.

12. The Signatories agree that this Settlement Agreement is binding on each Signatory
only for the purpose of settling the issues set forth herein and for no other purposes,
and, except to the extent the Settlement Agreement governs a Signatory’s rights and
obligations for future periods, this Settlement Agreement shall not be binding or
precedential upon a Signatory outside this proceeding.

4



Attachment A

13. The Signatories agree that this Settlement Agreement may be executed in multiple
counterparts and may be filed with facsimile signatures.

5



Attachment A

Agreed to this7 day of May, 2015.

ATMOS ENERGY CORP., MID-TEX DIVISION

By: 47L
Jo A.Paris
President, Mid-Tex Division

6



Attachment A

Agreed to this

_____

day of May 2015.

ATTORNEY FOR ATMOS CITIES STEERING COMMITTEE. WHOSE MEMBERS
INCLUDE THE CITIES OF ABILENE. ADDISON, ALLEN. ALVARADO, ANGUS, ANNA.
ARGYLE, ARLINGTON. AUBREY. BEDFORD. BELLMEAD, BENBROOK. BEVERLY
1-IILLS. BLOSSOM. BLUE RIDGE. BOWIE. BOYD. BRIDGEPORT. BROWNWOOD,
BUFFALO. BURKBURNETT. BURLESON. CADDO MILLS. CANTON. CARROLLTON,
CEDAR HILL. CELESTE, CELINA, CENTERVILLE, CISCO. CLARKSVILLE. CLEBURNE.
CLYDE, COLLEGE STATION. COLLEYVILLE. COLORADO CITY, COMANCHE.
COMMERCE. COOLIDGE. COPPELL. COPPERAS COVE, CORINTH. CORRAL CITY,
CRANDALL. CR0WLEY. DALWORTHINGTON GARDENS, DENISON, DESOTO,
DIJNCANVILLE. EASTLAND, EDGECLIFF VILLAGE. EMORY. ENNIS. EULESS.
EVERMAN. FAIRVIEW. FARMERS BRANd-I. FARMERSVILLE. FATE, FLOWER
MOUND, FOREST HILL, FORT WORTH, FRISCO. FROST. GAINESVILLE, GARLAND,
GARRETT, GRAND PRAIRIE, GRAPEVINE. GUNTER. HALTOM CITY, 1-IARKER
HEIGHTS, 1-IASKELL, HASLET, HEWITT. HIGHLAND PARK, HIGHLAND VILLAGE,
HONEY GROVE, I-IURST, HUTTO, IOWA PARK, IRVING, JUSTIN, KAUFMAN, KEENE.
KELLER, KEMP, KENNEDALE, KERENS. KERRVILLE, KILLEEN, KRUM, LAKE
WORTH, LAKESIDE. LANCASTER. LEWISVILLE. LINCOLN PARK. LITTLE ELM.
LORENA, MADISONVILLE, MALAKOFF. MANSFIELD, MCKINNEY. MELISSA,
MESQUITE. MIDLOTI-TIAN. MURPHY. NEWARK. NOCONA, NORTI-I RICHLAND
HILLS. NORTHLAKE, OAKLEAF, OVILLA. PALESTINE. PANTEGO, PARIS, PARKER.
PECAN HILL, PETROLIA, PLANO. IONDER. POTTSBORO, PROSPER. QUITMAN, RED
OAK, RENO (PARKER COUN1’Y). RICHARDSON. RICHLAND, RICHLAND 1-IILLS.
ROANOKE. ROBINSON, ROCKWALL. ROSCOE. ROWLETT, ROYSE CITY, SACHSE.
SAGINAW, SANSOM PARK. SEAGOVILLE. SHERMAN, SNYDER. SOUTHLAKE.
SPRINGTOWN. STAMFORD. STEPHENVILLE, SULPI-IUR SPRINGS. SWEETWATER.
TEMPLE. TERRELL. THE COLONY, TROPHY CLUB, TYLER, UNIVERSITY PARK.
VENUS, VERNON. WACO, WATAUGA. WAXAI-IACHIE, WESTLAKE, WI-IITE
SETTLEMENT, WHITESBORO, WICHITA FALLS, WOODWAY, AND WYLIE.

By:

__________

Geoffre ay*

* Subject to approval by ACSC City Councils

7



Attachment A Exhibit A
MID-TEX DIVISION RRC Tariff No:
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: C — COMMERCIAL SALES

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF
APPLICABLE TO:

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 06/0112015 PAGE:

Application
Applicable to Commercial Customers for all natural gas provided at one Point of Delivery and measured
through one meter and to Industrial Customers with an average annual usage of less than 30,000 Ccf.

Type of Service
Where service of the type desired by Customer is not already available at the Point of Delivery, additional
charges and special contract arrangements between Company and Customer may be required prior to
service being furnished.

Monthly Rate
Customer’s monthly bill will be calculated by adding the following Customer and Ccf charges to the
amounts due under the riders listed below:

Charge Amount

Customer Charge per Bill $ 40.00 per month

Rider CEE Surcharge $ 0.00 per month’

Total Customer Charge $ 40.00 per month

Commodity Charge — All Ccf $ 0.08020 per Ccf

Gas Cost Recovery: Plus an amount for gas costs and upstream transportation costs calculated
in accordance with Part (a) and Part (b), respectively, of Rider GCR.

Weather Normalization Adjustment: Plus or Minus an amount for weather normalization
calculated in accordance with Rider WNA.

Franchise Fee Adjustment: Plus an amount for franchise fees calculated in accordance with Rider
FF. Rider FF is only applicable to customers inside the corporate limits of any incorporated
municipality.

Tax Adjustment: Plus an amount for tax calculated in accordance with Rider TAX.

Surcharges: Plus an amount for surcharges calculated in accordance with the applicable rider(s).

Agreement
An Agreement for Gas Service may be required.

Notice
Service hereunder and the rates for services provided are subject to the orders of regulatory bodies
having jurisdiction and to the Company’s Tariff for Gas Service.

1 Reference Rider CEE - Conservation And Energy Efficiency as approved in GUD 10170. Surcharge billing effective July 1, 2014.



Attachment A
MID-TEX DIVISION

Exhibit A

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION
RRC Tariff No:

RATE SCHEDULE: I — INDUSTRIAL SALES

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF
APPLICABLE TO:

DALLAS_AND_UNINCORPORATED_AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 0610112015 PAGE:

Application
Applicable to Industrial Customers with a maximum daily usage (MDU) of less than 3,500 MMBtu per day
for all natural gas provided at one Point of Delivery and measured through one meter. Service for
Industrial Customers with an MDU equal to or greater than 3,500 MMBtu per day will be provided at
Company’s sole option and will require special contract arrangements between Company and Customer.

Type of Service
Where service of the type desired by Customer is not already available at the Point of Delivery, additional
charges and special contract arrangements between Company and Customer may be required prior to
service being furnished.

Monthly Rate
Customer’s monthly bill will be calculated by adding the following Customer and MMBtu charges to the
amounts due under the riders listed below:

Charge Amount

Customer Charge per Meter $ 700.00 per month

First 0 MMBtu to 1,500 MMBtu $ 0.2937 per MMBtu

Next 3,500 MMBtu $ 0.2151 per MMBtu

All MMBtu over 5,000 MMBtu $ 0.0461 per MMBtu

Gas Cost Recovery: Plus an amount for gas costs and upstream transportation costs calculated
in accordance with Part (a) and Part (b), respectively, of Rider GCR.

Franchise Fee Adjustment: Plus an amount for franchise fees calculated in accordance with Rider
FF. Rider FF is only applicable to customers inside the corporate limits of any incorporated
municipality.

Tax Adjustment: Plus an amount for tax calculated in accordance with Rider TAX.

Surcharges: Plus an amount for surcharges calculated in accordance with the applicable rider(s).

Curtailment Overpull Fee
Upon notification by Company of an event of curtailment or interruption of Customer’s deliveries,
Customer will, for each MMBtu delivered in excess of the stated level of curtailment or interruption, pay
Company 200% of the midpoint price for the Katy point listed in P!atts Gas Daily published for the
applicable Gas Day in the table entitled “Daily Price Survey.”

Replacement Index
In the event the “midpoint’ or “common” price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Daily in the table
entitled “Daily Price Survey” is no longer published, Company will calculate the applicable imbalance fees
utilizing a daily price index recognized as authoritative by the natural gas industry and most closely
approximating the applicable index.



Attachment A Exhibit A
MID-TEX DIVISION RRC Tariff No:
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: I — INDUSTRIAL SALES

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF
APPLICABLE TO:

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 06101/2015 PAGE:

Agreement
An Agreement for Gas Service may be required.

Notice
Service hereunder and the rates for services provided are subject to the orders of regulatory bodies
having jurisdiction and to the Company’s Tariff for Gas Service.

Special Conditions
In order to receive service under Rate I, Customer must have the type of meter required by Company.
Customer must pay Company all costs associated with the acquisition and installation of the meter.



Attachment A
MID-TEX DIVISION

Exhibit A

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION
RRC Tariff No:

RATE SCHEDULE: R — RESIDENTIAL SALES

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF
APPLICABLE TO:

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 0610112015 PAGE:

Application
Applicable to Residential Customers for all natural gas provided at one Point of Delivery and measured
through one meter.

Type of Service
Where service of the type desired by Customer is not already available at the Point of Delivery, additional
charges and special contract arrangements between Company and Customer may be required prior to
service being furnished.

Monthly Rate
Customer’s monthly bill will be calculated by adding the following Customer and Ccf charges to the
amounts due under the riders listed below:

Charge Amount

Customer Charge per Bill $ 18.60 per month

Rider CEE Surcharge $ 0.02 per month’

Total Customer Charge $ 18.62 per month

Commodity Charge — All Qf $009931 per Ccf

Gas Cost Recovery: Plus an amount for gas costs and upstream transportation costs calculated
in accordance with Part (a) and Part (b), respectively, of Rider GCR.

Weather Normalization Adjustment: Plus or Minus an amount for weather normalization
calculated in accordance with Rider WNA.

Franchise Fee Adjustment: Plus an amount for franchise fees calculated in accordance with Rider
FF. Rider FE is only applicable to customers inside the corporate limits of any incorporated
municipality.

Tax Adjustment: Plus an amount for tax calculated in accordance with Rider TAX.

Surcharges: Plus an amount for surcharges calculated in accordance with the applicable rider(s).

Agreement
An Agreement for Gas Service may be required.

Notice
Service hereunder and the rates for services provided are subject to the orders of regulatory bodies
having jurisdiction and to the Company’s Tariff for Gas Service.

1Reference Rider CEE - Conservation And Energy Efficiency as approved in GUD 10170. Surcharge billing effective July 1,2014.



Attachment A Exhibit A
MID-TEX DIVISION RRC Tariff No:
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: T — TRANSPORTATION

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OFAPPLICABLE TO:
DALLAS_AND_UNINCORPORATED_AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 06101/2015 PAGE:

Application
Applicable, in the event that Company has entered into a Transportation Agreement, to a customer
directly connected to the Atmos Energy Corp., Mid-Tex Division Distribution System (Customer) for the
transportation of all natural gas supplied by Customer or Customer’s agent at one Point of Delivery for
use in Customer’s facility.

Type of Service
Where service of the type desired by Customer is not already available at the Point of Delivery, additional
charges and special contract arrangements between Company and Customer may be required prior to
service being furnished.

Monthly Rate
Customer’s bill will be calculated by adding the following Customer and MMBtu charges to the amounts
and quantities due under the riders listed below:

Charge Amount

Customer Charge per Meter $ 700.00 per month

First 0 MMBtu to 1,500 MMBtu $ 0.2937 per MMBtu

Next 3500 MMBtu $ 0.2151 per MMBtu

All MMBtu over 5,000 MMBtu $ 0.0461 per MMBtu

Upstream Transportation Cost Recovery: Plus an amount for upstream transportation costs in
accordance with Part (b) of Rider GCR.

Retention Adjustment: Plus a quantity of gas as calculated in accordance with Rider RA.

Franchise Fee Adjustment: Plus an amount for franchise fees calculated in accordance with Rider
FF. Rider FE is only applicable to customers inside the corporate limits of any incorporated
municipality.

Tax Adjustment: Plus an amount for tax calculated in accordance with Rider TAX.

Surcharges: Plus an amount for surcharges calculated in accordance with the applicable rider(s).

Imbalance Fees
All fees charged to Customer under this Rate Schedule will be charged based on the quantities
determined under the applicable Transportation Agreement and quantities will not be aggregated for any
Customer with multiple Transportation Agreements for the purposes of such fees.

Monthly Imbalance Fees
Customer shall pay Company the greater of (i) $0.10 per MMBtu, or (ii) 150% of the difference per MMBtu
between the highest and lowest “midpoint” price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Daily in the table
entitled “Daily Price Survey” during such month, for the MMBtu of Customer’s monthly Cumulative
Imbalance, as defined in the applicable Transportation Agreement, at the end of each month that exceeds
10% of Customer’s receipt quantities for the month.



Attachment A Exhibit A
MID-TEX DIVISION RRC Tariff No:
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: T — TRANSPORTATION

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF
APPLICABLE TO:

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 0610112015 PAGE:

Curtailment Overpull Fee
Upon notification by Company of an event of curtailment or interruption of Customer’s deliveries,
Customer will, for each MMBtu delivered in excess of the stated level of curtailment or interruption, pay
Company 200% of the midpoint price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Daily published for the
applicable Gas Day in the table entitled “Daily Price Survey.”

Replacement Index
In the event the “midpoint” or “common” price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Daily in the table
entitled “Daily Price Survey” is no longer published, Company will calculate the applicable imbalance fees
utilizing a daily price index recognized as authoritative by the natural gas industry and most closely
approximating the applicable index.

Agreement
A transportation agreement is required.

Notice
Service hereunder and the rates for services provided are subject to the orders of regulatory bodies
having jurisdiction and to the Company’s Tariff for Gas Service.

Special Conditions
In order to receive service under Rate T, customer must have the type of meter required by Company.
Customer must pay Company all costs associated with the acquisition and installation of the meter.



MID-TEX DIVISION
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

Attachment A Exhibit A

RIDER: WNA — WEATHER NORMALIZATION ADJUSTMENT

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OFAPPLICABLE TO:
DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 1110112015 PAGE:

Provisions for Adiustment

The Commodity Charge per Ccf (100 cubic feet) for gas service set forth in any Rate Schedules utilized
by the cities of the Mid-Tex Division service area for determining normalized winter period revenues shall
be adjusted by an amount hereinafter described, which amount is referred to as the “Weather
Normalization Adjustment.” The Weather Normalization Adjustment shall apply to all temperature
sensitive residential and commercial bills based on meters read during the revenue months of November
through April. The five regional weather stations are Abilene, Austin, Dallas, Waco, and Wichita Falls.

Comrutation of Weather Normalization Adiustment

The Weather Normalization Adjustment Factor shall be computed to the nearest one-hundredth cent
per Ccf by the following formula:

(HSF x (NDD-ADD))
WNAFi = Ri

________________________________

(BLi + (HSF x ADD)

Where
= any particular Rate Schedule or billing classification within any such

particular Rate Schedule that contains more than one billing classification

WNAFi = Weather Normalization Adjustment Factor for the ith rate schedule or
classification expressed in cents per Ccf

R = Commodity Charge rate of temperature sensitive sales for the ith schedule or

classification.

HSFi = heat sensitive factor for the ith schedule or classification divided by the
average bill count in that class

NDD = billing cycle normal heating degree days calculated as the simple ten-year
average of actual heating degree days.

ADD = billing cycle actual heating degree days.

Bli base load sales for the ith schedule or classification divided by the average
bill count in that class

The Weather Normalization Adjustment for the jth customer in ith rate schedule is computed as:

WN1 WNAF x qjj

Where qjj is the relevant sales quantity for the jth customer in ith rate schedule.



Attachment A Exhibit A
MID-TEX DIVISION
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RIDER: WNA - WEATHER NORMALIZATION ADJUSTMENT

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OFAPPLICABLE TO:
DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 1110112015 PAGE:

Base Use/Heat Use Factors

Residential Commercial
Base use Heat use Base use Heat use

Weather Station Ccf Ccf/HDD Ccf Ccf/HDD
Abilene 10.22 0.1404 98.80 0.6372

Austin 11.59 0.1443 213.62 0.7922

Dallas 14.12 0.2000 208.11 0.9085

Waco 9.74 0.1387 130.27 0.6351

Wichita 11.79 0.1476 122.35 0.5772
Falls

Weather Normalization Adiustment (WNA) Report

On or before June 1 of each year, the company posts on its website at atmosenergy.com/mtx-wna, in
Excel format, a Weather Normalization Adjustment (WNA) Report to show how the company calculated
its WNA5 factor during the preceding winter season. Additionally, on or before June 1 of each year, the
company files one hard copy and a Excel version of the WNA Report with the Railroad Commission of
Texas’ Gas Services Division, addressed to the Director of that Division.



E
xh

ib
it

B

A
T

M
O

S
E

N
E

R
G

Y
C

O
R

P.
,

M
ID

-T
EX

D
IV

IS
IO

N
PR

O
O

F
O

F
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
A

N
D

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

T
A

R
IF

F
ST

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
T

E
ST

Y
E

A
R

E
N

D
IN

G
D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
31

,
20

14

(a
)

(b
)

(C
)

(d
)

(e
)

(f)
(g

)

I
P

ro
po

se
d

C
ha

ng
e

In
R

at
es

:
$2

1,
06

6,
52

7
S

ch
ed

ul
e

A
2

P
ro

po
se

d
C

ha
ng

e
In

R
at

es
w

ith
ou

t
R

ev
en

ue
R

el
at

ed
T

ax
es

$1
9

75
7

25
4

Ln
1

di
vi

de
d

by
fa

ct
or

on
W

P
_F

-5
1

3 4 5
R

ev
en

ue
6

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
A

llo
ca

tio
ns

7
R

es
id

en
tia

l
$

33
8,

43
1,

48
6

77
.9

5%
P

er
G

U
D

10
17

0
Fi

na
l

O
rd

er
8

C
om

m
er

ci
al

$
84

,2
23

,6
22

19
.4

0%
P

er
G

U
D

10
17

0
Fi

na
l

O
rd

er
9

In
du

st
ri

al
ar

id
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n
$

11
,4

90
,3

16
2.

65
%

P
er

G
U

D
10

17
0

Fi
na

l
O

rd
er

10
N

et
R

ev
en

ue
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

G
U

D
N

o.
10

17
0

$
43

4,
14

5,
42

4

11 12 17
P

ro
po

se
d

P
ro

po
se

d
R

at
es

P
ro

po
se

d
P

ro
po

se
d

C
ha

ng
e

In
P

ro
po

se
d

w
ith

R
at

e
C

as
e

3
18

R
at

e
C

la
ss

C
ur

re
nt

C
ha

ng
e

R
at

es
R

ev
en

ue
s

R
ev

en
ue

s
E

xp
en

se
s

19 20
R

es
id

en
ti

al
B

as
e

C
ha

rg
e

$
18

.2
0

$
0.

36
$

18
.5

6
$

6,
35

1,
35

0
$

32
7,

44
7,

39
8

$
18

.6
0

21
R

es
id

en
tia

l
C

on
su

m
pt

io
n

C
ha

rg
e

$
0.

08
81

9
$

0.
01

11
2

$
0.

09
93

1
$

9,
04

9,
38

3
$

80
,8

17
,8

29
$

0.
09

93
1

22
C

om
m

er
ci

al
B

as
e

C
ha

rg
e

$
38

.5
0

$
1.

37
$

39
.8

7.
$

2,
00

0,
58

4
$

58
,2

21
,3

64
$

40
.0

0
23

C
om

m
er

ci
al

C
on

su
m

pt
io

n
C

ha
rg

e
$

0.
07

68
1

$
0.

00
33

9
$

0.
08

02
0

$
1,

83
4,

96
8

$
43

,4
11

,3
39

$
0.

08
02

0
24

l&
T

B
as

e
C

ha
rg

e
$

67
5.

00
$

22
.3

5
$

69
7.

35
$

22
0,

19
2

$
6,

87
0,

29
2

$
70

0.
00

25
I&

T
C

on
su

m
pt

io
n

C
ha

rg
e

T
ie

r
1

M
M

B
TU

$
0.

28
07

$
0.

01
30

$
0.

29
37

$
14

2,
05

5
$

3,
20

9,
35

0
$

0.
29

37
26

l&
T

C
on

su
m

pt
io

n
C

ha
rg

e
T

ie
r

2
M

M
B

TU
$

0.
20

56
$

0.
00

95
$

0.
21

51
$

11
7,

05
1

$
2,

65
0,

28
2

$
0.

21
51

27
l&

T
C

on
su

m
pt

io
n

C
ha

rg
e

T
ie

r
3

M
M

B
TU

$
0.

04
41

$
0.

00
20

$
0.

04
61

$
42

,7
03

$
98

4,
31

4
$

0.
04

61
28

$
19

,7
58

,2
87

$
52

3,
61

2,
16

9
29

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

es
:

G
U

D
I0

17
0_

FI
N

A
L

.x
ls

m



A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t
B

A
T

M
O

S
E

N
E

R
G

Y
C

O
R

P.
,

M
ID

-T
EX

D
IV

IS
IO

N
PR

O
O

F
O

F
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
A

N
D

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

T
A

R
IF

F
ST

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
T

E
S

T
Y

E
A

R
E

N
D

IN
G

D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

31
,

20
14

(a
)

(b
)

(c
)

(d
)

(e
)

(f)
(g

)

I
P

ro
po

se
d

C
ha

ng
e

In
R

at
es

:
$2

1,
06

6,
52

7
S

ch
ed

ul
e

A
2

P
ro

po
se

d
C

ha
ng

e
In

R
at

es
w

ith
ou

t
R

ev
en

ue
R

el
at

ed
T

ax
es

$1
9

75
7

25
4

Lr
,

1
di

vi
de

d
by

fa
ct

or
on

W
P

_F
-5

I
3 4 5

R
ev

en
ue

6
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

A
llo

ca
tio

ns
7

R
es

id
en

ti
al

$
33

8,
43

1,
48

6
77

.9
5%

P
er

G
U

D
10

17
0

Fi
na

l
O

rd
er

8
C

om
m

er
ci

al
$

84
,2

23
,6

22
19

.4
0%

P
er

G
U

D
10

17
0

Fi
na

l
O

rd
er

9
In

du
st

ri
al

an
d

T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n

$
11

,4
90

,3
16

2.
65

%
P

er
G

U
D

10
17

0
Fi

na
l

O
rd

er
10

N
et

R
ev

en
ue

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
G

U
D

N
o.

10
17

0
$

43
4,

14
5,

42
4

11 12 17
P

ro
po

se
d

P
ro

po
se

d
R

at
es

P
ro

po
se

d
P

ro
po

se
d

C
ha

ng
e

In
P

ro
po

se
d

w
ith

R
at

e
C

as
e

18
R

at
e

C
la

ss
C

ur
re

nt
C

ha
ng

e
R

at
es

R
ev

en
ue

s
R

ev
en

ue
s

E
xp

en
se

s
19 20

R
es

id
en

ti
al

B
as

e
C

ha
rg

e
$

18
.2

0
$

0.
36

$
18

.5
6

$
6,

35
1,

35
0

$
32

7,
44

7,
39

8
$

18
.6

0
21

R
es

id
en

ti
al

C
on

su
m

pt
io

n
C

ha
rg

e
$

0.
08

81
9

$
0.

01
11

2
$

0.
09

93
1

$
9,

04
9,

38
3

$
80

,8
17

,8
29

$
0.

09
93

1
22

C
om

m
er

ci
al

B
as

e
C

ha
rg

e
$

38
.5

0
$

1.
37

$
39

.8
7.

$
2,

00
0,

58
4

$
58

,2
21

,3
64

$
40

.0
0

23
C

om
m

er
ci

al
C

on
su

m
pt

io
n

C
ha

rg
e

$
0.

07
68

1
$

0.
00

33
9

$
0.

08
02

0
$

1,
83

4,
96

8
$

43
,4

11
,3

39
$

0.
08

02
0

24
l&

T
B

as
e

C
ha

rg
e

$
67

5.
00

$
22

.3
5

$
69

7.
35

$
22

0,
19

2
$

6,
87

0,
29

2
$

70
0.

00
25

I&
T

C
on

su
m

pt
io

n
C

ha
rg

e
T

ie
r

1
M

M
B

TU
$

0.
28

07
$

0.
01

30
$

0.
29

37
$

14
2,

05
5

$
3,

20
9,

35
0

$
0.

29
37

26
l&

T
C

on
su

m
pt

io
n

C
ha

rg
e

T
ie

r
2

M
M

B
TU

$
0.

20
56

$
0.

00
95

$
0.

21
51

$
11

7,
05

1
$

2,
65

0,
28

2
$

0.
21

51
27

l&
T

C
on

su
m

pt
io

n
C

ha
rg

e
T

ie
r

3
M

M
B

TU
$

0.
04

41
$

0.
00

20
$

0.
04

61
$

42
,7

03
$

98
4,

31
4

$
0.

04
61

28
$.

19
,7

58
,2

87
$

52
3.

61
2,

16
9

29
D

at
a

S
ou

rc
es

:
G

U
D

I0
1

70
_F

IN
A

L
.x

ls
m



Attachment C
MID-TEX DIVISION RRC Tariff No:
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: C — COMMERCIAL SALES

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OFAPPLICABLE TO:
DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 06101/2015 PAGE:

Application
Applicable to Commercial Customers for all natural gas provided at one Point of Delivery and measured
through one meter and to Industrial Customers with an average annual usage of less than 30,000 Ccf.

Type of Service
Where service of the type desired by Customer is not already available at the Point of Delivery, additional
charges and special contract arrangements between Company and Customer may be required prior to
service being furnished.

Monthly Rate
Customers monthly bill will be calculated by adding the following Customer and Ccf charges to the
amounts due under the riders listed below:

Charge Amount

Customer Charge per Bill $ 40.00 per month

Rider CEE Surcharge $ 0.00 per month’

Total Customer Charge $ 40.00 per month

Commodity Charge — All Ccf $ 0.08020 per Ccf

Gas Cost Recovery: Plus an amount for gas costs and upstream transportation costs calculated
in accordance with Part (a) and Part (b), respectively, of Rider GCR.

Weather Normalization Adjustment: Plus or Minus an amount for weather normalization
calculated in accordance with Rider WNA.

Franchise Fee Adjustment: Plus an amount for franchise fees calculated in accordance with Rider
FE. Rider FF is only applicable to customers inside the corporate limits of any incorporated
municipality.

Tax Adjustment: Plus an amount for tax calculated in accordance with Rider TAX.

Surcharges: Plus an amount for surcharges calculated in accordance with the applicable rider(s).

Agreement
An Agreement for Gas Service may be required.

Notice
Service hereunder and the rates for services provided are subject to the orders of regulatory bodies
having jurisdiction and to the Company’s Tariff for Gas Service.

1 Reference Rider CEE - Conservation And Energy Efficiency as approved in GUD 10170. Surcharge billing effective July 1,2014.



Attachment C
MID-TEX DIVISION RRC Tariff No:
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: I — INDUSTRIAL SALES

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF
APPLICABLE TO:

DALLAS_AND_UNINCORPORATED_AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 0610112015 PAGE:

Application
Applicable to Industrial Customers with a maximum daily usage (MDU) of less than 3,500 MMBtu per day
for all natural gas provided at one Point of Delivery and measured through one meter. Service for
Industrial Customers with an MDU equal to or greater than 3,500 MMBtu per day will be provided at
Company’s sole option and will require special contract arrangements between Company and Customer.

Type of Service
Where service of the type desired by Customer is not already available at the Point of Delivery, additional
charges and special contract arrangements between Company and Customer may be required prior to
service being furnished.

Monthly Rate
Customer’s monthly bill will be calculated by adding the following Customer and MMBtu charges to the
amounts due under the riders listed below:

Charge Amount

Customer Charge per Meter $ 700.00 per month

First 0 MMBtu to 1,500 MMBtu $ 0.2937 per MMBtu

Next 3,500 MMBtu $ 0.2151 per MMBtu

All MMBtu over 5,000 MMBtu $ 0.0461 per MMBtu

Gas Cost Recovery: Plus an amount for gas costs and upstream transportation costs calculated
in accordance with Part (a) and Part (b), respectively, of Rider GCR.

Franchise Fee Adjustment: Plus an amount for franchise fees calculated in accordance with Rider
FF. Rider FE is only applicable to customers inside the corporate limits of any incorporated
municipality.

Tax Adjustment: Plus an amount for tax calculated in accordance with Rider TAX.

Surcharges: Plus an amount for surcharges calculated in accordance with the applicable rider(s).

Curtailment Overpull Fee
Upon notification by Company of an event of curtailment or interruption of Customer’s deliveries,
Customer will, for each MMBtu delivered in excess of the stated level of curtailment or interruption, pay
Company 200% of the midpoint price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Daily published for the
applicable Gas Day in the table entitled “Daily Price Survey.”

Replacement Index
In the event the “midpoint” or “common” price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Daily in the table
entitled “Daily Price Survey” is no longer published, Company will calculate the applicable imbalance fees
utilizing a daily price index recognized as authoritative by the natural gas industry and most closely
approximating the applicable index.



Attachment C
MID-TEX DIVISION RRC Tariff No:
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: I — INDUSTRIAL SALES

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF
APPLICABLE TO:

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 0610112015 PAGE:

Agreement
An Agreement for Gas Service may be required.

Notice
Service hereunder and the rates for services provided are subject to the orders of regulatory bodies
having jurisdiction and to the Company’s Tariff for Gas Service.

Special Conditions
In order to receive service under Rate I, Customer must have the type of meter required by Company.
Customer must pay Company all costs associated with the acquisition and installation of the meter.



Attachment C
MID-TEX DIVISION RRC Tariff No:
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: R — RESIDENTIAL SALES

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF
APPLICABLE TO:

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 0610112015 PAGE:

Application
Applicable to Residential Customers for all natural gas provided at one Point of Delivery and measured
through one meter.

Type of Service
Where service of the type desired by Customer is not already available at the Point of Delivery, additional
charges and special contract arrangements between Company and Customer may be required prior to
service being furnished.

Monthly Rate
Customer’s monthly bill will be calculated by adding the following Customer and Ccf charges to the
amounts due under the riders listed below:

Charge Amount

Customer Charge per Bill $ 18.60 per month

Rider CEE Surcharge $ 0.02 per month’

Total Customer Charge $ 18.62 per month

Commodity Charge — All f $009931 per Ccf

Gas Cost Recovery: Plus an amount for gas costs and upstream transportation costs calculated
in accordance with Part (a) and Part (b), respectively, of Rider GCR.

Weather Normalization Adjustment: Plus or Minus an amount for weather normalization
calculated in accordance with Rider WNA.

Franchise Fee Adjustment: Plus an amount for franchise fees calculated in accordance with Rider
FF. Rider FF is only applicable to customers inside the corporate limits of any incorporated
municipality.

Tax Adjustment: Plus an amount for tax calculated in accordance with Rider TAX.

Surcharges: Plus an amount for surcharges calculated in accordance with the applicable rider(s).

Agreement
An Agreement for Gas Service may be required.

Notice
Service hereunder and the rates for services provided are subject to the orders of regulatory bodies
having jurisdiction and to the Company’s Tariff for Gas Service.

1Reference Rider CEE - Conservation And Energy Efficiency as approved in GUD 10170. Surcharge billing effective July 1,2014.



Attachment C
MID-TEX DIVISION RRC Tariff No:
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: T — TRANSPORTATION

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF
APPLICABLE TO:

DALLAS_AND_UNINCORPORATED_AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 0610112015 PAGE:

Application
Applicable, in the event that Company has entered into a Transportation Agreement, to a customer
directly connected to the Atmos Energy Corp., Mid-Tex Division Distribution System (Customer) for the
transportation of all natural gas supplied by Customer or Customer’s agent at one Point of Delivery for
use in Customer’s facility.

Type of Service
Where service of the type desired by Customer is not already available at the Point of Delivery, additional
charges and special contract arrangements between Company and Customer may be required prior to
service being furnished.

Monthly Rate
Customer’s bill will be calculated by adding the following Customer and MMBtu charges to the amounts
and quantities due under the riders listed below:

Charge Amount

Customer Charge per Meter $ 700.00 per month

First 0 MMBtu to 1,500 MMBtu $ 0.2937 per MMBtu

Next 3,500 MMBtu $ 0.2 151 per MMBtu

All MMBtu over 5,000 MMBtu $ 0.0461 per MMBtu

Upstream Transportation Cost Recovery: Plus an amount for upstream transportation costs in
accordance with Part (b) of Rider GCR.

Retention Adjustment: Plus a quantity of gas as calculated in accordance with Rider RA.

Franchise Fee Adjustment: Plus an amount for franchise fees calculated in accordance with Rider
FF. Rider FF is only applicable to customers inside the corporate limits of any incorporated
municipality.

Tax Adjustment: Plus an amount for tax calculated in accordance with Rider TAX.

Surcharges: Plus an amount for surcharges calculated in accordance with the applicable rider(s).

Imbalance Fees
All fees charged to Customer under this Rate Schedule will be charged based on the quantities
determined under the applicable Transportation Agreement and quantities will not be aggregated for any
Customer with multiple Transportation Agreements for the purposes of such fees.

Monthly Imbalance Fees
Customer shall pay Company the greater of (i) $0.10 per MMBtu, or (ii) 150% of the difference per MMBtu
between the highest and lowest “midpoint” price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Daily in the table
entitled “Daily Price Survey” during such month, for the MMBtu of Customer’s monthly Cumulative
Imbalance, as defined in the applicable Transportation Agreement, at the end of each month that exceeds
10% of Customer’s receipt quantities for the month.



Attachment C
MID-TEX DIVISION RRC Tariff No:
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: T—TRANSPORTATION

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OFAPPLICABLE TO:
DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 06101/2015 PAGE:

Curtailment Overpull Fee
Upon notification by Company of an event of curtailment or interruption of Customer’s deliveries,
Customer will, for each MMBtu delivered in excess of the stated level of curtailment or interruption, pay
Company 200% of the midpoint price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Daily published for the
applicable Gas Day in the table entitled “Daily Price Survey.”

Replacement Index
In the event the “midpoint” or “common” price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Daily in the table
entitled “Daily Price Survey” is no longer published, Company will calculate the applicable imbalance fees
utilizing a daily price index recognized as authoritative by the natural gas industry and most closely
approximating the applicable index.

Agreement
A transportation agreement is required.

Notice
Service hereunder and the rates for services provided are subject to the orders of regulatory bodies
having jurisdiction and to the Company’s Tariff for Gas Service.

Special Conditions
In order to receive service under Rate T, customer must have the type of meter required by Company.
Customer must pay Company all costs associated with the acquisition and installation of the meter.



Attachment C
MID-TEX DIVISION
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RIDER: WNA — WEATHER NORMALIZATION ADJUSTM ENT

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF
APPLICABLE TO:

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 1110112015 PAGE:

Provisions for Adjustment

The Commodity Charge per Ccf (100 cubic feet) for gas service set forth in any Rate Schedules utilized
by the cities of the Mid-Tex Division service area for determining normalized winter period revenues shall
be adjusted by an amount hereinafter described, which amount is referred to as the “Weather
Normalization Adjustment.” The Weather Normalization Adjustment shall apply to all temperature
sensitive residential and commercial bills based on meters read during the revenue months of November
through April. The five regional weather stations are Abilene, Austin, Dallas, Waco, and Wichita Falls.

Computation of Weather Normalization Adiustment

The Weather Normalization Adjustment Factor shall be computed to the nearest one-hundredth cent
per Ccf by the following formula:

(HSFi x (NDD-ADD))
WNAFi = R

________________________________

(BLi + (HSFi x ADD)

Where
= any particular Rate Schedule or billing classification within any such

particular Rate Schedule that contains more than one billing classification

WNAF1 = Weather Normalization Adjustment Factor for the ith rate schedule or
classification expressed in cents per Ccf

R = Commodity Charge rate of temperature sensitive sales for the ith schedule or
classification.

HSFi = heat sensitive factor for the ith schedule or classification divided by the
average bill count in that class

NDD = billing cycle normal heating degree days calculated as the simple ten-year
average of actual heating degree days.

ADD = billing cycle actual heating degree days.

Bli = base load sales for the th schedule or classification divided by the average
bill count in that class

The Weather Normalization Adjustment for the jth customer in ith rate schedule is computed as:

WNA = WNAF x q

Where qj is the relevant sales quantity for the jth customer in ith rate schedule.



Attachment C
MID-TEX DIVISION
ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RIDER: WNA — WEATHER NORMALIZATION ADJUSTMENT

ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OFAPPLICABLE TO:
DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 11/01/2015 PAGE:

Base Use/Heat Use Factors

Residential Commercial
Base use Heat use Base use Heat use

Weather Station Ccf Ccf/HDD Ccf CcfIHDD
Abilene 10.22 0.1404 98.80 0.6372

Austin 11.59 0.1443 213.62 0.7922

Dallas 14.12 0.2000 208.11 0.9085

Waco 9.74 0.1387 130.27 0.6351

Wichita 11.79 0.1476 122.35 0.5772
Falls

Weather Normalization Adiustment (WNA) Report

On or before June 1 of each year, the company posts on its website at atmosenergy.com/mtx-wna, in
Excel format, a Weather Normalization Adjustment (WNA) Report to show how the company calculated
its WNAs factor during the preceding winter season. Additionally, on or before June 1 of each year, the
company files one hard copy and a Excel version of the WNA Report with the Railroad Commission of
Texas’ Gas Services Division, addressed to the Director of that Division.



Fi
le

D
at

e:
F

eb
ru

ar
y

27
,

20
15

A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

0

Fi
sc

al
Y

ea
r

20
14

T
ow

er
s

W
at

so
n

R
ep

or
t

(e
xc

lu
di

ng
R

em
ov

ed
C

os
t

1
C

en
te

rs
)

2
A

llo
ca

tio
n

to
M

id
-T

ex

FY
14

T
ow

er
s

W
at

so
n

B
en

ef
it

C
os

ts
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

R
em

ov
ed

C
os

t
3

C
en

te
rs

)
A

llo
ca

te
d

to
M

TX
(L

n
1

x
Ln

2)
4

O
&

M
an

d
C

ap
ita

l
A

llo
ca

tio
n

F
ac

to
r

FY
14

T
ow

er
s

W
at

so
n

B
en

ef
it

C
os

ts
T

o
A

pp
ro

ve
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

5
R

em
ov

ed
C

os
t

C
en

te
rs

)
(L

n
3

x
Ln

4)

6 7 8
S

um
m

ar
y

of
C

o
st

s
to

A
pp

ro
ve

:
9 10

T
ot

al
P

en
si

on
A

cc
ou

nt
Pl

an
(“

PA
P”

)
11

T
ot

al
P

os
t-

R
et

ir
em

en
t

M
ed

ic
al

Pl
an

(F
A

S
10

6”
)

12
T

ot
al

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

R
et

ir
em

en
t

Pl
an

(“
SE

R
P”

)
13

T
o

ta
l(

L
n

lO
+

L
n

h
l+

L
n

1
2

)

O
&

M
E

xp
en

se
F

ac
to

r

E
xp

en
se

Po
rt

io
n

(L
n

13
x

Ln
16

)

C
ap

ita
l

F
ac

to
r

C
ap

ita
l

Po
rt

io
n

(L
n

13
x

Ln
20

>

T
ot

al
(L

n
18

+
Ln

22
)

S
h

ar
ed

S
er

v
ic

es
M

id
-T

ex
D

ir
ec

t

P
en

si
o

n
P

o
st

-R
et

ir
em

en
t

P
en

si
o

n
S

u
p

p
le

m
en

ta
l

P
o

st
-R

et
ir

em
en

t
A

cc
o
u
n
t

P
la

n
M

ed
ic

al
P

la
n

A
cc

o
u
n
t

P
la

n
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

B
en

ef
it

M
ed

ic
al

P
la

n
A

d
ju

st
m

en
t

(“
PA

P”
)

(“
FA

S
10

6”
)

(“
P

A
P

’)
P

la
n

(“
S

E
R

P
’)

(“
FA

S
10

6”
)

T
ot

al

(b
)

(c
)

(d
)

(e
)

(1
)

(g
)

L
in

e
N

o.

A
TM

O
S

E
N

E
R

G
Y

C
O

R
P

.,
M

ID
-T

E
X

D
IV

IS
IO

N
P

E
N

S
IO

N
S

A
N

D
R

E
T

IR
E

E
M

E
D

IC
A

L
B

E
N

E
FI

T
S

FO
R

C
IT

IE
S

A
PP

R
O

V
A

L
T

E
S

T
Y

E
A

R
E

N
D

IN
G

D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

31
,

20
14

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

(a
)

$
63

88
,8

26
$

4,
54

2,
02

3
$

9,
48

1,
67

0
$

16
5,

75
8

$
8,

73
6,

64
5

46
.2

6%
46

.2
6%

71
.7

0%
10

0.
00

%
71

.7
0%

$
2,

95
5,

30
4

$
2,

10
1,

02
1

$
6,

79
8,

53
1

$
16

5,
75

8
$

6,
26

4,
33

4
10

0.
00

%
10

0.
00

%
10

0.
00

%
10

0.
00

%
10

0.
00

%

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

$
2,

95
5,

30
4

$
2,

10
1,

02
1

$
6,

79
8,

53
1

$
16

5.
75

8
$

6,
26

4,
33

4
$

18
,2

84
,9

49

$
2,

95
5,

30
4

$
6,

79
8,

53
1

$
9,

75
3,

83
5

$
2,

10
1,

02
1

$
6,

26
4,

33
4

8,
36

5,
35

6
$

16
5,

75
8

16
5,

75
8

$
2,

95
5,

30
4

$
2,

10
1,

02
1

$
6,

79
8,

53
1

$
16

5,
75

8
$

6,
26

4,
33

4
$

18
,2

84
,9

49

95
.8

2%
95

.8
2%

43
.0

3%
21

.0
0%

43
.0

3%

$
2,

83
1,

85
9

$
2
,0

1
3
2
6
0

$
2,

92
5,

60
0

$
34

,8
09

$
2,

69
5,

72
1

$
10

,5
01

,2
50

4.
18

%
4.

18
%

56
.9

7%
79

.0
0%

56
.9

7%

$
12

3,
44

5
$

87
,7

61
$

3,
87

2,
93

0
$

13
0,

94
9

$
3,

56
8,

61
4

$
7,

78
3,

69
9

$
2,

95
5,

30
4

$
2,

10
10

21
$

6,
79

8,
53

1
$

16
5,

75
8

$
6,

26
4,

33
4

$
18

,2
84

,9
49

W
P

_F
-2

.3
.1

P
ag

e
1

of
1



MODEL STAFF REPORT

The City, along with other similarly situated cities served by Atmos Energy Corp., Mid-Tex
Division (“Atmos Mid-Tex” or “Company”), is a member of the Atmos Cities Steering Committee
(“ACSC”). The RRM Tariff was adopted by the City as an alternative to the Gas Reliability
Infrastructure Program (“GRIP”), the statutory provision that allows Atmos to bypass the City’s rate
regulatory authority to increase its rates annually to recover capital investments. In February 2014,
Atmos Mid-Tex filed its second annual filing under the Rate Review Mechanism (“RRM”) Tariff,
seeking an increase of $45.7 million. Although ACSC attempted to reach a settlement with the
Company as it had in past years, the wide differences between the Company and ACSC’s
consultants’ recommendations made a compromise impossible. On the recommendation of the
ACSC Executive Committee and ACSC’s legal counsel, the City in 2014 adopted a Resolution
denying the requested rate increase.

The Company appealed the City’s denial to the Railroad Commission of Texas
(“Commission”), and revised its requested increase to $43.8 million. A hearing was held on the
Company’s appeal on September 3, 2014. On April 28, 2015, the Commission’s Hearings
Examiner issued his Proposal for Decision (“PFD”) in the Company’s appeal of the City’s denial of
the 2014 RRM rate increase. This PFD was not favorable to ACSC, but did recommend a reduction
of approximately $860,000 to the Company’s adjusted 2014 filing.

While the parties were waiting for the PFD from the Hearings Examiner in the appeal of the
2014 RRIvI filing, on February 27, 2015, Atmos Mid-Tex filed with the City another rate increase
request under the RRM Tariff, seeking additional revenues in the amount of $28.762 million (total
system) or $24.0 million (affected cities). The City worked with ACSC to analyze the schedules
and evidence offered by Atmos Mid-Tex to support its 2015 request to increase rates. The
Ordinance and attached Settlement Agreement and tariffs are the result of negotiation between the
Mid-Tex Executive Committee and the Company to resolve issues raised by ACSC during the
review and evaluation of Atmos Mid-Tex’s filing. The recommended Settlement Agreement also
requires Atmos to abate its appeal of the City’s rejection of the 2014 RRIVI rate increase pending
approval by all ACSC cities of the Settlement Agreement. The Agreement requires Atmos to give
the City the benefit of the adjustments to the 2014 rate increase recommended by the PFD.

The Ordinance and Settlement tariffs approve rates that will increase the Company’s
revenues by $65.7 million for the Mid-Tex Rate Division, effective for bills rendered on or after
June 1, 2015. The monthly residential customer charge will be $18.60. The consumption charge
will change from $0.088 19 per Ccf to $0.0993 1 per Ccf. The monthly bill impact for the typical
residential customer consuming 60 Ccf will be an increase of $1.14 (about a 1.59% increase in the
base bill). The typical commercial customer will see an increase of $2.69 or 0.96%.

The ACSC Executive Committee and its designated legal counsel and consultants
recommend that all Cities adopt the Ordinance approving the negotiated Settlement Agreement
resolving both the 2014 and the 2015 RRM filings, and implementing the rate change.

RRM Background:

The RRM tariff was originally approved by ACSC Cities as part of the settlement agreement
to resolve the Atmos Mid-Tex 2007 system-wide rate filing at the Railroad Commission. In early

4762773.1



2013, the City adopted a renewed RRM tariff for an additional five years. This is the third RRIvI
filing under the renewed tariff. The RRM tariff and the process implementing that tariff were
created collaboratively by ACSC and Atmos Mid-Tex as an alternative to the legislatively-
authorized GRIP surcharge process. ACSC has opposed GRIP because it constitutes piecemeal
ratemaking, does not allow any review of the reasonableness of Atmos’ expenditures, and does not
allow participation by cities or recovery of cities’ rate case expenses. In contrast, the RRM process
has allowed for a more comprehensive rate review and annual adjustment as a substitute for GRIP
filings. ACSC’s consultants have calculated that had Atmos filed its 2015 case under the GRIP
provisions, it would have received additional revenues from ratepayers of approximately $10
million.

Purpose of the Ordinance:

The purpose of the Ordinance is to approve the Settlement Agreement and the resulting rate
change under the RRM tariff. As a result of the negotiations, the Executive Committee was able to
reduce the Company’s requested $28.8 million rate increase for Mid-Tex cities to $21,962,784.
When added to the settlement of the 2014 RRM filing and the adjustments recommended by the
PFD, the Company will receive total additional annual revenues of $65.7 million. Because the 2014
rates have been in effect since June 1, 2014, the increase to currently-billed rates is $21 million.
Approval of the Ordinance will result in rates that implement an increase in Atmos Mid-Tex’s
revenues effective June 1, 2015.

Why Approve the Settlement Agreement:

While it is annoying and disconcerting to annually consider rate adjustments from Atmos
Mid-Tex, the Texas legislature has granted gas utilities the right, through the GRIP process, to an
annual increase based on increases in invested capital. GRIP is piecemeal ratemaking and ignores
increases in revenues and declines in O&M expenses that may be associated with plant additions.
ACSC found it preferable to negotiate with Atmos to substitute an expedited comprehensive review
process that includes consideration of revenues and expenses as well as invested capital for the
GRIP process.

Compelling reasons for approving the Settlement include:

1. While the 2015 RRM system-wide filing exceeded $28 million, a comparable GRIP
filing would have been in excess of $38 million. ACSC has negotiated a reduction to the 2015
filing of approximately $6 million. Therefore, the 2015 RRIvI result is approximately $16 million
better for ratepayers within municipal limits than ratepayers within Environs.

2. ACSC counsel is convinced that the Proposal for Decision (“PFD”) by Railroad
Commission Examiners in the 2014 RRIVI appeal will not improve if we file Exceptions and Replies
to Exceptions. Counsel recommends action to avoid the PFD becoming a final order that would
serve as precedent in future rate proceedings.

3. The token benefit to ratepayers authorized in the PFD to the 2014 appeal has been
incorporated into the Settlement Agreement.

4. Atmos will file its formal withdrawal of its 2014 appeal only after all ACSC
members approve the Settlement Agreement.

4762773.1 2



5. The alternative to approval of the Settlement Agreement would be another contested
case hearing on appeal of the 2015 filing, implementation of interim rates on June 1, 2015 at the full
value of the Company’s request (or $6 million higher than proposed by the Settlement) and
continuation of the 2014 appeal with resulting rate case expenses borne by ratepayers.

Explanation of “Be It Ordained” Sections:

1. This section approves all findings in the Ordinance.

2. This section finds the Settlement Agreement (attached to the Ordinance) to be a
comprehensive settlement of gas utility rate issues arising from Atmos Mid-Tex’s 2014 and
2015 RI{M filings, and that such settlement is in the public interest and consistent with the
City’s statutory authority.

3. This section finds the existing Atmos Mid-Tex rates to be unreasonable, and approves the
new tariffed rates providing for additional revenues over currently-billed rates of $21
million and adopts the attached new rate tariffs.

4. This section establishes the baseline for pensions and other post-employment benefits for
future rate cases.

5. This section renews the Atmos Mid-Tex RRM Tariff for an additional period of time,
commencing with the filing to be made on March 1, 2016, and continuing until the RRM
Tariff is suspended by ordinance of the City.

6. This section requires the Company to reimburse Cities for reasonable ratemaking costs
associated with reviewing and processing the RRM filing.

7. This section repeals any resolution or ordinance that is inconsistent with this Ordinance.

8. This section finds that the meeting was conducted in compliance with the Texas Open
Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551.

9. This section is a savings clause, which provides that if any section(s) is later found to be
unconstitutional or invalid, that finding shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remaining
provisions of this Ordinance. This section further directs that the remaining provisions of
the Ordinance are to be interpreted as if the offending section or clause never existed.

10. This section provides for an effective date upon passage which, according to the Cities’
ordinance that adopted the RRM process, is June 1, 2015.

11. This paragraph directs that a copy of the signed Ordinance be sent to a representative of the
Company and legal counsel for the Steering Committee.

4762773.1 3



 

TO:  Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: Ben White, City Manager 

DATE:  May 26, 2015 

SUBJECT: Consider, discuss and act upon City Financial Reports 

 
 Financial Reports are attached for review. 

 
ACTION:   Approve or disapprove reports as presented. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(III – A)  



City of Farmersville
Investment and Budget Report

April 2015

Prepared by: Daphne Hamlin



MEMO

To: Benjamin White, City Manager

From: Daphne Hamlin, City Accountant

Date: May 21st, 2015

Subject: April 2015 Budget Report

The monthly budget report will focus on the analysis of budgetary variances of the revenues and
expenditures of each of the major operating funds and project the impact on available fund balance. As
a benchmark for comparison, we’ll bear in mind that as of the end of April, 7/12 months or 5 8.33% of
the fiscal year has passed. For revenues and expenditures occurring evenly throughout the year, we
expect to have used or collected close the 58.33% level, and to have 41.67% remaining budget for the
remaining of the year.

Presented in this format are: 1) an executive summary describing current budget issues, 2) budgetary
comparison schedules of each major operating fund of the city, and 3) a fiscal year to date activity
summary for cash and investments.

Executive Summary

The maj or operating funds that are part of the annual operating budget of the city are the general, water
& wastewater, refuse, and electric funds.

General Fund — (page 3-11)

Total revenues in the general fund are 67.2 1% collected.

Ad Valorem collections currently received is 92.32%

TIRZ funds to-date in the amount of $52,320.82. A separate account is established and funds will
transfer from the general fund account.

Licenses/Permits revenues are up drastically. The City has received 108.93% of this year’s projected
budget which is indicating growth.

Municipal Court Revenues currently collected is 5 2.98%. Staff is currently reviewing files and is
scheduled to complete purge within the next few weeks. After completion staff will concentrate
heavily on collecting active warrants.

Total expenditures in the general fund are 51.89% which is below the projected 58.33% level. Please
note Fire Truck purchase is complete. Funds available in Texpool were transferred to General Fund for
purchase.



Please keep in mind we are currently transferring funds from the Electrical Fund to support needed
items/personnel in the General Fund. City staff has decided to place some of these items on hold until
we receive additional data on the newly acquired Electrical System.

Refuse Fund — (pages 26-29)

Total revenues are 44.00% and total expenses are 41.64%.

Water & Wastewater Fund — (pages 12-21)

Total revenues for the Water Fund are 52.22% Total revenues for the Wastewater Fund are 59.43%

Water expenses in Administration are 6 1.83%. Water Department overall expenditures are 53.99%

Wastewater expenses are 45.3%.

Electric Fund
— (pages 22-25)

Total revenues are 42.2 1%; the expenses are at 55.43% and include budgeted transfers to general fund
($1,017,740 annual, or $83,562 per month transfer).

I&S Fund — (pages 30-3 1)

Total Revenues are 96.25%; the expenses are at 85.11%. Bond payments made in February in the
amount of $436,073.34

Cash Summary — (pages 1-2)

The cash summary is attached.



SUMMARY OF CASH BALANCES APRIL 2015

ACCOUNT: FNB (0815) Interest Earned Restricted Assigned Account Balance
Clearing Accounts

General Fund
Permit Fund
Refuse Fund
Water Fund
Wastewater Fund
Electric Fund
SRO Support ISD
CC C[ild Safety
Debt Service Revenue Payment
2012 Bond
Law Enf Training
Disbursement Fund
Library Donation Fund
Court Tech/Sec
Grants
CC Bond Farmersville Parkway
CC Bond Floyd
Equipment Replacement

$ 7,714.36

$ 19,198.87
$ 1,950.00
$ (4,514.27)
$ 1,164.11
$ (77,267.22)

$ 1,728.13

$ 18,263.95
$ (136,629.08)
$ 180,000.86
$ (49,667.75)
$ 5,322.29

$ (140,266.34)
$ 23,632.86

$ 31,917.27

$ (413,779.05)

$ 587,194.58
$ 169,206.37

TOTAL: $ 4.10 $ (32,735.75) $ 257,905.69 $ 225,169.94

Debt Service A,unts
County Tax Deposit (FNB 0807)(Debt Service) $ 11.99 $ 101,427.39
Debt Service Reserve (Texpool 0014 ) (2 months rsv) $ 4.65 107,763.59
TOTAL: $ 16.64 $ 209,190.98 $ 209,190.98

Appropriated Surplus Investment Accounts
Customer meter deposits (Texpool 0008) $ 4.64 $ 107,555.24
Fire Equipment Fund (Texpool 018) $ - $ -

2012 0/0 Bond, streets, water, wastewater (Texstar 0120) $ 41.93 $ 628,836.75 -

TOTAL: $ 46.57 $ $ 736,391.99736.391 .99 $

Unassigned Surplus Investment Accounts
Gen Fund Acct. (Texpool 0004)( Reso. 90 Day Reserve) $ 73.61 $ 668,525.00 $ 1,040,796.44
Refuse Fund Acct. (Texpool 0009) $ 5.53 $ 127,766.84
WaterIWW Fund (Texpool 0003)(Operating 90 day) $ 25.45 $ 591,880.79
Water/WW Fund (Texpool 00017)(Capital) $ 16.84 $ 390,877.05
Elec. Fund (Texpool 0005) (Operating) $ 2.10 $ 50,000.00
Elec. Fund (Texpool 0016)(Capital) $ 5.55 $ 129,609.83
Elec. Surcharge (Texpool 0015) $ 5.23 $ 120,874.43
Money Market Acct. (FNB 092) $ 21.34 $ 173,077.43
TOTAL: $ 155.65 $ 2,079,533.94 $ 1,213,873.87 $ 3,293,407.81

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS $ 3,006,225.16 $ 1,471,779.56 $ 4,478,004.72

05/21/2015

Contractor Managed Accounts Nonspendabte
NTMWD Sewer Plant Maint. Fund $ 13,844.00
TOTALAPPROPRIATEDSURPLUS $ 13,844.00 $ - $ 13,844.00

1



SUMMARY OF CASH BALANCES APRIL2015

FEDC 4A Board investment & Checking Account
FEDC 4A Checking Account(Independerit Bank 3124) $ 4.92 $ 124,679.84
FEDC 4A Investment Account (Texpool 0001) $ 26.59 $ 616,763.51
FEDC 4A Certificate of Deposit (Independent Bank) $ 74.31 $ 250,000.00
TOTAL: $ 105.82 $ 991,443.35 $ $ 91,443.35

FCDC 4B Board Investment & Checking Account
FCDC 4B Checking Account (Independent Bank 3035) $ 4.97 $ 98,107.07
FCDC 4B Investment Account (Texpool 0001) $ 3.67 $ 84,857.53
TOTAL: $ 8.64 $ 182,964.60 $ - $ 182,964.60

TIRZ Account
County Tax Deposits (FNB 0815) $ 52,320.82j
TOTAL: $ 52,320.82 $ - $ 52320.82

Note: Salmon color used to indicate an item dedicated to a specific project or need

The Public Funds Investment Act (Sec.2256.008) requires the City’s
Investment Officer to obtain 10 hrs. of continuing education each
period from a source approved by the governing body. Listed below

are courses Daphne Hamlin completed to satisfy that
requirement:

I hereby certify that the City of Farmersville’s Investment Portfolio
is In compliance with the City’s investment strategy as expressed in the
City’s Investment Policy (Resolution 99-17, and with relevant provisions
of the law.

6Tne Hamlin, City Investment Officer

10-2014 NCTCOG - Public Funds nv Act.

05/21/2015

2



C
,)

1,
00

0,
00

0.
00

5
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

G
en

er
al

F
un

d
R

ev
en

ue
P

ro
gr

es
s

B
u
d
g
et

Y
ea

r
1
0
/2

0
1
4

th
ru

9
/2

0
1
5

3
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

3
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

2
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

1,
50

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

—
—

-
.
.
-
—

.
—

-
.
-
—

-
.
.

O
ct

-1
4

N
ov

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

Ja
n-

15
F

eb
-1

5
M

ar
-1

5
A

pr
-1

5
M

ay
-i

S
Ju

n-
15

Ju
l-

15
A

ug
-1

5
S

ep
-1

5

G
en

er
al

F
un

d
R

ev
en

ue
B

ud
ge

t
I

G
en

er
al

F
un

d
Y

-T
-D

A
ct

ua
l



3
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

G
en

er
al

F
un

d
E

xp
en

se
B

u
d
g
et

Y
ea

r
1

0
/2

0
14

th
ru

9
/2

0
1
5

3
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

2
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

1
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

1,
00

0,
00

0.
00

50
0,

00
0.

00

0.
00

J
G

en
er

al
F

un
d

E
x

p
en

se
B

ud
ge

t
•

G
en

er
al

F
un

d
Y

-T
-D

A
ct

ua
l

O
ct

-1
4

N
ov

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

Ja
n-

15
F

eb
-1

5
M

ar
-1

5
A

pr
-1

5
M

ay
-1

5
Ju

n-
15

Ju
l-

15
A

ug
-1

5
S

ep
-1

5



50
0,

00
0

4
5

0
,0

0
0

40
0,

00
0

3
5
0
,0

0
0

30
0,

00
0

25
0,

00
0

20
0,

00
0

15
0,

00
0

10
0,

00
0

50
,0

00

0

S
al

es
T

ax
C

ha
rt

z
•

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

A
pr

M
ay

2
O

1
3

/2
0

1
4

F
Y

—
S

—
—

20
14

/2
01

5F
Y

B
ud

ge
t

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep



14
0,

00
0

12
0,

00
0

10
0,

00
0

80
,0

00

60
,0

00

M
un

ic
ip

al
C

ou
rt

R
ev

en
ue

C
om

pa
ri

so
n

C
ha

rt

D
ec

Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

A
pr

M
ay

—
D

—
—

20
13

/2
01

4F
Y

U
2
0
1
4
/2

0
1
5
F

Y
B

ud
ge

t

16
0,

00
0

40
,0

00

20
,0

00

0

O
ct

N
ov

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep



5
—

2
1

-2
0

1
5

1
1

:2
8

A
M

C
IT

Y
O

F
F

P
A

M
E

R
S

V
IL

L
E

PA
G

E
:

1

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
&

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
R

E
PO

R
T

(U
N

A
U

D
IT

E
D

)

A
S

O
F

:
A

P
R

IL
3
0
T

H
,

2
0
1
5

10
0—

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
FU

N
D

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
SU

M
M

A
R

Y
%

O
F

Y
E

A
R

C
O

M
PL

E
T

E
D

:
5
8
.3

3

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

Y
E

A
R

TO
D

A
T

E
T

O
T

A
L

B
U

D
G

E
T

%
Y

TD

B
U

D
G

E
T

P
E

R
IO

D
A

C
T

U
A

L
E

N
C

U
M

B
E

R
E

D
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
SU

M
M

A
R

Y

D
O

—
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

3
,2

7
7
,7

9
0

2
3

9
,1

9
2

.6
8

2
,2

0
3

,0
9

7
.3

4
0

.0
0

1
,0

7
4

,6
9

2
.6

6
6
7
.2

1

T
O

T
A

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
3
,2

7
7
,7

9
0

2
3

9
,1

9
2

.6
8

2
,2

0
3

,0
9

7
.3

4
0

.0
0

1
,0

7
4
,6

9
2
.6

6
6
7
.2

1

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

SU
M

M
A

R
Y

00
-T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
O

U
T

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
D

O
—

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
O

U
T

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

11
—

M
A

Y
O

R
&

C
IT

Y
C

O
U

N
C

IL

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
,0

4
0

1
7

0
.0

0
1

,1
9

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
8

5
0

.0
0

5
8

.3
3

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
&

P
R

O
F

.
SV

C
S

1
5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1

5
0

.0
0

0
.0

0

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

3
4
,0

0
0

9
6

5
.6

0
1

4
,2

3
8

.0
7

0
.0

0
1
9
,7

6
1
.9

3
4
1
.8

8

C
A

P
IT

A
L

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
11

—
M

A
Y

O
R

&
C

IT
Y

C
O

U
N

C
IL

3
6
,1

9
0

1
,1

3
5

.6
0

1
5

,4
2

8
.0

7
0
.0

0
2
0
,7

6
1
.9

3
4

2
.6

3

1
2
-,

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
1
1
,9

8
8

1
9
,7

3
9
.4

4
1

3
1

,7
5

5
.5

6
0
.0

0
8
0
,2

3
2
.4

4
6
2
.1

5

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
&

P
R

O
F

.
SV

C
S

9
8
,5

5
0

1
8

,7
5

4
.4

8
5
5
,5

8
4
.6

2
0
.0

0
4

2
,9

6
5

.3
8

5
6
.4

0

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

1
0
1
,2

4
0

4
,2

3
7

.3
4

4
4
,0

0
4
.4

6
1
,6

9
6
.8

7
5
5
,5

3
8
.6

7
4
5
.1

4

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

2
1
,1

5
0

8
1
6
.4

8
1
0
,6

9
5
.1

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,4

5
4
.9

0
5

0
.5

7

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
2
0
,5

0
0

6
7

7
.7

3
1
4
,0

0
5
.1

5
0
.0

0
6
,4

9
4
.8

5
6

8
.3

2

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

5
4
,0

4
5

3
,3

7
0
.1

8
2
1
,6

4
8
.8

1
0
.0

0
3
2
,3

9
6
.1

9
4

0
.0

6

C
A

P
IT

A
L

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
2
5
,1

7
7

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
5
,1

7
7
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
12

—
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

5
3
2
,6

5
0

4
7
,5

9
5
.6

5
2

7
7

,6
9

3
.7

0
1
,6

9
6
.8

7
2

5
3

,2
5

9
.4

3
5

2
.4

5

14
-M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L

C
O

U
R

T

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
3

4
,2

5
5

1
0
,1

3
2
.5

2
7
3
,4

5
7
.7

2
0
.0

0
6
0
,7

9
7
.2

8
5

4
.7

2

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
&

P
R

O
F

.
SV

C
S

2
5
,3

0
0

1
,2

5
0
.0

0
1
1
,5

8
4
.6

0
0
.0

0
1
3
,7

1
5
.4

0
4
5
.7

9

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

1
6
,8

0
5

5
9

1
.9

4
1

0
,7

9
5

.5
2

3
6

6
.7

2
5

,6
4

2
.7

6
6
6
.4

2

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

1
,2

0
0

1
0

1
.7

6
6

5
1

.6
8

0
.0

0
5
4
8
.3

2
5

4
.3

1

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
1
1
,0

0
0

7
6
6
.5

5
3

,0
8

6
.7

6
0
.0

0
7
,9

1
3
.2

4
2
8
.0

6

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

8
,2

0
0

3
7
4
.6

7
4
,9

4
5
.1

9
0
.0

0
3

,2
5

4
.8

1
6
0
.3

1

C
A

P
IT

A
L

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
14

—
M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L

C
O

U
R

T
1
9
6
,7

6
0

1
3
,2

1
7
.4

4
1
0
4
,5

2
1
.4

7
3
6
6
.7

2
9
1
,8

7
1
.8

1
5

3
.3

1

15
—

L
IB

R
A

R
Y

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

9
4

,6
7

1
7
,3

2
8
.9

3
5

2
,2

9
8

.9
1

0
.0

0
4
2
,3

7
2
.0

9
5
5
.2

4

C
O

N
T

P.
A

C
T

S
&

P
R

O
F

.
SV

C
S

2
5
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

3
6
,2

6
0

2
,0

0
4
.7

5
1
5
,9

6
5
.4

7
0
.0

0
2
0
,2

9
4
.5

3
4

4
.0

3

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

9
,7

5
0

2
0
1
.0

1
4
,4

4
4
.2

0
0
.0

0
5

,3
0

5
.8

0
4

5
.5

8

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
3
,7

0
0

2
0
4
.8

4
2

,1
2

2
.5

0
0
.0

0
1

,5
7

7
.5

0
5

7
.3

6

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

5
,7

0
0

2
0

5
.5

0
2
,8

9
2
.4

1
0
.0

0
2

,8
0

7
.5

9
5
0
.7

4



5
—

2
1
-2

0
1
5

1
1
:2

8
A

M
C

IT
Y

O
F

F
A

R
M

E
R

S
V

IL
L

E
P

A
G

E
:

2

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
&

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
R

E
P

O
R

T
(U

N
A

U
D

IT
E

D
)

A
s

O
F

:
A

P
R

IL
3

0
T

H
,

2
0

1
5

10
0—

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
FU

N
D

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
SU

M
M

A
R

Y
$

O
F

Y
E

A
R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
:

5
8

.3
3

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

Y
E

A
R

T
O

D
A

T
E

T
O

T
A

L
B

U
D

G
E

T
$

Y
T

U

B
U

D
G

E
T

P
E

R
IO

D
A

C
T

U
A

L
E

N
C

U
M

B
E

R
E

D
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

C
A

P
IT

A
L

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
1
5
,0

0
0

1
,0

2
5

.4
4

8
,2

9
7
.6

9
0
.0

0
6

,7
0

2
.3

1
5

5
.3

2

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
O

.D
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
15

—
L

IB
R

A
R

Y
1

6
5

.3
3

1
1

0
,9

7
0

.4
7

8
6
,0

2
1
.1

8
0
.0

0
7

9
,3

0
9

.8
2

5
2

.0
3

1
6
—

C
IV

IC
/C

E
N

T
E

R

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

1
6
,5

0
0

4
0

7
.1

9
6
,0

6
5
.5

7
0
.0

0
1

0
,4

3
4

.4
3

3
6
.7

6

T
O

T
A

L
16

—
C

IV
IC

/C
E

N
T

E
R

1
6
,5

0
0

4
0

7
.1

9
6

,0
6

5
.5

7
0
.0

0
1
0
,4

3
4
.4

3
3
6
.7

6

2
1

-P
O

L
IC

E
D

E
P

T
.

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

7
3
0
,2

4
0

5
3

,5
7

6
.2

7
3
8
3
,6

1
3
.5

2
0_

D
o

3
4
6
,6

2
6
.4

8
5

2
.5

3

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
&

P
R

O
F

.
SV

C
S

4
3
,4

0
0

8
,2

1
5
.9

8
3
4
,0

9
6
.6

5
0
.0

0
9
,3

0
3
.3

5
7
8
.5

6

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

1
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
3
4
.4

8
0
.0

0
9
6
5
.5

2
3
.4

5

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

6
9
,9

8
2

6
,8

9
2
.5

9
3
2
,9

3
0
.4

2
1

,7
1

1
.0

9
3
5
,3

4
0
.4

9
4

9
.5

0

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

3
6
,5

8
0

9
0
3
.7

9
1
4
,6

2
7
.1

1
0
.0

0
2
1
,9

5
2
.8

9
3
9
.9

9

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
5
9
,1

0
0

5
,7

9
5

.1
4

2
6
,4

2
5
.5

3
0
.0

0
3

2
,6

7
4

.4
7

4
4

.7
1

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

2
4
,6

8
6

4
8
4
.5

7
1
6
,5

7
8
.0

4
1
,0

6
8
.0

4
7
,0

3
9
.9

2
7

1
.4

8

C
A

P
IT

A
L

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
3
8
,3

4
4

1
9
7
.3

2
)

7
,6

1
6

.0
2

0
.0

0
3

0
,7

2
7

.9
8

1
9

.8
6

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
21

—
P

O
L

IC
E

D
E

P
T

.
1
,0

0
3
,3

3
2

7
5
,6

7
3
.0

2
5
1
5
,9

2
1
.7

7
2

,7
7

9
.1

3
4
8
4
,6

3
1
.1

0
5

1
.7

0

22
—

F
IR

E
D

E
P

T
.

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
7
3
,5

4
6

7
,5

0
7
.6

0
6
9
,6

4
7
.1

4
0
.0

0
1
0
3
,8

9
8
.8

6
4

0
.1

3

b
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

&
P

R
O

F
.

SV
C

S
4

6
,9

1
4

1
0

,0
5

6
.8

1
3
0
,3

2
5
.8

3
0
.0

0
1
6
,5

8
8
.1

7
6
4
.6

4

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

1
,5

0
0

0
.0

0
4
2
3
.2

4
0
.0

0
1

,0
7

6
.7

6
2

8
.2

2

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

4
4

,5
6

7
1
,7

4
3
.2

1
1
8
,4

3
7
.2

7
2

8
3

.5
2

2
5

,8
4

6
.2

1
4

2
.0

1

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

7
2
0

1
0
5
.9

8
5

5
9

.9
0

0
.0

0
1

6
0

.1
0

7
7
.7

6

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
4
1
,5

0
0

1
,5

1
1
.4

4
2
7
,7

3
5
.1

3
0
.0

0
1

3
,7

6
4

.8
7

6
6

.8
3

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

1
6
,5

0
0

3
2
6
.4

4
8

,8
6

4
.4

4
0
.0

0
7

,6
3

5
.5

6
5

3
.7

2

C
A

P
IT

A
l

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
8
5
,0

3
3

8
5
,0

3
3
.0

0
8
5
,0

3
3
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1

0
0

.0
0

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
S

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
22

—
F

IR
E

D
E

P
T

.
4
1
0
,2

8
0

1
0
6
,2

8
4
.4

8
2
4
1
,0

2
5
.9

5
2
8
3
.5

2
1
6
8
,9

7
0
.5

3
5

8
.8

2

34
—

ST
R

E
E

T
SY

ST
E

M

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
2
5
,3

6
0

1
3

,4
3

2
.5

9
6

8
,0

0
3

.7
1

0
.0

0
5
7
,3

5
6
.2

9
5
4
.2

5

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
&

P
R

O
F

.
SV

C
S

1
7
,3

0
0

0
.0

0
2

,0
9

0
.3

6
0
.0

0
1
5
,2

0
9
.6

4
1

2
.0

8

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

5
2
,0

0
0

6
,7

6
6
.1

6
4
3
,1

1
9
.0

3
8
0
0
.0

0
8
,0

8
0
.9

7
8
4
.4

6

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

6
,5

0
0

8
5

4
.2

8
1
,9

0
0
.3

5
0
.0

0
4
,5

9
9
.6

5
2

9
.2

4

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

5
2
,7

4
0

3
0
6
.6

3
4

,2
3

1
.2

9
0
.0

0
4
8
,5

0
8
.7

1
8

.0
2

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
1
2
,1

5
0

3
7
2
.1

2
5
,0

4
1
.1

5
0
.0

0
7
,1

0
8
.8

5
4

1
.4

9

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

5
0
0

2
0

3
.4

0
8

6
8

.0
6

0
.0

0
1

3
6

8
.0

6
)

1
7

3
.6

1

C
A

P
IT

A
L

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
34

—
ST

R
E

E
T

SY
ST

E
M

2
6
6
,5

5
0

2
1
,9

3
5
.1

8
1

2
5

,2
5

3
.9

5
8
0
0
.0

0
1
4
0
,4

9
6
.0

5
4
7
.2

9

6
0
-P

U
B

L
IC

W
O

R
K

S
B

L
D

G

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

6
1
,0

4
0

8
,6

4
4
.0

2
7

2
,9

8
7

.8
2

0
.0

0
C

1
1
,9

4
7
.8

2
>

1
1
9
.5

7

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
&

P
R

O
F

.
SV

C
S

1
6
,0

0
0

1
6
5
.0

0
3
,8

0
5
.1

1
3

,8
4

0
.0

0
8

,3
5

4
.8

9
4

7
.7

8

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

2
9
,0

0
0

7
7

5
.7

5
3

7
,3

5
7

.9
1

0
.0

0
(

8
,3

5
7

.9
1

>
1

2
8

.6
2

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

1
1
3
,0

6
5

1
,6

5
5
.3

3
1

1
,5

7
3

.8
8

2
,5

8
7
.8

7
9

8
,9

0
3

.2
5

1
2

.5
3

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

1
3
,0

2
0

6
6
8
.1

6
9

,6
8

1
.2

7
0
.0

0
3

,3
3

8
.7

3
7
4
.3

6

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
3
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
3
6
0
.3

8
0
.0

0
2

,6
3

9
.6

2
1
2
.0

1



5—
21

—
20

15
1
1
:2

8
A

N
C

IT
Y

O
F

F
A

R
N

E
R

S
V

IL
L

E
PA

G
E

:
3

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
&

E
X

PE
N

SE
R

E
PO

R
T

(U
N

A
U

D
IT

E
D

)

A
S

O
F

:
A

P
R

IL
30

T
H

,
20

15

10
0-

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
FU

N
D

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
SU

M
M

A
R

Y
%

O
F

Y
E

A
R

C
O

M
PL

E
T

E
D

:
5
6
.3

3

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

Y
E

A
R

T
O

D
A

T
E

T
O

T
A

L
B

U
D

G
E

T
%

Y
T

O

B
U

D
G

E
T

P
E

R
IO

D
A

C
T

U
A

L
E

N
C

U
M

B
E

R
E

D
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

0
0
.0

0
7
0
.6

1
0
.0

0
C

7
0
.6

1
>

0
.0

0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
2
5
,1

7
7

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
5
,1

7
7
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
60

—
P

U
B

L
IC

W
O

R
K

S
B

L
D

G
2
6
0
,3

0
2

1
1
,9

0
8
.2

6
1
3
5
,8

3
6
.9

8
6

,4
2

7
.8

7
1
1
8
,0

3
7
.1

5
5

4
.6

5

39
—

PA
R

K
S

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

4
0
,0

3
5

3
,3

1
2
.9

4
1
9
,3

1
3
.7

0
0
.0

0
2
0
,7

2
1
.3

0
4
8
.2

4

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
&

P
R

O
F

.
SV

C
S

8
2
,7

5
0

8
,3

1
4

.3
0

1
6

,6
1

6
.6

0
0
.0

0
6

6
,1

3
3

.4
0

2
0

.0
8

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

2
2
,7

5
0

1
,7

4
9
.7

2
4
,3

8
7
.1

0
2

,6
5

6
.5

0
1

5
,7

0
6

.4
0

3
0
.9

6

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

1
6
,5

0
0

3
7

.4
5

6
,9

1
7
.9

8
0
.0

0
9
,5

8
2
.0

2
4

1
.9

3

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

7
5

;8
0

0
6
0
.0

0
2

1
,0

8
7

.9
0

0
.0

0
5
4
,7

1
2
.1

0
2

7
.8

2

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
1
5
,0

0
0

3
7
2
.1

2
1

,9
4

6
.4

4
0
.0

0
1
3
,0

5
3
.5

6
1

2
.9

8

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

2
5
0

0
.0

0
6
4
9
.9

8
0
.0

0
C

3
9

9
.9

8
)

2
5
9
.9

9

C
A

P
IT

A
L

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
3
0
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
39

—
PA

R
K

S
2
8
3
,0

8
5

1
3
,8

4
6
.5

3
7
0
,9

1
9
.7

0
2
,6

5
6
.5

0
2

0
9

,5
0

0
.8

0
2
5
.9

9

71
—

D
E

B
T

S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
E

B
T

S
E

R
V

IC
E

1
0
6
,8

1
0

0
.0

0
1
0
6
,9

8
8
.4

6
0

.0
0

(
1
7
8
.4

6
)

1
0
0
.1

7

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
71

—
D

E
B

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
1
0
6
,8

1
0

0
.0

0
1
0
6
,9

8
8
.4

6
0
.0

0
C

1
7
8
.4

6
)

1
0
0
.1

7

T
D

T
hL

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
3
,2

7
7
,7

9
0

3
0

2
,9

7
3

.8
2

1
,6

8
5
,6

7
6
.8

0
1

5
,0

1
0

.6
1

1
,5

7
7
,1

0
2
.5

9
5
1
.8

9

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
O

V
E

R
/C

U
N

D
E

R
)

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
0

(
6

3
,7

8
1

.1
4

)
5
1
7
,4

2
0
.5

4
C

1
5

,0
1

0
.6

1
)>

5
0
2
,4

0
9
.9

3
)

0
.0

0



5
—

2
1
-2

0
1
5

1
1

:2
8

A
N

C
IT

Y
O

F
F

A
R

N
E

R
S

V
IL

L
E

PA
G

E
:

4

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
&

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
R

E
PO

R
T

(U
N

A
U

D
IT

E
D

)

A
S

O
F

:
A

P
R

IL
30

T
H

,
2

0
1

5

10
0-

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
FU

N
D

%
O

F
Y

E
A

R
C

O
M

PL
E

T
E

D
:

5
0

.3
3

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

Y
E

A
R

TO
D

A
T

E
T

O
T

A
L

B
U

D
G

E
T

%
Y

T
D

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

B
U

D
G

E
T

P
E

R
IO

D
A

C
T

U
A

L
E

N
C

U
M

B
E

R
E

D
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

00
—

R
E

V
E

N
U

E

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
1
1
.0

0
0

A
D

V
A

L
O

R
E

M
TA

X
7
2
6
,5

1
8

1
0
,1

3
2
.8

7
6
7
0
,7

0
5
.6

2
0
.0

0
5
5
,0

1
2
.3

8
9
2
.3

2

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
1
2
.0

0
0

C
C

C
O

W
FE

E
C

O
U

R
T

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
1
3
.0

0
0

D
E

L
.

T
A

X
,P

E
N

.
&

IN
T

.
1
0
,0

0
0

1
,1

3
8

.2
4

6
,6

5
7
.9

1
0
.0

0
3

,1
4

2
.0

9
6

8
.5

8

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
1
4
.0

0
0

C
C

C
O

N
y

FE
E

U
T

IL
IT

Y
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
1
5
.0

0
0

T
IR

Z
1
5
,0

0
0

4
,8

3
8

.4
7

3
9
,5

5
2
.7

6
0
.0

0
(

2
4
,5

5
2
.7

6
)

2
6
3
.6

9

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
2
1
.0

0
0

S
A

L
E

S
TA

X
4
5
0
,0

0
0

2
8
,7

9
5
.4

4
2

4
8

,1
3

9
.2

3
0
.0

0
2
0
1
,2

6
0
.7

7
5

5
.2

8

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
2
2
.0

0
0

B
E

V
E

R
A

G
E

TA
X

8
5
0

3
8

0
.4

2
1
,6

7
2
.6

3
0
.0

0
8
2
2
.6

3
)

1
9

6
.7

8

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
3
0
.0

0
0

F
R

A
N

C
H

IS
E

F
E

E
S

—
G

A
R

B
A

G
E

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
3
1
.0

0
0

F
R

A
N

C
H

IS
E

F
E

E
S

—
G

A
S

2
2
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
2
9
,5

1
9
.4

7
0
.0

0
(

7
,5

1
9
.4

7
)

1
3

4
.1

8

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
3
2
.0

0
0

SK
Y

B
E

A
N

1
8
,0

0
0

4
,8

6
0

.0
0

3
4
,0

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
3
,9

8
0
.0

0
7

0
.8

8

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
3
3
.0

0
0

E
L

E
C

.
FU

N
D

F
R

A
N

C
H

IS
E

F
E

E
5
,5

0
0

8
0

1
.4

9
5

,5
4

0
.6

0
0
.0

0
4

0
.6

0
)

1
0
0
.7

4

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
3
4
.0

0
0

F
R

A
N

C
H

IS
E

F
E

E
S

—
T

E
L

E
.

5
,0

0
0

2
2

4
.2

3
1
,2

0
6
.5

6
0
.0

0
3

,7
1

3
.4

4
2

5
.7

3

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
3
5
.0

0
0

F
R

A
N

C
H

IS
E

F
E

E
S

—
C

A
B

L
E

1
3
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
6
,0

2
8
.3

5
0
.0

0
6

,9
7

1
.6

5
4

6
.3

7

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
3
6
.0

0
0

F
R

A
N

C
H

IS
E

F
E

E
S

—
O

T
H

E
R

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
4
1
.0

0
0

P
E

R
M

IT
S

&
IN

S
P

E
C

T
IO

N
S

2
5
,0

0
0

1
,6

5
8
.2

6
2
7
,2

3
2
.2

5
0
.0

0
C

2
,2

3
2

.2
5

)
1

0
8

.9
3

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
4
2
.0

0
0

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

&
Z

O
N

IN
G

F
E

E
S

2
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
4
3
.0

0
0

F
E

E
S

1
0
0

0
.0

0
4
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
5
.0

0
4

5
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
4
4
.0

0
0

P
E

N
A

L
T

IE
S

1
5
0
,0

0
0

1
0
,2

0
2
.6

6
7
9
,4

6
4
.8

2
0
.0

0
7

0
,5

3
5

.1
8

5
2

.9
8

1
O

.0
O

.5
7
4
5
.0

O
O

C
N

T
Y

F
IR

E
R

U
N

S
1
1
0
,9

9
7

5
4
,7

6
4
.0

6
1
0
9
,5

2
8
.1

1
0
.0

0
1
,4

6
8
.8

9
9

6
.6

8

1
0
.O

O
.5

7
4
6
.O

0
0

O
N

IO
N

SH
E

D
R

E
N

T
A

L
1
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
3

5
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
6
5
0
.0

0
3

5
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
4
7
.0

0
0

C
O

U
N

TY
L

IB
R

A
R

Y
FU

N
D

1
4
,8

0
0

3
,0

2
7

.0
4

7
,6

5
4
.0

8
0
.0

0
7
,1

4
5
.9

2
5

1
.7

2

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
4
8
.0

0
0

M
IC

R
O

C
H

IP
PR

O
G

R
A

M
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
4
9
.0

0
0

N
U

N
.

C
T

.
B

L
D

G
.

S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
5
0
.0

0
0

M
A

IN
S

T
R

E
E

T
E

V
E

N
T

S
0

2
0

0
.0

0
)

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
5
1
.0

0
0

M
U

M
.

C
T

.
T

E
C

H
N

O
L

O
G

Y
FU

N
D

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
5
4
.0

0
0

G
R

A
N

T
PR

O
C

E
E

D
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
5
8
.0

0
0

T
—

M
O

B
L

IE
L

E
A

SE
1
5
,2

0
5

1
,3

9
5

.6
4

9
,7

6
9

.4
8

0
.0

0
5
,4

3
5
.5

2
6

4
.2

5

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
5
9
.0

0
0

G
A

M
IN

G
M

A
C

H
IN

E
L

IC
E

N
S

E
9
,1

0
5

0
.0

0
2

5
5

.0
0

0
.0

0
8

,8
5

0
.0

0
2
.8

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
6
0
.0

0
0

SH
O

SU
PP

O
R

T
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
6
2
.0

0
0

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
E

A
R

N
E

D
2
5
0

7
7

.7
1

3
1

3
.7

0
0
.0

0
C

6
3

.7
0

)
1

2
5

.4
8

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
6
3
.0

0
0

FE
O

C
4A

S
T

A
F

F
SU

PP
O

R
T

6
0
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
6
4
.0

0
0

FC
D

C
IM

PR
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
6
5
.0

0
0

R
E

N
T

E
.

T
X

.
M

ED
C

T
R

.
1
2
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
0
.0

0
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
5
8
.3

3

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
6
6
.0

0
0

FE
O

C
IM

PR
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

FU
N

D
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
6
7
.0

0
0

O
T

H
E

R
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

0
0
.0

0
2
9
2
.6

5
0
.0

0
C

2
9
2
.6

5
)

0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
6
8
.0

0
0

S
W

B
E

L
L

L
E

A
SE

5
,4

0
0

0
.0

0
5
,4

2
2
.5

3
0
.0

0
C

2
2
.5

3
)

1
0

0
.4

2

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
6
9
.0

0
0

O
T

H
E

R
IN

C
O

M
E

2
5
,0

0
0

4
0
5
.7

4
8
,2

4
5
.9

3
0
.0

0
1
6
,7

5
4
.0

7
3

2
.9

8

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
7
0
.0

0
0

C
.C

.
C

H
IL

D
SA

FE
T

Y
D

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
7
1
.0

0
0

A
T

H
L

E
C

T
IC

C
O

M
PL

E
X

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
7
2
.0

0
0

P
U

B
L

IC
W

O
R

K
S

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
1
2
,2

3
3

0
.0

0
1

3
,2

5
6

.2
5

0
.0

0
C

1
,0

2
3
.2

5
)

1
0
8
.3

6

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
7
3
.0

0
0

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
R

E
SC

U
E

3
,4

0
0

0
.0

0
4
,5

3
0
.9

2
0
.0

0
C

1
,1

3
0
.9

2
)

1
3

3
.2

6

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
7
4
.0

0
0

A
LA

R
M

FE
E

2
,5

0
0

2
5
.0

0
5
5
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,9

5
0
.0

0
2
2
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
7
5
.0

0
0

T
E

X
A

S
FO

R
E

ST
S

E
R

V
IC

E
B

R
A

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
7
6
.0

0
0

L
IB

R
A

R
Y

G
R

A
N

T
T

IE
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
7
7
.0

0
0

B
R

IC
K

C
A

M
PA

IG
N

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
7
8
.0

0
0

PA
R

K
D

E
D

IC
A

T
IO

N
FE

E
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
9
0
.0

0
0

C
O

U
R

T
EO

Y
C

O
R

R
E

C
T

IO
N

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0



5—
21

—
20

15
1
1
:2

8
jU

l
C

IT
Y

O
F

F
A

R
M

F
R

S
V

IL
L

E
PA

G
E

;
5

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
6

E
X

PE
N

SE
R

E
PO

R
T

(U
N

A
U

D
IT

E
D

)

A
S

O
F

:
A

P
R

IL
3
0
T

h
,

2
0

1
5

10
0-

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
FU

N
D

%
O

F
Y

E
A

R
C

O
M

PL
E

T
E

D
;

5
8

.3
3

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

Y
E

A
R

T
O

D
A

T
E

T
O

T
A

L
B

U
D

G
E

T
%

Y
T

D

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

B
U

D
G

E
T

P
E

R
IO

D
A

C
T

U
A

L
E

N
C

U
M

B
E

R
E

D
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

1
0

0
.0

0
.5

1
9

1
.0

0
0

4E
SU

PP
O

R
T

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
9
2
.0

0
0

A
D

M
.S

U
P

P
O

R
T

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
2
0
,7

1
0

1
,7

2
5
.8

3
1
2
,0

8
0
.8

1
0
.0

0
8
,6

2
9
.1

9
5
8
.3

3

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
9
3
.0

0
0

R
E

N
T

R
E

C
E

IV
E

D
3
,6

0
0

3
0
0
.0

0
2

,1
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,5

0
0
.0

0
5

8
.3

3

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
9
4
.0

0
0

C
IV

IC
R

E
N

T
5
;5

0
0

8
1

2
.5

0
2

,5
1

2
.5

0
0
.0

0
2
,9

8
7
.5

0
4

5
.6

8

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
9
5
.0

0
0

4B
SA

L
A

R
Y

5
9
,8

0
9

0
.0

0
5
9
,3

8
0
.6

2
0
.0

0
4
2
8
.3

8
9
9
.2

8

1
0

0
.0

0
.5

7
9

6
.0

0
0

K
C

S
R

A
IL

W
A

Y
M

O
W

IN
G

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
9
7
.0

0
0

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

2
3
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
2
4
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1

1
,0

0
0
.0

0
)

1
0

4
.3

5

1
0

0
.0

0
.5

7
9

8
.0

0
0

S
T

E
P

PR
O

G
R

A
M

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
9
9
.0

0
0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

L
E

A
S

E
R

E
FU

N
D

IN
G

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

9
3
9
.0

0
0

FO
R

E
ST

R
Y

SV
C

G
R

A
N

T
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

9
9
1
.0

0
0

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
S

IN
—

O
T

H
E

R
FU

N
D

S
1

,3
4

4
,3

2
5

1
1
2
,0

2
7
.0

8
7
8
4
,1

8
9
.5

6
0
.0

0
5
6
0
,1

3
5
.4

4
5
8
.3

3

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

9
9
2
.0

0
0

S
A

L
E

O
F

F
IX

E
D

A
S

S
E

S
T

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

9
9
4
.0

0
0

L
E

A
S

E
PU

R
C

H
A

SE
PR

O
C

E
E

D
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

9
9
5
.0

0
0

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
S—

R
E

SE
R

V
E

1
3

5
,3

8
8

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1

3
5

,3
8

8
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

9
9
8
.0

0
0

T
R

A
N

S
.I

N
—

G
E

N
.F

N
D

.S
U

R
P

L
U

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

1
0
0
.0

0
.5

9
9
9
.0

0
0

T
R

A
N

S
.I

N
—

P
A

R
K

IM
P

S
U

R
P

L
U

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
00

—
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

3
,2

7
7
,7

9
0

2
3
9
,1

9
2
.6

8
2

,2
0

3
,0

9
7

.3
4

0
.0

0
1

,0
7

4
,6

9
2

.6
6

6
7
.2

1

T
O

T
A

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

3
,2

7
7
,7

9
0

2
3
9
,1

9
2
.6

8
2

,2
0

3
,0

9
7

.3
4

0
.0

0
1
,0

7
4
,6

9
2
.6

6
6
7
.2

1



1,
00

0,
00

0

90
0,

00
0

80
0,

00
0

70
0,

00
0

60
0,

00
0

50
0,

00
0

4
0

0
,0

0
0

30
0,

00
0

20
0,

00
0

10
0,

00
0

C
ity

W
at

er
S

al
es

0

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

-

-
_

_
_

-
-
r
_

_
-
r

Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

A
pr

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep

—
s—

—
2
0
1
3
/2

0
1
4

FY
—

1
—

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

FY
B

u
d

g
et



C
,)

1
,4

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

1,
20

0,
00

0.
00

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

80
0,

00
0.

00

60
0,

00
0.

00

40
0,

00
0.

00

W
at

er
F

un
d

E
xp

en
se

B
ud

ge
t

Y
ea

r
1
0
/2

0
1
4

th
ru

9
/2

0
1
5

20
0,

00
0.

00

0.
00

—
-
-

—
-
-
-
-
—

-
-
—

—
-
-
-
-
-
—

—
.
-

O
ct

-1
4

N
ov

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

Ja
n-

15
F

eb
-1

5
M

ar
-1

5
A

pr
-1

5
M

ay
-1

5
Ju

n-
15

Ju
l-

15
A

ug
-1

5
S

ep
-1

5

W
at

er
F

un
d

E
xp

en
se

B
ud

ge
t

•
W

at
er

F
un

d
Y

-T
-D

A
ct

ua
l



1,
20

0,
00

0

1,
00

0,
00

0

80
0,

00
0

60
0,

00
0

4
0

0
,0

0
0

20
0,

00
0

O
ct

N
ov

W
at

er
R

ev
en

ue
C

om
pa

ri
so

n
C

ha
rt

D
ec

Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

A
pr

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep

—
0

—
2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4
FY

•
2

0
1

4
/2

0
1

5
FY

B
u
d
g
et



5
—

2
1

-2
0

1
5

1
1
:2

8
A

M
C

IT
Y

O
F

F
A

R
N

E
R

S
V

IL
L

E
PA

G
E

:
1

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
&

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
R

E
PO

R
T

)U
N

A
U

D
IT

E
O

)

A
S

O
F

:
A

P
R

IL
3
0
T

H
,

2
0
1
5

70
0-

W
A

T
E

R
FU

N
D

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
SU

M
M

A
R

Y
%

O
F

Y
E

A
R

C
O

M
PL

E
T

E
D

:
5

8
.3

3

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

Y
E

A
R

TO
D

A
T

E
T

O
T

A
L

B
U

D
G

E
T

$
Y

TD

B
U

D
G

E
T

P
E

R
IO

D
A

C
T

U
A

L
E

N
C

U
M

B
E

R
E

D
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
SU

M
M

A
R

Y

00
—

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
1

,0
6

0
,1

5
3

7
5

,1
5

6
.0

0
5
5
3
,6

5
3
.7

4
0
.0

0
5

0
6

,4
9

9
.2

6
5

2
.2

2

T
O

T
A

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
1

,0
6

0
,1

5
3

7
5
,1

5
6
.0

0
5
5
3
,6

5
3
.7

4
0
.0

0
5

0
6

,4
9

9
.2

6
5

2
.2

2

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

SU
M

M
A

R
Y

D
O

-T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

O
U

T

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
00

—
T

R
A

N
SF

E
R

O
U

T
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

12
—

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

7
1
,8

3
5

4
,2

4
9

.8
6

4
1
,2

0
3
.4

0
0
.0

0
3

0
,6

3
1

.6
0

5
7

.3
6

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
&

P
R

O
F

.
SV

C
S

3
0
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

1
2

,3
4

4
1

,0
5

0
.7

5
1
7
,5

9
3
.3

1
0
.0

0
(

5
,2

4
9
.3

1
)

1
4

2
.5

3

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

2
0
,0

0
0

4
5

9
.6

4
2

,7
6

8
.0

9
0
.0

0
1
7
,2

3
1
.9

1
1
3
.8

4

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
5
0
0

3
2

0
.0

0
4

3
7

.0
0

7
4

.9
3

(
1

1
.9

3
)

1
0

2
.3

9

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

2
.4

0
0

5
2

8
.2

5
4
,3

1
6
.6

1
0
.0

0
(

1
,9

1
6
.6

1
)

1
7

9
.8

6

T
O

T
A

L
12

—
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

1
0
7
.3

7
9

6
,6

0
7
.5

0
6

6
,3

1
8

.4
1

7
4
.9

3
4
0
,9

8
5
.6

6
6

1
.8

3

(.7
1

52
—

ST
O

R
M

W
A

TE
R

SY
ST

E
M

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
&

P
R

O
F

.
SV

C
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
9
.0

0
0
.0

0
0

.0
0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
52

—
ST

O
R

M
W

A
TE

R
SY

ST
E

M
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

35
—

W
A

T
E

R
D

E
P

T
.

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
6

8
,9

4
7

1
5
,1

1
8
.7

7
1

0
9

,0
7

1
.2

5
0
.0

0
5
9
,8

7
5
.7

5
6

4
.5

6

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
&

P
R

O
F

.
SV

C
S

5
5
,6

5
5

1
,5

6
9
.7

1
4
0
,1

7
0
.9

0
0
.0

0
1

5
,4

8
4

.1
0

7
2

.1
8

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

7
9
,0

0
0

(
2
,8

1
8
.0

8
)

1
5

,1
2

3
.3

3
2
.0

0
6

3
,8

7
4

.6
7

1
9
.1

5

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

5
,0

0
0

1
,0

0
6

.1
8

2
,1

4
0
.0

5
0
.0

0
2

,8
5

9
.9

5
4

2
.8

0

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

2
6
,2

5
0

2
7
1
.8

7
1
3
,1

2
2
.5

5
0
.0

0
1

3
,1

2
7

.4
5

4
9

.9
9

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
5
8
7
.7

6
5

4
8
,5

1
8
.9

6
2

9
3

,4
2

0
.3

3
0

.0
0

2
9

4
,3

4
4

.6
7

4
9

.9
2

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

8
,0

0
0

8
9

.7
6

5
,1

3
1
.3

5
0
.0

0
2
,8

6
8
.6

5
6
4
.1

4

C
A

P
IT

A
L

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
0

1
0
,5

1
5
.2

4
1
0
,5

1
5
.2

4
0
.0

0
(

1
0

,5
1

5
.2

4
)

0
.0

0

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
S

1
2
1
,8

7
4

1
0
,1

5
6
.1

6
7
1
,0

9
3
.1

2
0
.0

0
5

0
,7

8
0

.8
8

5
8

.3
3

T
O

T
A

L
35

—
W

A
TE

R
D

E
P

T
.

1
,0

5
2

,4
9

1
8
4
,4

2
8
.5

7
5

5
9

,7
8

8
.1

2
2
.0

0
4
9
2
,7

0
0
.8

8
5
3
.1

9

T
O

T
A

L
E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S

1
,1

5
9

,8
7

0
9
1
,0

3
6
.0

7
6
2
6
,1

0
6
.5

3
7

6
.9

3
5
3
3
,6

8
6
.5

4
5
3
.9

9

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
O

V
E

R
/C

U
N

D
E

R
)

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
9
9
,7

1
7
))

1
5
,0

8
0
.0

7
))

7
2
,4

5
2
.7

9
)

C
7

6
.9

3
)

(
2
7
,1

8
7
.2

8
)

7
2
.7

4



5—
21

—
20

15
1

1
:2

8
A

N
C

IT
Y

O
F

F
A

R
M

E
R

S
V

IL
L

E
PA

G
E

:
2

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
&

E
X

PE
N

SE
R

E
PO

R
T

(U
N

A
U

D
IT

E
D

)

A
S

O
F

:
A

P
R

IL
30

T
H

,
2

0
1

5

70
0—

W
A

T
E

R
FU

N
D

%
O

F
Y

E
A

R
C

O
M

PL
E

T
E

D
:

5
8

.3
3

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

Y
E

A
R

TO
D

A
T

E
T

O
T

A
L

B
U

D
G

E
T

$
Y

TD

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

B
U

D
G

E
T

P
E

R
IO

D
A

C
T

U
A

L
E

N
C

U
M

B
E

R
E

D
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

00
-R

E
V

E
N

U
E

7
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
1
4
.0

0
0

C
C

C
O

N
y.

FE
E

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

7
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
4
3
.0

0
0

C
O

N
N

E
C

T
FE

E
3
,5

0
0

1
2
0
.0

0
1
,3

4
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
,1

6
0
.0

0
3
8
.2

9

7
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
4
4
.0

0
0

P
E

N
A

L
T

IE
S

1
8
,0

0
0

8
7
3
.3

1
7
,3

6
8
.1

5
0
.0

0
1

0
,6

3
1

.8
5

4
0

.9
3

7
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
4
5
.0

0
0

A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

A
N

D
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

9
9
,0

0
0

9
,4

0
0
.3

1
7
5
,9

7
4
.8

9
0
.0

0
2

3
,0

2
5

.1
1

7
6

.7
4

7
0

0
.0

0
.5

7
4

6
.0

0
0

IM
PA

C
T

FE
E

4
,0

5
5

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,0

5
5
.0

0
0
.0

0

7
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
5
1
.0

0
0

C
IT

Y
W

A
TE

R
S

A
L

E
S

9
3

D
,8

9
8

6
4

,7
1

5
.4

5
4

6
7

,7
1

8
.0

1
0
.0

0
4

6
3

,1
7

9
.9

9
5

0
.2

4

7
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
5
3
.0

0
0

W
A

TE
R

T
A

P
F

E
E

S
3
,7

0
0

0
.0

0
6
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
,1

0
0
.0

0
1

6
.2

2

7
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
6
2
.0

0
0

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
E

A
R

N
E

D
5
0
0

4
6

.9
3

3
6
7
.6

9
0
.0

0
1
3
2
.3

1
7

3
.5

4

7
0

0
.0

0
.5

7
6

7
.0

0
0

O
T

H
E

R
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

0
0
.0

0
2

8
5

.0
0

0
.0

0
(

2
8
5
.0

0
(

0
.0

0

7
0

0
.0

0
.5

7
6

9
.0

0
0

O
T

H
E

R
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

5
0
0

0
.0

0
O

0
0

0
.0

0
5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
00

—
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

1
,0

6
0

,1
5

3
7
5
,1

5
6
.0

0
5
5
3
,6

5
3
.7

4
0
.0

0
5

0
5

,4
9

9
.2

6
5

2
.2

2

T
O

T
A

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

1
,0

6
0

,1
5

3
7
5
,1

5
6
.0

0
5
5
3
,6

5
3
.7

4
0
.0

0
5

0
6

,4
9

9
.2

6
5

2
.2

2

C
)



90
0,

00
0

80
0,

00
0

70
0,

00
0

60
0,

00
0

50
0,

00
0

40
0,

00
0

30
0,

00
0

20
0,

00
0

10
0,

00
0

C
ity

S
ew

er
S

al
es

0

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

A
pr

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep

—
.-

E
—

—
20

13
/2

01
4F

Y
2
0
1
4
/2

0
1
5
F

Y
B

ud
ge

t



W
as

te
w

at
er

R
ev

en
ue

C
om

pa
ri

so
n

C
ha

rt
1,

00
0,

00
0

90
0,

00
0

1
80

0,
00

0

70
0,

00
0

60
0,

00
0

50
0,

00
0

40
0,

00
0

30
0,

00
0

20
0,

00
0

10
0,

00
0 0

—

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

A
pr

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep

—
D

—
2

0
1

3
/2

0
1

4
F

Y
S

2
0
1
4
/2

0
1
5
F

Y
B

u
d
g
et



W
as

te
w

at
er

F
un

d
E

xp
en

se
B

ud
ge

t
Y

ea
r

1
0

/2
0

14
th

ru
9

/2
0

15

7
0

0
,
0

0
0

.
0

0
-
-
—

-
-
—

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
.
-

-

60
0,

00
0.

00

5
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0

4
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0

C
D

30
0,

00
0.

00

20
0,

00
0.

00

10
0,

00
0.

00

0.
00

O
ct

-1
4

N
ov

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

Ja
n-

15
F

eb
-1

5
M

ar
-1

5
A

pr
-1

5
M

ay
-1

5
Ju

n-
15

Ju
l-

15
A

ug
-1

5
S

ep
-1

5

W
as

te
W

at
er

F
un

d
E

xp
en

se
B

ud
ge

t
•

W
as

te
W

at
er

F
un

d
Y

-T
-D

A
ct

ua
l



5—
21

—
20

15
1

1
:2

8
A

M
C

IT
Y

O
F

F
A

R
M

E
R

S
V

IL
L

E
PA

G
E

:
1

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
&

E
X

PE
N

SE
R

E
PO

R
T

(I
JN

A
U

D
IT

E
D

)

A
S

O
F

:
A

P
R

IL
30

T
H

,
2

0
1

5

70
5—

W
A

ST
E

W
A

T
E

R

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
SU

M
M

A
R

Y
%

O
F

Y
E

A
R

C
O

M
PL

E
T

E
D

:
5

8
.3

3

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

Y
E

A
R

TO
D

A
T

E
T

O
T

A
L

B
U

D
G

E
T

%
Y

TD

B
U

D
G

E
T

P
E

R
IO

D
A

C
T

U
A

L
E

N
C

U
M

B
E

R
E

D
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
SU

M
M

A
R

Y

00
—

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
8
9
2
,3

1
0

7
8

,4
6

9
.7

4
5
3
0
,2

8
6
.8

5
0

.0
0

3
6
2
,0

2
3
.1

5
5

9
.4

3

T
O

T
A

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
8
9
2
,3

1
0

7
8
,4

6
9
.7

4
5
3
0
,2

8
6
.8

5
0
.0

0
3
6
2
,0

2
3
.1

5
5

9
.4

3

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

SU
M

M
A

R
Y

12
-A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

4
6

.7
2

4
1
,4

8
2
.5

3
8
,8

8
8
.2

1
0
.0

0
3
7
,8

3
5
.7

9
1

9
.0

2

T
O

T
A

L
12

—
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

4
6

,7
2

4
1
,4

8
2
.5

3
8

,8
8

8
.2

1
0
.0

0
3

7
,8

3
5

.7
9

1
9

.0
2

3
6-

W
A

ST
E

W
A

T
E

R
SY

ST
E

M

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
1

9
,3

5
0

4
,5

4
3
.9

9
3
6
,5

2
6
.2

6
0
.0

0
8
2
,8

2
3
.7

4
3
0
.6

0

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
&

P
R

O
F

.
SV

C
S

1
1
,5

0
0

9
6
8
.6

4
4
,9

5
6
.8

9
0
.0

0
6
,5

4
1
.1

1
4

3
.1

2

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

1
8
,5

0
0

1
,1

1
7

.0
6

1
0
,6

1
5
.1

4
1
.0

0
7

,8
8

3
.8

6
5
7
.3

8

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

3
0
9
,2

5
2

3
3
,4

6
3
.1

8
1
8
3
,3

6
0
.0

6
0
.0

0
1
2
5
,8

9
2
.9

4
5
9
.2

9

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

1
1
,0

0
0

7
2

8
.9

9
5
,2

6
8
.9

6
0
.0

0
5

,7
3

1
.0

4
4
7
.9

0

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
1

1
,0

0
0

3
7

2
.1

2
4
,0

8
7
.4

8
0
.0

0
6
,9

1
2
.5

2
3

7
.1

6

IS
C

E
L

L
A

N
E

O
U

S
1

5
,5

0
0

0
.0

0
3

9
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
5
,4

6
1
.0

0
0
.2

5

B
T

S
E

R
V

IC
E

2
0
,7

1
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
0
,7

1
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
8
0
,0

0
0

1
8

,9
5

4
.1

5
1
8
,9

5
4
.1

5
0
.0

0
6

1
,0

4
5

.8
5

2
3
.6

9

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
S

1
4
4
,6

0
1

1
2
,0

5
0
.1

0
8
4
,3

5
0
.7

0
0
.0

0
6

0
,2

5
0

.3
0

5
8

.3
3

T
O

T
A

L
36

—
W

A
ST

E
W

A
T

E
R

SY
ST

E
M

7
4

1
,4

1
4

7
2
,1

9
8
.2

3
3
4
8
,1

6
0
.6

4
1
.0

0
3

9
3

,2
5

2
.3

6
4

6
.9

6

T
O

T
A

L
E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S

7
8
8
,1

3
8

7
3
,6

8
0
.7

6
3
S

7
,0

4
8
.8

5
1
.0

0
4

3
1

,0
8

8
.1

5
4

5
.3

0

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
O

V
E

R
/

(U
N

D
E

R
)

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
1
0
4
,1

7
2

4
,7

8
8
.9

8
1

7
3

,2
3

8
.0

0
(

1
.0

0
))

6
9

,0
6

5
.0

0
)

1
6

6
.3

0



5—
21

—
20

15
1
1
:2

8
A

M
C

IT
Y

O
F

F
A

R
II

E
R

S
V

IL
L

E
P

A
G

E
:

2

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
&

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
R

E
PO

R
T

(U
N

A
U

D
IT

E
D

)

A
S

O
F

:
A

P
R

IL
30

T
H

,
2
0
1
5

70
5—

W
A

ST
E

W
A

T
E

R
%

O
F

Y
E

A
R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
:

5
8

.3
3

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

Y
E

A
R

T
O

D
A

T
E

T
O

T
A

L
B

U
D

G
E

T
%

Y
TD

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

B
U

D
G

E
T

P
E

R
IO

D
A

C
T

U
A

L
E

N
C

U
M

B
E

R
E

D
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

00
—

R
E

V
E

N
U

E

7
0
5
.0

0
.5

7
4
1
.0

0
0

SE
W

E
R

S
A

L
E

S
8
7
0
,9

9
0

7
7
,0

6
4
.5

6
5
1
9
,5

7
8
.1

4
0
.0

0
3

5
1

,4
1

1
.8

6
5

9
.6

5

7
0

5
.0

0
.5

7
4

3
.0

0
0

F
E

E
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

7
0

5
.0

0
.5

7
4

4
.0

0
0

P
E

N
A

L
T

IE
S

1
6
,8

8
0

1
,4

0
5
.1

8
9
,4

0
8
.1

1
0
.0

0
7
,4

7
1
.2

9
5
5
.7

4

7
0

5
.0

0
.5

7
4

5
.0

0
0

A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

A
N

D
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

7
0

5
.0

0
.5

7
4
6
.0

0
0

IM
P

A
C

T
F

E
E

4
,4

4
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
4
,4

4
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

7
0

5
.0

0
.5

7
5

3
.0

0
0

SE
W

E
R

T
A

P
F

E
E

0
0
.0

0
1

,3
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,3

0
0
.0

0
)

0
.0

0

7
0

5
.0

0
.5

7
6

2
.0

0
0

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
E

A
R

N
E

D
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

7
0

5
.0

0
.5

7
6

7
.0

0
0

O
T

hE
R

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

7
0

5
.0

0
.5

7
6

8
.0

0
0

SE
W

E
R

B
A

C
K

U
P

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

7
0

5
.0

0
.5

9
9

5
.0

0
0

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
IN

R
E

SE
R

V
E

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
00

—
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

8
9
2
,3

1
0

7
8
,4

6
9
.7

4
5

3
0

,2
8

6
.8

5
0
.0

0
3

6
2

,0
2

3
.1

5
5

9
.4

3

T
O

T
A

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

8
9
2
,3

1
0

7
8

,4
6

9
.7

4
5

3
0

,2
8

6
.8

5
0
.0

0
3

6
2

,0
2

3
.1

5
5

9
.4

3



F’
-,

4
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

4
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

3
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

3
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

2
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

2,
00

0,
00

0.
00

1,
50

0,
00

0.
00

E
le

ct
ri

c
F

un
d

R
ev

en
ue

P
ro

gr
es

s
B

ud
ge

t
Y

ea
r

1
0
/2

0
1
4

th
ru

9
/2

0
1
5

11
,0

00
,0

00
.0

0

50
0,

00
0.

00

0.
00

A
pr

-1
5

M
ay

-i
S

Ju
n-

15
ju

l-
15

E
le

ct
ri

c
F

un
d

R
ev

en
ue

B
ud

ge
t

A
ug

-1
5

S
ep

-1
5

O
ct

-1
4

N
ov

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

Ja
n-

15
F

eb
-1

5
M

ar
-1

5

•
E

le
ct

ri
c

F
un

d
R

ev
en

ue
C

um
ul

at
iv

e
A

ct
ua

l



E
le

ct
ri

c
F

un
d

S
u
rc

h
ar

g
e

R
ev

en
u
e

P
ro

g
re

ss
B

ud
ge

t
Y

ea
r

1
0

/2
01

4
th

ru
9
/2

0
1
5

16
0,

00
0.

00

14
0,

00
0.

00

12
0,

00
0.

00

10
0,

00
0.

00

(‘
3

80
,0

00
.0

0

60
,0

00
.0

0

40
,0

00
.0

0

20
,0

00
.0

0

0
.
0

0
•
.
—

-
—

-
—

—
—

-
—

O
ct

-1
4

N
ov

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

Ja
n-

15
F

eb
-1

5

E
le

ct
ri

c
S

ur
ch

ar
ge

R
ev

en
ue

B
ud

ge
t

M
ar

-1
5

A
pr

-1
5

M
ay

-1
5

Ju
n-

15
Ju

l-
iS

A
ug

-1
5

S
ep

-1
5

•
E

le
ct

ri
c

S
ur

ch
ar

ge
R

ev
en

ue
C

um
ul

at
iv

e
A

ct
ua

l



5—
21

—
20

15
1

1
:2

8
A

M
C

IT
Y

O
F

F
A

R
M

E
R

S
V

IL
L

E
PA

G
E

:
1

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
&

E
X

PE
N

SE
R

E
PO

R
T

(U
N

A
U

D
IT

E
D

)

A
S

O
F

:
A

P
R

IL
30

T
H

,
2

0
1

5

1
1
5
-E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

FU
N

D

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
SU

M
M

A
R

Y
8

O
F

Y
E

A
R

C
O

M
PL

E
T

E
D

:
5

8
.3

3

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

Y
E

A
R

TO
D

A
T

E
T

O
T

A
L

B
U

D
G

E
T

8
Y

TD

B
U

D
G

E
T

P
E

R
IO

D
A

C
T

U
A

L
E

N
C

U
M

B
E

R
E

D
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
SU

M
M

A
R

Y

00
—

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
4

,3
4

7
,1

7
1

2
5

2
,3

7
7

.0
8

1
,8

3
4
,7

8
6
6
4

0
.0

0
2
,5

1
2
,3

8
4
.3

6
4

2
.2

1

T
O

T
A

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
4

,3
4

7
,1

7
1

2
5

2
,3

7
7

.0
8

1
,8

3
4

,7
8

6
.6

4
0
.0

0
2
,5

1
2
,3

8
4
.3

6
4
2
.2

1

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

SU
M

M
A

R
Y

12
-A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

9
2
,1

3
0

4
,1

7
1

.5
1

2
6
,9

3
8
.2

3
0
.0

0
6
5
,1

9
1
.7

7
2

9
.2

4

T
O

T
A

L
12

—
A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

9
2
,1

3
0

4
,1

7
1
.5

1
2
6
,9

3
8
.2

3
0
.0

0
6
5
,1

9
1
.7

7
2

9
.2

4

37
—

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
D

E
P

T
.

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

3
7
7
,6

8
9

2
6
,8

4
2
.4

5
2

0
3

,7
7

9
.3

2
0
.0

0
1
7
3
,9

0
9
.6

8
5

3
.9

5

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
&

P
R

O
F

.
S

V
C

S
7
7
,8

0
0

4
,6

3
3
.5

8
3
8
,2

8
5
.4

8
0
.0

0
3
9
,5

1
4
.5

2
4

9
.2

1

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
D

O
S

1
4

4
,5

0
0

2
6

,3
2

8
.0

4
7
8
,5

0
7
.9

9
3

5
6

.4
4

6
5
,6

3
5
.5

7
5

4
.5

8

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

2
1
,1

5
0

3
8

3
.9

1
5
,9

4
2
.4

1
0
.0

0
1

5
,2

0
7

.5
9

2
8

.1
0

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

3
,8

4
0

6
8
0
.3

7
4

,4
7

0
.4

0
0
.0

0
C

6
3
0
.4

0
)

1
1
6
.4

2

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
2

,0
3

8
,6

8
2

1
3

5
,8

6
4

.8
6

9
4
3
,8

5
8
.5

2
0
.0

0
1

,0
9

4
,8

2
3

.4
8

4
6

.3
0

JS
C

E
L

L
A

N
E

O
U

S
1
2
,0

0
0

4
3

8
.3

7
)

1
,9

3
1
.1

1
0
.0

0
1

0
,0

6
8

.8
9

1
6

.0
9

B
T

S
E

R
V

IC
E

1
2

7
,0

9
1

0
.0

0
1

2
3

,7
3

7
.5

0
0
.0

0
3
,3

5
3
.5

0
9

7
.3

6

C
A

P
IT

A
L

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
5

5
1

,6
3

5
4
,0

8
0
.4

2
2
7
4
,4

9
7
.7

2
1
8
7
,3

7
8
.6

0
8

9
,7

5
8

.6
8

8
3

.7
3

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
S

1
,0

1
7

,7
5

0
8
3
,5

6
2
.5

0
5
8
4
,9

3
7
.5

0
0
.0

0
4

3
2

,8
1

2
.5

0
5

7
.4

7

T
O

T
A

L
37

—
E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

D
E

P
T

.
4

,3
7

2
,1

3
7

2
8

1
,9

3
7

.7
6

2
,2

5
9
,9

4
7
.9

5
1
8
7
,7

3
5
.0

4
1

,9
2

4
,4

5
4

.0
1

5
5

.9
8

T
O

T
A

L
E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S

4
,4

6
4

,2
6

7
2
8
6
,1

0
9
.2

7
2
,2

8
6
,8

8
6
.1

8
1
6
7
,7

3
5
.0

4
1

,9
8

9
,6

4
5

.7
8

5
5

.4
3

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
D

V
E

R
/)

U
N

D
E

R
)

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
C

1
i7

0
9
6
)

C
3

3
,7

3
2

.1
9

)
C

4
5
2
,0

9
9
.5

4
)

C
1
8
7
,7

3
5
.0

4
)

5
2

2
,7

3
8

.5
8

5
4

6
.4

2



5—
21

—
20

15
1
1
:2

8
A

N
C

IT
Y

O
F

F
A

R
M

E
R

S
V

IL
L

E
PA

G
E

:
2

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
5

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
R

E
P

O
R

T
(U

R
A

U
D

IT
E

D
)

A
S

O
F

:
A

P
R

IL
3

0
T

H
,

2
0

1
5

7
1
5
-E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

FU
N

D
‘5

O
F

Y
E

A
R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
:

5
8
.3

3

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

Y
E

A
R

T
O

D
A

T
E

T
O

T
A

L
B

U
D

G
E

T
%

Y
T

D

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

B
U

D
G

E
T

P
E

R
IO

D
A

C
T

U
A

L
E

N
C

U
M

B
E

R
E

D
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

00
—

R
E

V
E

N
U

E

7
1
5
.0

0
.5

7
4
3
.0

0
0

F
E

E
S

3
,0

0
0

2
7
0
.0

0
3
,9

5
7
.5

0
0
.0

0
(

9
5
7
.5

0
)

1
3
1
.9

2

7
1
5
.0

0
.5

7
4
4
.0

0
0

P
E

N
A

L
T

IE
S

1
5
,0

0
0

3
,9

3
1
.6

1
2
9
,8

5
0
.0

1
0
.0

0
1
4
,8

5
0
.0

1
)

1
9
9
.0

0

7
1
5
.0

0
.5

7
4
5
.0

0
0

A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

A
N

D
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

0
0
.0

0
1

1
2
6
,3

3
9
.0

0
)

0
.0

0
1
2
6
,3

3
9
.0

0
0
.0

0

7
1
5
.0

0
.5

7
5
1
.0

0
0

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IT

Y
S

A
L

E
S

3
,5

7
4
,9

2
1

2
2
5
,6

6
4
.7

1
1
,7

8
5
,5

6
0
.7

4
0
.0

0
1
,7

8
9
,3

6
0
.2

6
4
9
.9

5

7
1
5
.0

0
.5

7
5
5
.0

0
0

SU
R

C
H

A
R

G
E

1
5
0
,0

0
0

9
,9

5
3
.4

1
7
5
,6

5
3
.5

8
0
.0

0
7
4
,3

4
6
.4

2
5
0
.4

4

7
1
5
.0

0
.5

7
5
7
.0

0
0

PC
A

(P
O

W
ER

C
O

ST
A

D
J)

3
2
4
,0

0
0

1
2
,5

4
4
.4

7
4
5
,7

0
2
.3

2
0
.0

0
2
7
8
,2

9
7
.6

8
1
4
.1

1

7
1
5
.0

0
.5

7
6
2
.0

0
0

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
2
5
0

1
2
.8

8
1
0
2
.2

1
0
.0

0
1
4
7
.7

9
4
0
.8

8

7
1
5
.0

0
.5

7
6
1
.0

0
0

O
T

H
E

R
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

0
0
.0

0
2
0
,2

9
9
.2

8
0
.0

0
(

2
0
,2

9
9
.2

8
)

0
.0

0

7
1
5
.0

0
.5

7
9
9
.0

0
0

4A
SU

PP
O

R
T

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

7
1
5
.0

0
.5

9
9
5
.0

0
0

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
IN

E
L

E
C

N
O

T
E

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

7
1
5
.0

0
.5

9
9
8
.0

0
0

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

IN
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

S
2
8
0
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
8
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
00

—
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

4
,3

4
7
,1

7
1

2
5
2
,3

7
7
.0

8
1
,8

3
4
,7

8
6
.6

4
0
.0

0
2
,5

1
2
,3

8
4
.3

6
4
2
2
1

T
O

T
A

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

4
,3

4
7
,1

7
1

2
5
2
,3

7
7
.0

8
1
,8

3
4
,7

8
6
.6

4
0
.0

0
2
,5

1
2
,3

8
4
.3

6
4
2
.2

1

F’
.,

C
,,



70
0,

00
0.

00

R
ef

us
e

F
un

d
R

ev
en

ue
P

ro
gr

es
s

B
ud

ge
t

Y
ea

r
1
0
/2

0
1
4

th
ru

9
/2

0
1
5

6
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

4
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

F
) o

30
0,

00
0.

00

20
0,

00
0.

00

10
0,

00
0.

00

0.
00

O
ct

-1
4

N
ov

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

ia
n

-i
S

F
eb

-1
5

M
ar

-1
5

R
ef

us
e

F
un

d
R

ev
en

ue
B

ud
ge

t

Ju
n-

15
Ju

l-
iS

A
u

g
-i

s
S

ep
-1

5
A

pr
-1

5
M

ay
-1

5

•
R

ef
us

e
F

un
d

Y
-T

-D
A

ct
ua

l



70
0,

00
0.

00

60
0,

00
0.

00

5
0

0
,0

0
0
.0

0

4
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0

k
)

—
I

3
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

20
0,

00
0.

00

10
0,

00
0.

00

0.
00

R
ef

us
e

F
un

d
E

xp
en

se
B

u
d
g
et

Y
ea

r
1

0
/2

0
14

th
ru

9
/2

0
1
5

O
ct

-1
4

N
ov

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

Ja
n-

15
F

eb
-1

5
M

ar
-1

5
A

pr
-1

5
M

ay
-1

5

R
ef

us
e

F
un

d
E

xp
en

se
B

ud
ge

t
—

R
ef

us
e

F
un

d
Y

-T
-D

A
ct

ua
l

Ju
n-

15
4u

1-
15

A
ug

-1
5

S
ep

-1
5



5—
21

—
20

15
1
1
:2

8
A

M
C

IT
Y

O
F

F
A

R
N

E
P

S
V

IL
L

E
P

A
G

E
:

1

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
&

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
R

E
P

O
R

T
(U

N
A

U
D

IT
E

D
)

A
S

O
F

:
A

P
R

IL
3O

T
N

,
2

0
1

5

72
0—

R
E

F
U

S
E

FU
N

D

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
SU

M
M

A
R

Y
%

O
F

Y
E

A
R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
:

5
8

.3
3

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

Y
E

A
R

T
O

D
A

T
E

T
O

T
A

L
B

U
D

G
E

T
%

Y
T

D

B
U

D
G

E
T

P
E

R
IO

D
A

C
T

U
A

L
E

N
C

U
M

B
E

R
E

D
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
SU

M
M

A
R

Y

00
—

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
5
8
5
,7

4
8

3
7
,1

6
4
.7

6
2
5
7
,7

3
6
.2

?
0
.0

0
3

2
8

,0
1

1
.7

3
4

4
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
5
8
5
,7

4
8

3
7

,1
6

4
.7

6
2
5
7
,7

3
6
.2

7
0
.0

0
3

2
8

,0
1

1
.7

3
4
4
.0

0

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

SU
M

M
A

R
Y

3
2
-R

E
F

U
S

E
D

E
P

T
.

P
E

R
S

O
N

N
E

L
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
&

P
R

O
F

.
SV

C
S

4
6
7
,6

2
0

2
9

,0
9

8
.6

9
1
9
8
,6

6
8
.8

1
0
.0

0
2

6
8

,9
5

1
.1

9
4
2
.4

9

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

7
5
,1

0
0

6
,2

5
8
.3

3
4

3
,8

0
8

.3
1

0
.0

0
3
1
,2

9
1
.6

9
5
8
.3

3

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

2
,4

0
0

2
0

0
.0

0
1
,4

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
5

8
.3

3

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

5
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
S

3
5
,6

2
8

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
3
5
,6

2
8
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
32

—
R

E
F

U
S

E
D

E
P

T
.

5
9
5
,7

4
8

3
5
,5

5
7
.0

2
2
4
3
,8

7
7
.1

2
0
.0

0
3

4
1

,8
7

0
.8

8
4
1
.6

4

F’
.)

]-
W

A
T

E
R

D
E

P
T

.

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
35

—
W

A
T

E
R

D
E

P
T

.
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S

5
8
5
,7

4
8

3
5
,5

5
7
.0

2
2

4
3

,8
7

7
.1

2
0
.0

0
3

4
1

,8
7

0
.8

8
4
1
.6

4

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
O

V
E

R
/(

U
N

D
E

R
)

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
0

1
,B

0
7

.7
4

1
3

,8
5

9
.1

5
0
.0

0
(

1
3
,8

5
9
.1

5
)

0
.0

0



5—
21

—
20

15
1

1
:2

8
A

M
C

IT
Y

O
F

F
A

R
M

E
R

S
V

IL
L

E
PA

G
E

:
2

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
&

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
R

E
PO

R
T

(U
N

A
U

D
IT

E
D

)

A
S

O
F

:
A

P
R

IL
30

T
H

,
2

0
1

5

72
0—

R
E

F
U

S
E

FU
N

D
%

O
F

Y
E

A
R

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
:

5
8

.3
3

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

Y
E

A
R

T
o

D
A

T
E

T
O

T
A

L
B

U
D

G
E

T
%

Y
T

O

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

B
U

D
G

E
T

P
E

R
IO

D
A

C
T

U
A

L
E

N
C

U
M

B
E

R
E

D
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

00
—

R
E

V
E

N
U

E

7
2

0
.0

0
.5

7
4

3
.0

0
0

FE
E

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

7
2

0
.0

0
.5

7
4

4
.0

0
0

P
E

N
A

L
T

IE
S

7
,5

0
0

5
2
0
.1

4
3
,5

6
0
.3

8
0
.0

0
3
,9

3
9
.6

2
4
7
.4

7

7
2

0
.0

0
.5

7
4

5
.0

0
0

A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

A
N

D
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

7
2
0
.0

0
.5

7
5
1
.O

O
D

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
T

R
A

SH
C

O
L

L
2
7
3
,9

0
0

2
1
,4

8
0
.1

0
1

4
8

,6
5

5
.7

5
0
.0

0
1
2
5
,2

4
4
.2

5
5
4
.2

7

7
2

0
.0

0
.5

7
5

2
.0

0
0

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
T

R
A

SH
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

2
9
1
,4

5
3

1
5
,1

4
1
.4

9
1
0
5
,2

8
3
.5

4
0
.0

0
1

8
6

,1
6

9
.4

6
3

6
.1

2

7
2
0
.0

D
.5

7
5
5
.0

0
0

R
E

C
Y

C
L

E
4
,9

7
0

1
7
.5

0
1
2
1
.1

0
0
.0

0
4
,8

4
8
.9

0
2
.4

4

7
2
0
.0

0
.5

7
6
2
.0

0
0

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
E

A
R

N
E

D
1
2
5

5
.5

3
3

0
.5

0
0
.0

0
9

4
.5

0
2
4
.4

0

7
2
0
.0

0
.5

7
6
7
.0

0
0

O
T

H
E

R
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

7
2

0
.0

0
.5

7
6

8
.0

0
0

B
R

U
SH

A
N

D
C

H
IP

P
IN

G
A

N
D

P
0

0
.0

0
8

5
.0

0
0
.0

0
C

8
5

.0
0

)
0
.0

0

7
2

0
.0

0
.5

7
7

0
.0

0
0

FI
N

N
7
,8

0
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
,8

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
00

—
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

5
9

5
,7

4
8

3
7
,1

6
4
.7

6
2

5
7

,7
3

6
.2

7
0
.0

0
3

2
8

,0
1

2
.7

3
4

4
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

5
8

S
,7

4
8

3
7
,1

6
4
.7

6
2

5
7

,7
3

6
.2

7
0
.0

0
3

2
8

,0
1

1
.7

3
4
4
.0

0

“3 CD



5—
21

—
20

15
1
1
:2

8
A

N
C

IT
Y

O
F

F
A

R
M

E
R

S
V

IL
L

E
PA

G
E

:
1

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
&

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
R

E
PO

R
T

(U
N

A
U

O
IT

C
O

)

A
S

O
F

:
A

P
R

IL
3
0
T

H
,

2
0

1
5

50
0—

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
&

S
IN

K
IN

G

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
SU

M
M

A
R

Y
%

O
F

Y
E

A
R

C
O

M
PL

E
T

E
D

:
5

8
.3

3

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

Y
E

A
R

T
O

D
A

T
E

T
O

T
A

L
B

U
D

G
E

T
%

Y
TD

B
U

D
G

E
T

P
E

R
IO

D
A

C
T

U
A

L
E

N
C

U
M

B
E

R
E

D
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
SU

M
M

A
R

Y

00
—

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
5
1
2
,3

6
8

7
,5

8
6
.6

3
4

9
3

,1
6

0
.3

1
0
.0

0
1
9
,2

0
7
.6

9
9
6
.2

5

T
O

T
A

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
5
1
2
,3

6
8

7
,5

8
6
.6

3
4

9
3

,1
6

0
.3

1
0
.0

0
1
9
,2

0
7
.6

9
9
6
.2

5

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

SU
M

M
A

R
Y

00
-T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
O

U
T

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
R

A
N

SF
E

R
S

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
00

—
T

R
A

N
SF

E
R

O
U

T
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

71
-D

E
B

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E

D
E

B
T

S
E

R
V

IC
E

5
1
2
,3

6
8

0
.0

0
4
3
6
,0

7
3
.3

4
0
.0

0
7

6
,2

9
4

.6
6

8
5

.1
1

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
71

—
D

E
B

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
5
1
2
,3

6
8

0
.0

0
4
3
6
,0

7
3
.3

4
0
.0

0
7
6
,2

9
4
.6

6
8

5
.1

1

T
O

T
A

L
E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S

5
1
2
,3

6
8

0
.0

0
4
3
6
,0

7
3
.3

4
0

.0
0

7
6
,2

9
4
.6

6
8

5
.1

1

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
O

V
E

R
/(

U
N

D
E

R
)

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
0

7
,5

8
6
.6

3
5

7
,0

8
6

.9
7

0
.0

0
(

5
7
,0

8
6
.9

7
)

0
.0

0



5—
22

—
20

15
1
1
:2

8
A

N
C

IT
Y

O
F

F
A

R
M

E
R

S
V

IL
L

E
PA

G
E

:
2

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
&

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
R

E
PO

R
T

(U
N

A
U

D
IT

E
D

)

A
S

O
F

:
A

P
R

IL
3
0
T

H
,

2
0
1
5

5
0

0
-I

N
T

E
R

E
S

T
&

S
IN

K
IN

G
%

O
F

Y
E

A
R

C
O

M
PL

E
T

E
D

:
5

8
.3

3

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

Y
E

A
R

TO
D

A
T

E
T

O
T

A
l,

B
U

D
G

E
T

%
Y

TD

R
E

V
E

N
uE

S
B

U
D

G
E

T
P

E
R

IO
D

A
C

T
U

A
L

E
N

C
U

M
B

E
R

E
D

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
B

U
D

G
E

T

00
-R

E
V

E
N

U
E

5
0

0
.0

0
.5

7
1

1
.0

0
0

A
D

V
A

L
O

R
E

M
TA

X
5
0
6
,7

6
8

7
,0

5
4

.9
0

4
8
9
,5

8
0
.6

1
0
.0

0
1
7
,1

8
7
.3

9
9

6
.6

1

5
0

0
.0

0
.5

7
1

3
.0

0
0

D
E

L
IN

Q
.

T
A

X
,

P
E

N
.

&
IN

T
.

5
,0

0
0

5
1

5
.0

9
3
,4

4
8
.2

4
0_

D
O

1
,5

5
1
.7

6
6

8
.9

6

5
0

0
.0

0
.5

7
1

5
.0

0
0

1
8
5

R
E

SE
R

V
E

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

5
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
5
4
.0

0
0

B
O

N
D

PR
O

C
E

E
D

S
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

5
0

0
.0

0
.5

7
6

2
.0

0
0

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
IN

C
O

M
E

8
0
0

1
6

.6
4

1
3
1
.4

6
0
.0

0
4

6
8

.5
4

2
1

.9
1

5
0
0
.0

0
.5

7
6
9
.0

0
0

O
T

H
E

R
IN

C
O

M
E

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

5
0

0
.0

0
.5

9
9

1
.0

0
0

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
IN

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
00

—
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

5
1

2
,3

6
8

7
,5

8
6

.6
3

4
9

3
,1

6
0

.3
1

0
.0

0
1
9
,2

0
7
.6

9
9

6
.2

5

T
O

T
A

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

5
1
2
,3

6
8

7
,5

8
6
.6

3
4

9
3

,1
6

0
.3

1
0
.0

0
1
9
,2

0
7
.6

9
9

6
.2

5



 

TO:  Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: City Manager Ben White 

DATE:  May 26, 2015 

SUBJECT:   Consider, discuss and act upon renaming an inactive City account at First 
National Bank of Trenton for use as a TIRZ account  

 
 

 Finance Director Daphne Hamlin will address this item. 
 
ACTION:   Approve or deny renaming the inactive City account. 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(III– B)  



 

TO:  Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: City Manager Ben White 

DATE:  May 26, 2015 

SUBJECT:    Consider, discuss and act upon a market adjustment for Community 
Waste Disposal 

 

 Market rate adjustment request is attached. 
 

ACTION:   Approve or deny the rate adjustment as presented.  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(III – C)  



(—)
Community Waste Disposal.com

Since 1984

April 30, 2015

City of Farmersville
Ben ‘White
City Manager
205 South Main Street
Farrnersville, TX 75442

RE: Notice of Request for 2015-2016 Market Adjustment

Dear Ben:

This notice is to inform you of our request for a market adjustment effective October 01, 2015.
Within the next few weeks CWD will be providing to you the details of the requested market
adjustment. In the mean time if you have any question concerning this matter please contact
CWD’s Municipal Coordinator, Robert Medigovich at 972.392.9300 ext. 226 or on his cell at
972.333.6106.

Thank you in advance for your courteous attention to this matter,

Sincerely,

David Dalryrnple
Accounts Receivable Manager

cc: Paula Jackson
cc: Greg Roemer
cc: Dale Pound
cc: Robert Medigovich

- ..

. .,..

:. ‘ -‘ ‘ •:‘.‘,• •. .:
-

-
- . . . 4. -,.

. 2

2010 California Crossing
Dallas, Texas 75220-2310

telephone

972.392.9300 • 817.795.9300
facsimile

972.392.9301



Community Waste Disposal.com
Since 1984

May 13, 2015

Ben White
Cit Manager
City of Fannersville
205 South Main Street
FanTlersville, TX 75442

RE: 2015 Market Adjustment

Dear Ben.

Community Waste Disposal. LP. (CWD) gives notice of a request for a decrease market adjustment as in

accordance with the Citywide Recycling Service contract with the city. I have enclosed the back up to support
our market adjustment request. Enclosed with this notice you will find the most recent publication of the
‘oiiihwest Consumer Price Index Indicators detailing the Dallas-Fort Worth area CPI-U Index. the DOE Gulf
Coast Diesel Prices for both 2015 and 2014, and the adjustment worksheet for your review.

Monthly Charge
Per Residential Ii nil

Kale cUccuve on October 1,2014 $3.14
Rate elfecnve on October 1,2015 $3.03

Robert Medigovcri ill be in contact with you to answer any of your questions. Please call Roheit if you have
my questions. I us mobile number is 972333 6106 or his office number is 972.392.930() x 226.

Thank you in advance for your courteous attention to this matter.

Sincerely

A2a/Ai2/
David Datrymple
Accounts Receivable Manager

Enc: Adj ustment Worksheet
Southwest Consumer Price Index for March 2015
DOE 2014 Diesel Prices
DOE 2015 Diesel Prices

cc. Robert Medigovich
Greg Roemer , -.

Dale Pound ..

r’_. ,,. ; ..;

2010 California Crossing
Dallas, Texas 75220-2310

telephone

972.392.9300 • 817.795.9300
facsimile

972.392.9301



FARMERSVILLE ADJUSTMENT WORKSHEET

Fuel Index -25.98%

March 2015 CPI
CPI Adjustment Factor

CPI Index

Fuel
CurrentRate* S 3.14

Index % for Adj 12.0%
Index Dollars $ 0.38

Index % -25.98%
Adjustment $ (0.10)

2015 Market Adjustment

* Current Rate breakdown;

$ 2.70 Residential Recycling

$ 0.44 Residential HHW

-0.60%
75%

-0.45%

CPI
$ 3.14

88.0%
$ 2.76

-0.45%
(0.01)

(0.11)1

DOE GULF COAST DIESEL PRICES
2014 2015

lstcalendarweek 3.802 3.045
2nd calendar week 3.780 2.964
3rd calendar week 3.771 2.843
4th calendar week 3.772 2.786
5th calendar week 3.775 2.769
6th calendar week 3.788 2.761
7th calendar week 3.783 2.783
8th calendar week 3.806 2.795
9th calendar week 3.793 2.796
10th calendar week 3.814 2.795
11th calendar week 3.803 2.763
12th calendar week 3.800 2.715
13th calendar week 3.804 2.675

Fuel Average 3.792 2.807
Change in Fuel Dollars $ (0.985)

$
$ .

Current Rate $ 3.14
MarketAdjustment $ (0.11)

2015-16 Proposed Rate $ 3.03

$ 3.14 Total



U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics

Southwest Consumer Price Index Indicators
CPI for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U): U.S. City Average, Dallas-Fort Worth, and Houston-Galveston-Brazoria, March 2015

(1982-84=100 unless otherwise noted)
U.S. City Average Dallas-Fort Worth Houston-Galveston-Brazoria

Item and group Index Percent change Index Percent change Index Percent_change

Mar. 12- 1- 2- Mar. 12- 1. 2- Mar. 12- 1- 2-

2015 month month month 2015 month month month 2015 month month month

All items 236.119 -0.1 0.6 1.0 217.487 -0.6 1.2

Food and beverages 245.689 2.3 -0.2 -0.2 249.256 1.9 -0.2

Food 246.045 2.3 -0.3 -0.2 243.570 1.8 -0.4

Food at home 241.588 1.9 -0.5 -0.6 220.403 1.6 -1.4 -1.2 224.018 2.4 0.2 0.2

Food away from home 254.108 2.9 0.2 0.4 279.670 2.0 0.7

Alcoholic beverages 239.437 1.2 0.1 0.3 326.902 2.6 2.7

Housing 236.435 1.9 0.2 0.4 197.523 2.2 0.5

Shelter 276.360 3.0 0.4 0.6 212.118 3.6 0.9 1.4 236.892 4.8 0.6 0.8

Rent of primary residence (1) 283.130 3.5 0.3 0.6 220.211 5.2 0.5 0.9 227.784 6.0 0.2 0.4

Owners equivalent rent of primary

residences (1) (2) 283.244 2.7 0.2 0.4 226.571 3.0 0.5 0.9 220.427 5.2 0.9 0.9

Owners equivalent rent of

primary residence (1)(2) 283.216 2.7 0.2 0.4 226.571 3.0 0.5 0.9 220.427 5.2 0.9 0.9

Fuels and utilities 229.829 -2.3 -0.9 -1.1 224.210 -2.2 -3.0

Household energy 194.967 -4.2 -1.2 -1.6 211.862 -3.2 -2.9 -4.6 140.665 -20.1 -0.9 -5.4

Energy services (1) (3) 197.727 -2.9 -1.5 -1.9 208.345 -2.9 -2.9 -4.7 138.144 -20.1 -0.9 -5.3

Electricity (1) 205.894 0.9 -1.3 -1.1 208.390 2.6 -0.5 -0.5 136.882 -21.3 -1.1 -5.0

Utility (piped) gas service (1) 170.592 -14.4 -1.9 -4.8 152.923 -32.1 -18.7 -28.8 132.832 -13.9 0.0 -7.1

Household furnishings & operations 122.803 -0.6 0.2 0.4 126.361 -1.2 -0.4

Apparel 128.245 -0.5 3.0 4.7 119.623 -0.4 11.2

Transportation 199.363 -8.7 2.8 4.4 201.044 -10.6 4.0

Private transportation 194.270 -9.1 3.0 4.7 202.776 -10.7 4.3

Motor fuel 216.691 -29.2 10.4 16.0 208.304 -33.0 5.2 18.6 199.106 -32.2 9.2 13.5

Gasoline (all types) 215.442 -29.2 10.5 16.4 206.847 -33.1 5.4 19.5 198.468 -32.6 9.9 14.9

Medical care 444.020 2.5 0.3 0.7 411.537 6.8 0.1

Recreation (4) 115.835 0.1 0.2 0.5 111.830 -1.0 -0.6

Education and communication (4) 137.564 0.3 0.0 0.0 137.094 -2.6 -0.2

Other goods and services 412.402 1.4 0.1 0.0 380.736 1.8 0.0
-

SPECIAL INDEXES_(CPI-U)

Energy 204.731 -18.3 4.1 6.3 211.601 -20.2 0.8 5.2 167.723 -27.5 4.6 4.5

All items less shelter 223.014 -1.5 0.7 1.2 220.698 -2.2 1.1

All items less food and energy 241.067 1.8 0.4 0.8 218.207 1.6 1.1

All items (1967 = 100) 707.306 682.244

CPI FOR URBAN WAGE EARNERS AND CLERICAL WORKERS (CPI-W)

All items 231.055 -0.6 0.7 1.2 222.111 -1.1 1.3

All items (1967 = 100) 688.243 684.916

(1) This index series was calculated using a Laspeyres estimator. All other item stratum index series were calculated using a geometric means estimator.

(2) Index on a December 1982=100 base.

(3) This index series was formerly titled Gas (piped) and electricity.

(4) Index on a December 1997=100 base.

Note: The Consumer Price Index (CPI) measures changes in prices of all goods and services purchased for consumption by urban households. The indexes for

fbod at home, energy, and shelter are compiled monthly for Dallas-Fort Worth and Houston. Full surveys, which produce the All Items Indexes and major

components, are compiled every two months. These full surveys are published for the odd-numbered months for Dallas-Fort Worth and for the even-

numbered months for Houston.

Southwest CPI Indicators: Previous Issues

Southwest Homepage

Schedule of Upcoming Releases for the Consumer Price Index

U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics I Southwest Information Office, Suite 221, 525 South Griffin Street, Dallas, TX 75202 I Telephone: 972-850-4800



Transport Topics Online National Fuel Prices Page 1 of 2

2014 DOE REGIONAL DIESEL FUEL PRICES

See below for detailed PADD!geographic information.

Date U.S. East New Central Lower Gulf Rocky West CaliforniaMidwest
Average Coast England Atlantic Atlantic Coast Mountain Coast

3/31 3.975 4.094 4.255 4.241 3.955 3.959 3.604 3.a75 3.600 4.060

3/24 3.986 4.115 4.279 4.277 3.963 3.975 3.600 3.984 4.009 4.081 Eg
3/17 4.003 4.138 4.313 4.314 3.973 3.994 3.803 3.991 4.020 4.087

3/10 4,021 4.158 4.3e2 4.353 3.974 4.013 3.814 4.000 4.042 4.112 Time Fill Fast Fill. Portable
3/3 4.016 4.155 4.389 4.354 3.962 4.019 3.793 3.983 4.038 4,119

CNG Fueling Soions
2/24 4.017 4.148 4.386 4.358 3.947 4.025 3.806 3.950 4.035 4.109

LATEST NEWS

2/17 3.989 4.129 4.373 4.357 3.913 3.993 3.783 3.905 4.000 4.075 FedEx Lawsuit Over Untaxed Cigarettes Joined by
New York State

2/10 3.977 4.116 4.369 4.363 3.884 3.969 3.788 3.868 3.998 4.080
Unpaid Tolls Rise on No-Cash New York City

2/3 3.951 4.070 4.305 4.281 3.868 3.942 3.775 3.860 3.994 4.072 Bridge
Chicago Manufacturing Activity Expands at
Slower Pace in March
Ryder’s Nat-Gas Fleet Drives 20 Million Miles

1/27 3.904 3.996 4.171 4.144 3.852 3.874 3.772 3.863 3.979 4.068 FMCSA Publishes E-Log Rule
Volvo Group to Sell Real Estate in Ewopa

1/20 3.873 3.946 4.118 4.060 3.829 3,830 3.771 3.860 3.966 4.056
More Latest News..

1/13 3.886 3.940 4.107 4.045 3.831 3.854 3.780 3.886 3.996 4.085

1/6 3.910 3.950 4.115 4.046 3.847 3.888 3.802 3.901 4.034 4.119 AdvertIsement

CLICK HERE FOR OLDER PRICES

About DOE regional averages:

DOE’s regional averages are drawn from its weekly national survey of 350 diesel service centers. The stations are
surveyed an Mondays and the results are reported late that day.

DOE divides the country into five geographic districts called Petroleum Administration for Defense Districts (PADD). It
also breaks the East Coast into three subdistricts and treats the state of California as a subdistrict of the West Coast.

The full geographic breakdown is:

• The East Coast (PADD 1) comprises:
- New England Subdistrict (PADD 1A): Conn., Maine, Mass., N.H., RI., Vt.;

Central Attantic Subdistrict (PADD 13): Del., D.C., Md., N.J., N.Y., Pa.; and
Lower Atlantic Subdistrict (PADD 1C): Fla., Ga., NC., S.C., Va., W.Va.

- The Midwest (PADD 2) is Ill., md., Iowa, Kan., Ky., Mich., Minn., Mo., Neb., ND., Ohio, OkIa., S.D., Tenn., Wis.

The Gulf Coast (PADD 3) is Ala., Ark., La., Miss., N.M., Texas.
• Rocky Mountain (PADD 4) is Cola., Idaho, Mont., Utah, Wyo.
• The West Coast (PADD 5) is Alaska, Ariz., Hawatl, Nec., Ore., Wash.; plus Calif.

4:rww4
. ‘ tl

11 /P _l/.___L_..._1

The clean-
fuels future
is upo’n us.

LATEST JOBS

Sales Manager
US - VA - Portsmouth
Confidential

Account Executive - Supply Chain! Logistics
Solution Sales
US - IL - Franklin Park
Penske Logistics

Transportation Safety Professional
US - OR - Clackamas
FTL Inc.

Agents Wanted
US - Nationwide

All /“)fll A

Tell Us How
We’re Doing... Transport Topics

The Newspaper of Trucking and Freight Transportation Welcome Guest L,ogin

Home News & Anelysis Fuel Prices TT Top 100 Rankings Resources Interact Classified Multimedia Events

IT SURPASSED EXPECTATIONS
THE MOMENT IT HIT THE ROAD.

t4j4J

_________________



Transport Topics Online j National Fuel Prices Page 1 of2

LATEST NEWS

Atlanta: Dangerous Hot Spot of Twisting
Highways
Port of Montreal to Spend C$75 Million on
Enhancing Truck Access
Pending Sales of Homes Rises in February

Spending by Consumers Rises Less Than
Expected
Mercedes-Benz Plans First Pickup Truck

Trailer Orders Drop 30% in February

More Lafesi News...

Advertisement

CLC
TraIler Leasing SeIe Consulting

______kansport

Topics
I The Newspaper of Trucking and Freight Transportation Welcome Guest ivBflJO

Home News & Analysis Fuel Prices Top 100 / Top SO Resources Interact Classified Multimedia Events

EtTransportTopics Tell your followers.

2015 DOE REGIONAL DIESEL FUEL PRICES

See below for detailed PADD/geographic information. UVWEB

DRIVER TRAINING

Ieorb.ttnescom

Date
U.S. East New Central Lower MiCWeSI

Gulf Rocky West California
Average Coast England Atlantic Atlantic Coast Mountain Coast

3/30 2.824 2.992 3.164 3.179 2.615 2.727 2.675 2.743 2.945 3.096

3/23 2.864 3.027 3.200 3.231 2.837 2.768 2.715 2.767 3.001 3.152

3/16 2.917 3,082 3.270 3.311 2870 2.820 2.763 2.812 3.064 3,202

3/9 2.944 3,105 3.332 3.333 2.884 2.852 2.795 2.601 3,096 3.233

3/2 2.936 3.083 3.291 3.293 2 660 2.850 2.796 2.779 3.097 3 229

2/23 2.900 3.005 3.173 3.160 2.853 2.826 2.795 2,762 3.065 3.208

2/16 2.665 2.960 3.084 3.084 2.841 2.792 2.783 2.770 2.997 3.142

2/9 2.835 2.930 3.039 3.042 2.822 2.769 2.761 2.776 2.924 3.081

2/2 2.831 2.932 3.028 3.041 2.826 2.765 2.769 2.783 2.866 3.027

1/26 2.866 2.967 3.018 3.078 2.670 2.804 2.786 2.812 2.942 3.090

1/19 2.933 3.018 3.072 3.131 2.918 2.889 2.843 2.884 3.011 3,156

1/12 3.053 3.134 3.195 3.239 3.039 3.010 2.964 3.027 3.126 3.250

1/5 3.137 3.204 3.287 3.303 3.109 3.102 3.045 3.139 3.220 3.341

CLICK HERE FOR 2014 PRICES

About DOE regional averages:

DOE’s regional averages are drawn from its weekly national survey of 350 diesel service centers. The stations are

surveyed on Mondays and the results are reported late that day.

DOE divides the country into five geographic districts called Petroleum Administration for Defense Districts (PADD). It

also breaks the East Coast into three subdistricts and treats the state of California as a subdistrict of the West Coast.

The full geographic breakdown is:

• The East Coast (PADD 1) comprises:
New England Subdistrict (PADD 1A): Conri., Maine, Mass., N.H., RI., Vt.;
Central Atlantic Subdistrict (PADD 1 B): Del., D.C., Md., N.J.. N.Y., Pa.; and

Lower Atlantic Subdistrict (PADD 1 C) : Fla., Ga., NC., S.C., Va,, W.Va.

• The Midwest (PADD 2) is Ill., nd., Iowa, Ran., Ky., Mich., Minn., Mo., Neb., ND., Ohio, Okia., S.D., Tenn., lMs.

• The Gulf Coast (PADD 3) is Ala., Ark., La., Miss., N.M., Texas.

• Rocky Mountain (PADD 4) is Cob,, Idaho, Mont., Utah, W,’o.

• The West Coast (PADD 5) is Alaska, Mz,, Hawaii, Nev.. Ore., Wash.; plus Calif.

franspoitTopics Newsletters
What you need to know.., in your inbox.>>

loll Free: 877-735-3315
contractleasing.net

The way to roll.

LATEST JOBS

Transportation Operations Manager
US - MO - Palmyra
LeeserTX, INC.

LOAD PLANNERSI DISPATCHERS
US - FL - Winter Haven
Indian River Transport Co.

Fleet Maintenance Supervisor
US - MA Franklin
Penske Truck Leasing

SALES PROFESSIONALS
US - Nationwide

1 ,, H /1 ‘/‘U/2O15



 

TO:  Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: City Manager Ben White 

DATE:  May 26, 2015 

SUBJECT:  Consider, discuss and act upon planning services for the JW Spain    
Athletic Complex Project per presentations from Halff Associates, Inc. 
and MESA  

 

 City Manager Ben White will discuss this topic. 
 

ACTION:   Consider awarding the planner for the JW Spain Athletic Complex 

project. 

  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(III – D)  



 

Presenter 

1 



I

7
L-17’

!!E HALFF’

Parks Planning and Development Services for J.W. Spain Athletic Complex

Statement of Qualifications (SOQ)

January 15, 2015

City of Farmersville, Texas



!!! HALFF
Jan. 15, 2015 100814-9791

City Manager Benjamin White, PE
City of Farmersville
205 S. Main Street
Farmersville, TX 75442

RE: SOQ for Parks Planning and Development Services, J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

Dear Mr. White,

Haiff Associates, Inc. has extensive experience in planning and design of athletic complexes across the state of
Texas and has proudly assisted multiple Collin County communities in other types of parks, trails and open
space projects to provide stellar recreational facilities, help improve its residents’ quality of life, and ensure
linkages to existing and future hiking trails.

c With our extensive experience specializing in Athletic Complexes locally and throughout Texas, Halff is ready
to go to work for the City of Farmersville. Through our efforts with other growing communities similar to

0 Farmersville, we know that project dollars are often uncompromising. That is why we take care to maximize

O project dollars, working closely with our clients and project stakeholders to identify the most important needs
and then develop a phased approach that will allow a project to be implemented as funding is available.

O As we note in our statement of qualifications (SOQ), public participation will be an important component to

O help identify those items at the J.W. Spain Athletic Complex that are most essential to park users and
community residents. Through our process of careful listening, confirming what we heard, and helping to
define common goals and values, Halff will develop a successful athletic complex plan that is embraced by

. the community and tailored specifically to residents needs

The Haiff Team and Project Leadership: As you will see in our resume section, Half’s team ofprofessionals has
more than 235 years of combined experience with projects similar to those outlined in the City’s scope of work. We
not only have a wealth of overall expertise and an extensive knowledge base of Collin County, but we also

0 have the enthusiasm and dedication to achieve the City of Farmersville’s project goals.

Q I will serve as Principal-in-Charge, and I have 20 years of similar experience, including work in Collin County. I
am honored to serve as Halff’s Director of Landscape Architecture. Project Manager Francois de Kock is an

0 award-winning project manager and principal planner.

o Please call me at 214-346-6266 or email me at LHughes@Halff.com with any questions about our team or
qualifications. The Half Team is committed to achieving the City’s goals and will attain positive results with

C our thorough understanding of project needs, technical expertise, and our proactive quality control

‘..—\
processes. Halff possesses an exceptional record of meeting project deadlines and providing client-focused
solutions.

Thank you for the opportunity to present our statement of qualifications.

Sincerely,
HALFF ASSOCIATES, INC.

Lj/yHugh,RLA
Principal-in-Charge and Vice President

O
HALFF ASSOCIATES, INC.

1201 NORTH BOWSER ROAD TEL (214) 346-6200 WWWHALFFCOM

RICHARDSON, TX 75081-2275 FAX (214) 739-0095 1



Half Associates, Inc. is proud to offer the City of Farmersville a highly
qualified team that specializes in the parks planning, site concepts/design,
cost estimating, public outreach, and related engineering services the City
requires for the J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan.

Founded in North Texas in 1950, Half provides comprehensive professional

Q services with a staff of approximately 500 engineers, architects and
environmental scientists in 13 offices throughout Texas.

In parks planning, Half knows how to strike a balance between practicality,
sustainability and creativity. We take the time to thoroughly understand

0 the needs of our clients, engage project stakeholders and the public, and
to comprehensively analyze existing conditions. Our landscape architects,

0 planners, and engineers believe that a successful plan involves the synthesis
of new ideas about a community’s future development. We have vast

0 experience gaining consensus among city departments, residents and other project stakeholders. Armed with a
foundation of knowledge and understanding, our team will develop a plan to seamlessly integrate built elements with

O the natural environment while ensuring connectivity to existing trails (such as The Chaparral Trail), open space and
facilities. In fact, we’ve done so on multiple projects in Collin and Denton counties.

We also understand the importance of budgets and schedules. The Half Team will attain positive results with our
thorough understanding of the City’s needs, technical expertise, and our proactive quality control processes. Half
possesses an exceptional record of meeting project deadlines and providing client-focused engineering solutions.

In the past 10 years, Half has successfully planned and designed more than 10 sports parks, several
of which were more than 50 acres in size. During the same time frame, Half successfully planned and
designed approximately 100 significant park and open space projects in Texas, including more than 150
miles oftrails, active recreational facilities as large as 1,500 acres in size, and numerous interpretive facilities.

Meet Our Project Management Team:

Principal-in-Charge Lenny Hughes, RLA, and Project Manager Francois de
Kock, AICP, ASLA, RLA, LEED AP (1201 N. Bowser Road, Richardson, TX 75081;
Office: 214-346-6200) are committed to achieving the City’s project goals.

Mr. Hughes, a Vice President and the firm’s Director of Landscape
Architecture, joined Half Associates in 1995. He has more than 20 years of
experience in urban planning and design, landscape architectural design,
park design and park planning, project management, cost estimates, bidding
and negotiations. Mr. Hughes embraces creative yet sustainable design, and
he has an extensive background in horticulture.

Mr. de Kock joined Half Associates in March 2003 and is an award-winning
project manager/lead principal designer for both urban design and planning
projects. He is highly experienced in urban and environmental planning,

C urban design, landscape architecture, and landscape restoration. He is
known for passionately promoting visionary and sustainable solutions.
As a certified planner, Mr. de Kock draws from his design experience to
develop comprehensive city-wide plans that are creative and flexible. As a
registered landscape architect and urban designer, his planning insights lead
to smarter, more comprehensive urban design solutions. He is enthusiastic
about creative, sustainable development.

Mr. de Kock will serve as Farmersville’s chief point of contact and oversee
all task leaders. He will conduct regular meetings to ensure team
communication and steady project progress. He also will meet as needed
with the City’s Project Manager and produce a regular progress report to
summarize the status, outline key tasks, identify outstanding issues, and
assign responsibilities.

J HALFF

Company & Team Overview

Statement of Qualifications: City of Farmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

Principal-in-Charge
Lenny Hughes, RLA

Project Manager
Francois de Kock, AICP, ASLA, RLA,

LEEDAP

2



Our organization chart of key personnel is as follows:

Statement of Qualifications: City of Farmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

Public Outreach
Holly Becka

Facilities Planning
Everett Spaeth, AlA, LEED AP

(architecture)
Phillip Applebaum, PE (MEP)

Princioal-in-Charge
Lenny Hughes, RLA

I I

Athletic Complex. Landscape
Architecture & Parks Planning
Jim Carrillo, F. AICP, ASLA, RLA

Randy Watson
Jonathan West, RLA

O
Our personnel identified above will be 100 percent available to the City when needed for this project. The table below
represents each individual’s anticipated participation level.

Name %

_____

Name %

Lenny Hughes 20 Holly Becka 15

Francois de Kock 60 Jonathan West 65

Randy Watson 65 Jim Carrillo

o Everett Spaeth 30 David Littleton 25

Phillip Applebaum 25 - -

Awards:

We are proud to have been honored with the following awards for our recent parks projects.

— HGAC — Planning Award, Playbook 2020: The Strategic Parks and Rec Master Plan for Baytown
— Texas Recreation and Parks Society (Statewide) — Park Design Excellence Award, Coppell Town Center
— Texas Recreation and Parks Society (Region Ill) — Park Design Excellence, Coppell Town Center
— American Planning Association (Central Texas Section) — Current Planning Award, Game Plan 2020: Round

C Rock Strategic Parks and Recreation Master Plan
— American Society ofLandscape Architects (Texas Chapter) — Honor Award for Planning & Analysis, Game Plan

o 2020: Round Rock Strategic Parks and Recreation Master Plan
— National Association of Recreation Resource Planners — Excellence in Planning Award, Game Plan 2020:

C Round Rock Strategic Parks and Recreation Master Plan
— Texas Recreation & Parks Society Excellence in Planning Award, Creating Connections: Sugar Land Trails

Master Plan
C — American Planning Association (Texas Chapter) — Project Planning Award, Austin Bicycle Master Plan Update

— American Planning Association (Texas Chapter) — Current Planning Award, Building a Legacy With Our Parks:
C Georgetown Parks, Recreation & Trails Master Plan

C
---——-------__

!E HALFF 3

City of Farmersville

Project Manager
Francois de Kock, AICP, ASLA, RLA,

LEEDAP

Deputy Project Manager
Randy Watson

Site Engineering
David Littleton, PE



Project Approach

Half has a long history of preparing system-wide park master plans for cities and counties across the State of Texas.
Through these past experiences, the Half Team has worked with a number of cities who wish to gain access to the
competitive team sports market. We helped each of our former clients evaluate their strengths and weaknesses when
compared to other cities’types of facilities and also to understand the operations and maintenance components to
evaluate whether to have a large consolidated athletic complex vs. smaller more concise fields for community play.

o The City of Farmersville wants to develop an athletic sports complex that can compare their needs of existing athletic
and practice fields and determine the extent to meet current and future needs of the City. The development of a newly

O renovated athletic complex can bring competitive sports play into Farmersville as a benefit to the community. The
City is already well-positioned north of Dallas, east of McKinney and west of Greenville along the US 380/Highway 78

o corridor to provide vehicular access to the core of their city.

Half brings an innovative, comprehensive, inclusive planning and design approach to planning efforts for the Farmersvilleo Athletic Complex. As an example, Half worked with the City of El Paso to program, plan and design their first major sports
facility. Situated on the city’s west side, this facility is literally at the western gateway to El Paso. As part of our programming

o and planning work, Half initiated a tour ofsimilar, competing facilities in other cities. This allowed El Paso staff to see their
competition and to visit with the municipal staff who operate those facilities to gain an understanding of the management

Q and operational requirements for competitive sports parks. This exercise proved to be invaluable to the City of El Paso staff
as the planning for the project moved forward.

0 From our past project experiences, Half has gained an understanding of the needs, desires and challenges of City
department staff on a daily basis with regards to operating and maintaining large competitive and non-competitive

O sports facilities. Recurring operational items for many city staff include:
— Travel time to and from maintenance headquarters to satellite field sites

o — Budget and staffing reductions
— Turf materials selections and maintenance challenges
— Allowing enough downtime for fields to recover between uses

“
— Management and implementation of inclement weather policies
— Management and operation of irrigation equipment

Li — Drainage facility designs and improvements that work with the facility
— Use and management of sports field lighting equipment

C) — Providing adequate shade and a variety of recreational facilities for park users

These comments illustrate some of the operational conditions that City of Farmersville staff may face on a regular
basis with implementation of the newly renovated sports complex. Beyond these issues, however, are larger and more
important points to consider:

Special consideration must be given to vehicular and pedestrian access throughout the park. Recent sporting
events in similar facilities help to illustrate the impacts that a less-than-desirable vehicular circulation system can
have on a facility. Parking areas for field use must occur in a logical manner, be easy to navigate and offer park users

C alternative ways in and out of the site. Pedestrian linkages should work both within and outside of the park. Trail
linkages to local neighborhoods and existing trail facilities are critical and provide much-needed regional connections

o to the Downtown area and surrounding communities, specifically as it relates to The Chaparral Trail. Handicap facilities
must be provided and all ADA requirements will be met. With each of these areas of focus, safety must be a top

C priority. This will include special attention to lighting, visibility, paved surfaces, hidden obstacles, and overall
accessibility of park facilities.

C One of the most crucial aspects of a large project like this to consider is the multitude of stakeholders who have
a vested interest in its development and success. The J.W. Spain Athletic Complex may have a huge contingent of

Q interested citizens, sports enthusiasts, and special interest groups who are interested in its development, and want
to be included in the planning and design process. Citizen and user input will give the City of Farmersville a

C foundation of public support for the project as well as create a high level of community interest and sense of
ownership. Typical concerns from neighbors often include fears of impacts from increased traffic levels, noise

C and light levels that may affect current lifestyles and quality of life. The planning and design process must be
tailored to take advantage of the opportunity for public involvement and community support.

jJ HALFF

Statement of Qualifications: City of Farmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

4



0

C

C

C

C

0

C

C

C)

Technical Approach

Statement of Qualifications: City of Farmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

After the selection process, the Haiff Team proposes to hold a kick-off meeting with City staff to verify and reinforce
the goals for the project, and identify the planning and design schedule the project will adhere to. The project
schedule will include opportunities for public workshops to review the planning progress, and to gauge the public’s
perception of the proposed improvements. The schedule will also list specific benchmark dates for issuance of design
deliverables for review by City staff. Stakeholder groups and their contact persons will be identified, and a strategy for
their inclusion will be prepared in close coordination with City staff.

C
The technical component of the design process cannot be overlooked. The Design Team will commit to work closely
with City of Farmersville maintenance and operations personnel to ensure that park improvements take full
advantage of local knowledge and experience related to design principles, construction methods and long-

C term maintenance requirements.This way, we can provide design documents that address actual conditions within
the project limits, and keep costs within the boundaries established by the project parameters and scope.

The following is a recommended approach to the planning and design efforts, which will be tailored to meet the
specific needs of Farmersville as the planning and design effort moves forward.

I. SITE FEASIBILITY STUDY AND ANALYSIS

A site feasibility study and analysis is essential in order to ensure the correct decisions are made during the planning
O process. During this phase of the project, we will select and identify sites based upon:

1. Provide an in depth examination of existing fields, structures, irrigation, fencing, bleachers and other site

O infrastructure related to ball fields.
2. Understand unique site qualities, both natural and man-made, as well as the psychological essence of the site,

Q also referred to as the “sense of place.”
3. Available area for site/field development: What are the existing site constraints such as vegetation, access,

drainage, open or”cleared”area? In addition, severe topographic relief are among the related issues when looking
0 for site expansion.

4. Understand user needs, including league and facility requirements, projected growth and size of fields.
5. Understand the program requirements for the project, i.e., number of fields, concession/restrooms, storage

( z facilities, picnic areas, walking paths/trails, parking requirements, etc.
6. Develop and understand spatial analysis based upon program requirements.
7. Understand land use and adjacencies to residential and non-residential development.

O 8. Review traffic and pedestrian patterns in terms of major highways, thoroughfares and trail corridors.
9. Develop evaluation matrix based upon availability, costs, land use, acres of available land and access.

II. MARKET ANALYSIS

Q A. Demand Analysis — Gather Information on Likely Utilization
1. Meet with Farmersville officials to discuss facilities and anticipated uses

for the complex
2. Gather information on the competitive sports market in the region -

Identify the area organizations that sponsor competitive tournaments
in Farmersville vicinity

• Interview selected leaders of local sports organizations
• Determine their annual tournament needs and attendance

Determine their requirements for facilities
3. Survey and gather information on similar sports complexes around the

DEW Metro plex.
• Survey identified facilities to determine the mix of facilities, and

the annual utilization and total attendance including selected
demographics of the participants.

4. Develop operating projections for the J.W. Spain Sports complex by its A playing field at i.W. Spain Athletic Complex
components.
• Determine annual attendance at each events
• Estimate the attendance of persons from outside of the region if applicable

5. Meet with Earmersville officials to discuss the market analysis
• Present the methodology and findings
• Discuss differences in this market analysis and their expectations

6. Prepare Interim Report on Market projections
• Make adjustments in the market projections based on client comments and suggestions

Prepare a short report documenting the market projections — athlete attendance and characteristics,
spectators attendance and characteristics

EEE HALFF 5



Statement of Qualifications: City of Farmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

B. Community Benefits Analysis — Estimate the Intangible Benefits
1. Chronicle the intangible benefits
2. Estimate the non-quantifiable benefits to Farmersville residents as a result of the Sports Complex

• Enhanced visibility for Farmersville — which may bring new residents to the community — increasing home
demand and values.

• Additional business opportunities for residents
• Improved community facilities as a result on increased taxes.

C. Prepare Final Report of the Effects of the Sports Complex

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Public participation and input activities might occur on many different levels
within the planning horizon of a project, and depending on the complexity of
the project, the potential effects to local residents and the long term benefits
or impacts, the approach to gathering public input and participation can
range from simple intercept surveys to telephone, or digital on-line surveys.

A. Stakeholder Input
O Utilizing input from City staff, the HaIff Team will identify primary

stakeholders within the city who can provide input that might have a
O long-term impact on the success and viability for the project. Stakeholders

might include community leaders, business owners, neighborhood

Q representatives, or members of park support groups such as
representatives from the sports leagues who will benefit from the facility. Principal-in-Charge Lenny Hughes discusses a project

with an interested stakeholder during a public meeting

B. Public Workshops
The HaIff Team will conduct public workshops to gather public input and
perceptions of issues related to designs for the sports complex.

C. Public Input Surveys
Public input surveys can be designed to function on different levels. Surveys can be issued to random city residents,
provided online for community input, telephone surveys can be utilized,
and surveys of targeted participant groups can be provided to gather
specific data or responses related to development and implementation of
the sports complex.

o D. Public Open Houses
As planning and design activities progress, Farmersville may decide
to provide open house-style plan presentations for the benefit of the
community and study participants. Open houses will typically occur
over three to four hours in the afternoon or evening, to allow interested
residents and project participants to review project plans or proposals at

O their leisure over the length of the open house. This approach allows access
to the process by a larger group of citizens.

IV. SITE INVESTIGATION AND BASE MAP PREPARATION

A. Base Map Preparation and Site Investigation
Compile digital information identified during data gathering exercises

(Th, into a base map for the site, for use during site evaluation, and subsequent
planning and design activities. Base maps will illustrate information such as

O
locations of streets; wet and dry utilities; topography; drainage ways, water
courses and water bodies; and major public facilities operated by state,
county and local governments (including but not limited to schools or other

C facilities).
Analyze transportation and access issues involving the project site
and address potential improvements that will allow the project area
to function as desired.

• Analyze water, sanitary sewer and hydrology issues involving the
project site and identify the impacts and improvements necessary
to develop a sports complex on each site as a result of those studies.

• Conduct review of the site for potential environmental impacts,

J HALFF

Current facilities at J.W. Spain Athletic Complex include
five ball fields and an area for football

T1L

6



Statement of Qualifications: City of Farmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

including delineation of wetlands, SWPPP plans, or endangered species habitat delineation.
Provide a letter report that outlines the development potential of each of the potential project site selected
for review, and rank each site for suitability according to its development suitability and its long-term
benefits.

V. MASTER PLAN PREPARATION

O The master plan will include a phasing analysis if applicable, and include a development strategy to implement the
desired park improvements. It also will include design guidelines and standards as well as cost estimates.

A. Development Program
Working with City staff, user groups and stakeholders, the Half Team will identify a development program for the
sports park. The development program will include a description of the types of sports and activities the park should
support, the relative sizes of the facilities and the age groups that facilities should support, and the ancillary or
supporting activities and structures that should be included in the development of the park. Specific items might
include number and size of fields and configurations, maintenance and facility upgrades and improvements, parking
numbers and locations, spectator facilities, restroom facilities, concession facilities and umpire and referee support
facilities.

The Half Team will then finalize the development program with the City of Farmersville project manager and staff,
based on results of site investigation and public participation processes.

B. Preliminary Master Plan Preparation
Finalize the development program with the City of Farmersville project manager and staff, based on results of site
investigation and public participation processes.

Conduct a full-day design workshop with the City of Farmersville project manager, staff members, and
selected stakeholders. The workshop may be combined with a stakeholder meeting with the City of
Farmersville staff for greater efficiency and effect. Additionally, City of Farmersville staff, along with select
members of the stakeholder group, might be willing to participate in a tour of regional cities with
facilities that are similar to the J.W. Spain Athletic Complex. This facility tour will allow Farmersville staff to
discuss operational, maintenance and programming issues with their peers, giving the City of Farmersville a
“leg up”as the master planning process begins.
Prepare preliminary master plans and supporting illustrative graphics for Farmersville Park Department
review and comment. The preliminary master plans will indicate a variety of development scenarios and

!E HALFF

C
C

0
0

0
0r -

The i.W. Spain Athletic Complex has a natural beauty and a grand view of the Texas sky

7



Statement of Qualifications: City of Farmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

alternatives, and include varying types, mixes and ranges of recreational activity areas and support facilities.
Preliminary master plan alternatives will be delivered to the Farmersville Park Department in hard copy and
digital formats.

• Provide preliminary development costs for each preliminary master plan alternative.
• Review the preliminary master plans with City of Farmersville staff and selected stakeholders, combine

components of each plan or altering configurations as applicable, and incorporate comments into the
preparation of a refined preliminary master plan for the project.

C. Final Master Plan Preparation
Prepare a refined preliminary master plan, with illustrations for graphic support, for City of Farmersville staff review
and approval. As noted earlier, the master plan will define implementation priorities, design guidelines and standards,
and include cost estimates.

• Attend one (1) public meeting to gather input and comments related to the refined preliminary master plan,
and incorporate comments into the preparation of a final master plan.

• Identify project phasing for City of Farmersville staff! stakeholder group review and approval.
• Prepare an estimate of probable construction cost for the project that identifies probable construction costs

for each phase of the project.
• Prepare a Final Master Plan and Report.This final report will reference the Site Investigation Report (as an

appendix), the final master plan and descriptive summary, and will include documentation describing the
plan preparation process.The Final Master Plan Report will be delivered to the City of Farmersville in hard
copy and digital formats.

List of Similar Projects

HaIff has completed numerous similar projects throughout Texas, in New Mexico, and in Collin County. A sampling of
our recent representative projects is as follows.

Texas Projects (outside of Collin County):

Westside Sports Complex, El Paso, Texas: Half developed
the master plan and construction documents for this
35-acre park that includes eight new soccer fields, a
concession building, parking and interior park roads as well
as parking for 200 vehicles.The master plan addressed the
development of sports fields in a way that accommodates
the grade changes and the stormwater flows that run
across the site. Master planning activities benefitted from

___________

an agreement between the City of El Paso and the El
Paso Community College to allow park users to park on
the college campus. Similarities to Farmersville project:
athletic facility master plan; concession building; roadway
and parking configuration; quality of life enhancement.

Youth Sports Complex, McAllen, Texas: Half prepared
a masterplanfortheMcAllen LittleLeagueasa part
of a pending city-wide bond issue. The master plan for --

this 250-acre site included 17 baseball!softball fields,
12 tennis courts, an arboretum learning center, and an
adjacentretaildevelopmentthatwould benefitfromthe ———-—

athletic facilities. HaIff assisted the City of McAllen with Westside Sports Complex master plan in El Paso
programming and planning for a new multi-use sports
complex in the center of the City. Half evaluated two sites
for the project, one adjacent to McAllen’s Civic Center and the other adjacent to an existing middle school. HaIff also
evaluated the infrastructure required to make either of the sites a reality, including roadway and storm drainage and
grading improvements, and water and sanitary sewer improvements. The Half Team also prepared master plans
and conceptual design plans for the sites, along with development phasing diagrams and estimates of probable
construction costs. Similarities to Farmersville project: youth athletic complex; master planning; site concepts; cost
estimates; prioritization; general engineering (infrastructure and roadways); and quality of life enhancement.

, L

0

0

0

0

C

C

C

jb::; \ia*i
ss.-s \

\ = .

- /LRiLiR ‘-:;-

:5IiII1iI\ a;

jJ HALFF 8



1

0

C

C

C

0

0

Statement of Qualifications: City of Farmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

The Harlingen Soccer Complex on a busy night

Harlingen Soccer Complex, Harlingen, Texas: Half’s initial
planning efforts focused on preparing plans only for available
funding. At the City of Harlingen’s request, Half then prepared
a final master plan that focused on providing facilities to
accommodate stakeholders’ wishes. The final master plan
addressed available City funding by providing guidance for
developing the facility in phases. In addition to preparing the
master plan, Half Associates also developed Phase One design
plans of the Harlingen Soccer Complex, the City’s first and
largest sports facility. To achieve project goals, Half conducted
multiple meetings with project stakeholders from throughout
the City, along with members of the Arroyo Youth Soccer Club.
The master planning process included preparing more than
six alternative conceptual master plans for the soccer complex,
along with the final master plan (the preferred alternative of
stakeholders). The project used reclaimed wastewater effluent
to cost-effectively irrigate 50 acres of soccer fields installed in
Phase One; the City had not previously tried this. Half designed
large combination retention/detention basins to overcome
storm drainage issues, add storage capacity for reclaimed
irrigation water, and address the lack of elevation change
across the 80-acre project site. The Half Team of civil, landscape
architecture and irrigation design members closely coordinated to ensure that the design approach would result in
a project that could be understood and easily maintained by City staff and built by local contractors. Similarities to
Farmersville project: youth athletic complex; master planning; site concepts; cost estimates — including focused
attention on available City funding; facility prioritization and phased development to accommodate funding;
public outreach; quality of life enhancement.

Pfiugerville City-Wide Athletic Facility Study, Pfiugerville, Texas: Half Associates explored and evaluated the
current usage and capacity of Pflugerville’s existing sports fields and anticipated needs over the next five to 10
years and beyond. In addition to conducting a quantitative analysis, Half collected input from individual athletic
associations and the general public via online surveys, survey handouts, and a series of public meetings to identify the
community’s goals and priorities for expanding the city’s supply of sports fields. The study focused on determining the
need for additional youth baseball, football, soccer, and softball facilities; renovation, consolidation and enhancement
of existing facilities; and repurposing existing fields and practices areas for multi-functional athletic facilities in
Pflugerville. While there are other outdoor sports (such as lacrosse) that are experiencing increased interest, these four
sports constitute the majority of youth athletes in the community, each year registering more than 2,500 participants
combined. Half’s recommendations were part of Pflugerville’s successful $12 million bond program approved in 2014.
Similarities to Farmersville project: sports complex with walking trails, linkage and connectivity; concessions,
restrooms; quality of life enhancement; public outreach; analysis, cost estimates and prioritization to be achieved
through different phases.

Coppell Town Center, Coppell, Texas: Half’s design for
this public space overcame constraints posed by a restricted
project site bordered by various facilities, including a police
station, library and school. Our design of this project was
completed in six months to meet the community’s upcoming
July Fourth celebration. Park amenities include a stage for
open-air productions, an amphitheater, lighted walking paths,
open play areas, shaded seating, sustainable landscaping
and locations for future sculpture and art displays. A shade

C structure serves as a gathering spot for picnics, weddings, or
family reunions. The 65-foot-tall tower in front of the Coppell

0 Town Center building serves as a focal point for the park and
the community at large. The tower also serves as a sundial,
projecting shadows of the sun onto plaques arranged in the
lawn area. A water component creates an active element Image from the completed Coppell Town Center project
within the plaza. The dancing water brings the stage area to life

C with movement, sound and light. Half Associates won several awards for this project, including the Merit Award for
Design — American Society of Landscape Architects (State Award); Park Design Excellence Award — Texas Recreation

‘ and Park Society (State Award); and the Park Design Excellence Award —Texas Recreation & Park Society (Region Ill).
Similarities to Farmersville project: master planning; quality of life enhancement; public involvement; and cost

,— estimating. Although this is not an athletic complex, this project was completed during the planning and design
process within a six-month time frame.

EE HALFF 9



New Mexico Projects:

Del Norte Park, Hobbs, New Mexico: Half provided a master plan, construction documents, and construction
administration services for the 40-acre Phase Two portion of this 80-acre park in Hobbs, New Mexico. Project
improvements included the design of over 2,000 linear feet of roadways; parking for 130 vehicles; a performance
area with a stage, amphitheater and large custom pavilion; several small pavilions; restrooms; a dog park; tennis and
basketball courts; a playground; grading for the entire site, including a four-acre playing field and detention pond; and
new landscape and irrigation improvements. Half chose durable, cost-effective materials and equipment. The large
pavilion and performance area utilized an all-metal structure to reduce operations and long-term maintenance costs.
Plants and grass species were hardy varieties with proven track records with the City of Hobbs’ parks department.
The irrigation system used special technology to ensure easy operation, maintenance and repairs. Similarities to
Farmersville project: park and athletic complex improvements; master planning; site concepts; long-lasting, cost-
effective designs; infrastructure/roadway design; public outreach; quality of life enhancement.

Jefferson Park, Hobbs, New Mexico: HaIff provided master planning and final design services for all three phases of
this 15-acre park site.The site was initially developed in small pieces by the school district, the local baseball league,
and the City’s parks and recreation department. HaIff developed a master plan to address the City of Hobbs’ long-term
development goals of connecting the park to other areas of the City, providing additional recreational amenities, and
developing additional practice fields for growing youth soccer leagues. The park and facilities needed updating to

O project a unified character, identity and purpose. Half hosted a series of stakeholder meetings with baseball league
representatives, parents, and various community members to arrive at a final vision, purpose and image for the park.

0 To accommodate available funding, Half developed a phased approach. Phase One provided nearly one mile of trails,
several pavilions, a new playscape, and additional landscaping and irrigation.The goals of Phase One were to make
the park more inviting to visitors and assist in maintenance requirements for the park property. Phase Two included
parking improvements, sports field improvements, additional trails and new restrooms. Phase Three, currently under

O construction, includes two additional competition baseball fields, new fences and backstops on existing ball fields, a
new concession stand, and additional parking. HaIff designed all these improvements to function within the Hobbs
climate, under constant use by the baseball league and the

O public. Additional shade is provided by numerous canopies,
pavilions and covers, and the irrigation system is state-of-
the-art, allowing the City of Hobbs to tailor the amount of
water applied to the turf to provide the best playing surface
possible, without wasting water. Similarities to Farmersville
project: youth athletic complex; master planning; site
concepts; cost estimates; public outreach; and quality of
life enhancement.0

C

0

0

0

C

C

Ranchview Ball Fields, Hobbs, New Mexico: HaIff
prepared a master plan and schematic design plans for
the 30-acre Ranchview Ball Field project in northern
Hobbs, New Mexico. The project was initiated to confirm
the viability of property slated for dedication to the City
by a developer on an adjacent tract. Planning and design
activities included numerous stakeholder and public
meetings with sports league representatives and users, to
confirm the development program and approach desired
by City staff. The final master plan addressed off-site
drainage and detention requirements, while providing a
community recreational facility that provides passive as well
as active recreation activities. The plans and designs for the

C Ranchview Ball Field Complex addressed stormwater and
drainage flows that were directed toward the facility from
proposed retail and residential developments surrounding
the project site. The master plan and initial project designs
addressed the Hobbs environment by providing ample

0 shade for park users, suggesting site development practices
that would mitigate potential drainage issues from

C surrounding development, and by specifying improvements
that function well in the Hobbs environment. Similarities

c’ to Farmersville project: youth athletic complex; master
planning; site concepts; cost estimates; public outreach;
and quality of life enhancement.

HALFF ic

0
0

0

0

Statement of Qualifications: City of Farmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

Ranchview Ball Fields master plan (above) and site concept (below)

1:n1h1 L

_____



Collin CoUnt)’ Projects:

Founders Square, Wylie, Texas: Half Associates
provided the master planning, design development and
construction documents for the expansion of an existing
soccer and ball park facility for the City of Wylie. With a
construction cost of $5.1 million, the project included
adding eight lighted soccer fields, two lighted softball
fields, two concession stands, three shade pavilions,
and walking/jogging trails. Half’s responsibilities
included master planning, public meetings, full-service
architecture, landscape architecture, civil engineering,
structural engineering, mechanical/electrical/plumbing
(MEP) engineering, surveying and irrigation design.The
master plan envisions the growth of the existing sports
complex complimenting Wylie High School and the
surrounding community. Similarities to Farmersville
project: expansion of existing athletic facility; master
planning and site use that accounts for future growth;
concepts; prioritization; trails; public outreach; quality
of life enhancement.

Regional Trails Master Plan, Collin County, Texas:
Collin County engaged Half Associates to develop the
comprehensive Collin County Regional Trails Master Plan.
Half’s objective was to provide coordination and inter-
jurisdictional trail connectivity among multiple cities
and towns within Collin County and adjoining counties
as well — with the ultimate goal of developing a county
wide system of trails. This project included the use of mobile geographic information
systems (GIS) applications for in-field data collection; the coordination and compilation of data and plans from 32
municipalities within Collin County; route alignment development, analysis, and prioritization; development of
cost estimates; and an extensive public outreach program. This trails plan identified the Chaparral Trail as a major
link for trail connectivity in the county. Similarities to Fa rmersvil le project: linkage/connectivity; quality of life
enhancement; public outreach; analysis, cost estimates and prioritization.

Parks, Open Space and Trails Master Plan, McKinney,
Texas: The City of McKinney engaged the team of Half
Associates, Brinkley Sargent Architects, and CEHP to
create a master plan for this dynamic, rapidly growing
community. The goal was to analyze McKinney’sr-t existing conditions and make recommendations for
parks, recreation facilities, open space and recreation

O
programming. The resulting master plan guides the City
in providing parks in a quickly developing environment
while meeting two primary City goals: providing 25

O acres of park land per 1,000 residents, and protecting!
preserving floodplain and creek corridors to provide

o open space, environmental benefits, and trails. The
master plan included a market analysis that reviewed

O lifestyle groupings and market segments as per ESRI
demographic data. A trend analysis reviewed external

r, factors of change that influence people and parks as well
as participation patterns. For an athletic program analysis
of the project, we applied a facility needs assessment

O and capacity utilization model. We also described the
athletic programs”culture of use” unique to the City of

o McKinney. Our team made specific recommendations
to build on the quality and character of the City’s image,

1mi’- including protecting the cultural and natural landscape.
Similarities to Farmersville project: recreational space!
parks guidance; quality of life enhancement; project
prioritization; athletic facilities.

!E HALFF

Statement of Qualifications: City of FarmersvilleJ.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan
.‘ \‘Ie

: ‘J I:i
‘—a •

7

I Founders Square site plan (above), and
constructed shade pavilion (right)

McKinney Parks, Open Space and Trails Master Plan



0
0

0
0

F
C;

0
C

C)

r
Statement of Qualifications: City of Farmersville

J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

Parks and Recreation Open Space Master Plan, Frisco,
Texas: The City of Frisco isa leader in establishing parks,
recreational facilities, and a high quality of life for its
residents. But as one of the fastest-growing communities
in the United States, Frisco struggled with the fact
that its facilities would age and need replacement
simultaneously. Half Associates prepared the master plan
to address how the City would prepare for this eventuality
while maintaining its position as a parks and recreational
facilities leader. The master plan also addressed the
City’s goal to maintain a close-knit, small-town feel. Half
achieved this in part by benchmarking Frisco against
other cities. Cities chosen for benchmarking were highly
regarded in parks and recreation and included two Texas
cities. Benchmarking factors include lifestyle and life
stage characteristics, lessons learned, community profiles,
and operations and maintenance, per the PRORAGIS
database. In addition, the master plan included an athletic
program analysis by applying a facility needs assessment
and capacity utilization model. During an intense, focused
visioning week of public engagement, a large number
of residents shared ideas and their vision for the future
of parks and recreation in Frisco. Key wishes/concerns
included: (1 )Expanded, connected bike and hike trail
system; (2) More fields for youth sports; (3) Meeting the A portion of the Frisco Parks and Recreation Open Space Master Plan
challenge of balancing parks: new and old; active and
passive; changing expectations and preferences; (4) Acquiring open space before it was gone; and (5) Improving
the maintenance of medians and practice fields. The visioning week included two public meetings, a meeting of
the Steering Committee, a meeting with representatives from other public departments, and meetings with four
focus groups. Half also conducted interviews with the Convention and Visitors Bureau staff, members of the Mayor’s
Youth Council, and others. Similarities to Farmersville project: linkage/connectivity; youth athletics; quality of life
enhancement; public outreach; operations/maintenance costs; concepts; prioritization.

Parks and Trails Master Plan, Prosper, Texas: Half Associates designed this master plan to protect the Town of
Prosper’s character, landscape and image. Consequently, the plan introduces conservation planning and development
to protect large areas of floodplain. As an educational tool, the master plan provides an in-depth discussion of the
value of creeks and stream in the urban and semi urban environments. It also provides criteria to establish buffers
along creeks and drainage ways, emphasizes the importance of a regional watershed plan, and makes a strong case
for integrated stormwater management. In addition, the plan addresses trail corridors, trail easement acquisition, park
land acquisition, park development, and provisions for recreational facilities. The future Dallas North Tollway extension
necessitated the recommendation to ensure proper east-west trail connections through wide road underpasses. The
plan also calls for a large regional park on the west side of town, to protect large areas of floodplain while benefiting
surrounding communities. Similarities to Farmersville project: trail linkage/connectivity; provisions for future
recreational facilities; quality of life enhancement; public outreach; concepts and prioritization.

_I1

!E HALFF

The Prosper Parks and Recreation Open Space Master Plan

12



References

Statement of Qualifications: City of FarmersvilleJ.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

City of Frisco
Dudley Raymond
Parks, CIP and Business Development ManagerOffice: 972-292-6502
Email: DRaymond@friscotexas.gov

Collin CountyJeff DurhamCollin County Special Projects/Open SpaceOffice: 972-548-3723Email: JDurham@collincountytx.gov

o The ColonyPam Nelson
0 Director of Parks and RecreationOffice: 972-625-1 106, extension 3958o Email: PNelson@thecolonytx.gov

“The leadership provided by
Francois and the efforts throughout
to dialog and provide frequent
updates to ensure expectations were
being met was commendable. —

Lyda Hill Hunt, LH Holdings,
Inc., and Gary Brinkley, Stockyards
Station Partnership, Fort\2Vorth

“Great job [Lenny Hughes and
Francois de Kockj. Prompt and
accurate with everything. Stayed on
top of it; no lag time. Did what you
said you would do without having
to be reminded or pushed.”—Jeff
Harting, City of Farmers Branch

E EE HALFF

“This was a difficult project — it
required building consensus from
a large number of stakeholders.
Mr. de Kock did an excellent job
and designed monumentation that,
after much debate, was broadly
supported. Deliverables were
timely, meetings were productive,
and projects went very well.” — Paul
Stevens, City ofWaxahachie

1 T’benny ana r rancois were a
pleasure to work with, and I look
forward to working with them again
in the future.”—Juan Broussard,
Dallas County Community College

13



Team Resumes

Statement of Qualiñcations: City of Farmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

Experience: 20 years
Education: BS/Landscape
Architecture, Oklahoma State
University
Registration: Registered Landscape
Architect, Texas, No.2067

LENNY HUGHES, RLA - Principal-in-Charge

Mr. Hughes is a vice president and director of the Landscape Architecture
Department at Half Associates. He has more than 20 years of experience
in landscape architectural design; park design and park planning; project
management; bidding; and negotiations. Relevant projects include:

Athletic Complex and Randig Tract Feasibility Study, Pflugerville, Texas:
Principal-in-Charge for the research and evaluation of existing data, mapping,
athletic complex site selection criteria, athletic complex facility programming and benchmarking. Helped conduct
sports/athletic league/user group interviews and provide public participation/outreach for the project. Project also
included Randig Tract site investigation and analysis, master planning, and cost estimating.The project document
helped establish the 2014 Bond Program for the City of Pflugerville.

Lake Pflugerville Park Master Plan, Pflugerville, Texas: Principal-in-Charge for the schematic design and master
planning of Lake Pflugerville Park, including the renovation and improvements for the overall site.This project
addressed connectivity, ADA accessibility, and planting for shade. Primary focus areas included a beach esplanade
with shade pavilions; playground equipment; meandering plaza space; a lake promenade to the south with upper and
lower trail connections; fishing piers/overlooks; and an amphitheater with an outdoor stage at the lake’s edge covered
by a large sail-type shade structure. This project included extensive public outreach/involvement, and the projecto report helped establish the 2014 Bond Program for the City of Pflugerville.

o Regional Trails Master Plan, Collin County, Texas: Served as Project Manager for the Collin County Regional Trails
Master Plan that was created to provide coordination and inter-jurisdictional trail connectivity between cities, towns
and adjoining counties for the development of a county-wide system of trails. This project included the use of Mobile
GIS applications for in-field data collection; the coordination and compilation of data and plans from 32 municipalities
within the county; route alignment development, analysis, and prioritization; the development of cost estimates; and
an extensive public outreach program.

Justin Community Sports Park, Justin, Texas: Principal/Project Manager responsible for the preparation and
development of conceptual, schematic and design development of a 20.25-acre sports park. The master plan envisions
a growth to the existing sports complex complimenting the surrounding elementary school and the surrounding
community.The design calls for implementation of wildlife habitats, sports fields, and a harmonious weaving of
pedestrian and vehicular traffic into an enjoyable space for the entire community.

O
Founders Park, Wylie, Texas: Principal/Project Manager for the development of a 60-acre community and sports
park. Park components included 1.5-mile walking/jogging trail; two lighted softball fields; 16 lighted soccer fields;
multi-use fields; two restrooms and concession areas; spray water park, redevelopment of an existing playground,

0 roadway and parking layout, basketball court; picnic areas; landscape and xeriscape planting. Project Manager
duties included: coordination and working with public work groups, and working with city staff. Project components

o included: master planning of the site, development of construction documents, bidding and negotiations.

Browne Road Sports Complex, Brownsville, Texas: Project Manager and Team Leader Assistant for the development
of a 36-acre Sports Park. Park components included 1.2-mile walking/jogging trail; 0.75-mile nature trail, two lighted
softball fields; four lighted soccer fields; one restroom and concession area; playground, roadway and parking layout,
basketball court; picnic areas; landscape and xeriscape planting. Project Manager duties included coordination and
working with public work groups, and working with city staf. Project components included master planning of the
site, development of construction documents, bidding, and negotiations.

C Marine Creek Linear Park, Fort Worth, Texas: Principal-in-Charge for the master planning, design and construction
documentation for the update and renovation of a 3-mile, 230-acre linear park connecting Marine Creek Lake and the
historic Fort Worth Stockyards. Project included renovation of the existing trail system; approximately 2.5 miles of new

‘—i trail; a new pedestrian bridge; a new playground with pavilion; an outdoor classroom; educational and wayfinding

o signage; a wetland to educate the adjacent elementary school; fishing pier; and sustainable landscaping.

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) Elm Fork Parks Project, Fort Worth District, Lake Lewisville and Lake
Grapevine, Texas: Project Manager for area lakes of the Elm Fork USACE Branch Offices located on Lake Lewisville
and Lake Grapevine. Designated park sites, including Murrell Park at 430 acres, and Hickory Creek Park at 550 acres.
Duties included weekly meeting with USACE staf and scheduling of City staff, public work group meetings and design
charrettes. Also provided design, project management, and construction verification efforts for various projects.

EEE HALFF



Statement of Qualifications: City of Parmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

FRANCOIS DE KOCK, AICP, ASLA, RLA, LEED AP - Project Manager
0 Experience: 31 years

Mr. de Kock joined Half Associates in March 2003. During his career, he has Education: Master’s/Landscape
0 obtained a vast amount of experience in urban and environmental planning, Architecture, Harvard University

urban design, landscape architecture, and landscape restoration. His goal for BS/Landscape Architecture,
0 each project is to be professionally responsible and responsive to the natural University of Pretoria, South Africa

and cultural environment. Therefore, he strives to address clients’ needs Re istrations Certified AICP No
without compromising the integrity of the natural and cultural environment, 243618
believing that each site is unique and should be addressed accordingly. Mr.
de Kock excels at and has a particular interest in visioning as a key component Registered Landscape Architect,

C of helping clients achieve results that will ensure public buy-in, support and Texas, No.02183

commitment. Relevant projects include: LEED Accredited Professional

0

_______

Parks, Recreation and Open Space Master Plan, Prosper, Texas: Project -

Manager for the Town’s first parks master plan. Half developed a vision that will protect the character of the landscape
and image of the town. Based on this, conservation planning and development was introduced as a concept to

O achieve the vision. As an education tool, the master plan provides an in-depth discussion of the value of creeks and
stream in the urban and semi-urban environments. It provides criteria for the establishment of creek buffers along

O
creeks and drainage ways, emphasizes the importance of a regional watershed plan for the city, and makes a strong
case for integrated stormwater management.

Parks and Recreation Open Space Master Plan, Frisco, Texas: Project Manager for the parks and recreation open
space master plan, including needs assessments for both athletic fields and facilities. Mr. de Kock led and managed a
comprehensive team, including subconsultants, recreation specialists, parks maintenance and operations personnel,
and an architect who specializes in municipal facilities.

Parks, Recreation and Open Space Master Plan, McKinney, Texas: Project Manager for a project that involved
extensive public participation and sub-consultant input. Responsibilities include managing the project team that
included specialists of recreation programming, recreation facilities, benchmarking and marketing; meetings with
elected officials on a one-on-one basis to solicit input; and presenting the final document to the Parks Board and
Council for approval. Unique aspects of the project comprise overlay development districts for special areas within
the city, recommending protection measures for floodplains and natural landscapes, and the development of
community gardens.

Parks, Recreation and Open Space Master Plan, Lewisville, Texas: Project Manager for the master plan, which
emphasized the City’s need to overhaul a majority of its parks because most were not meeting current ADA
requirements and showed extensive signs of aging. With the popularity of Lake Lewisville, the plan sought to find
ways to provide both visual and physical access to the lake shore. Half prepared this master plan jointly with the
Lewisville Trails Master Plan.

Parks, Recreation and Open Space Master Plan, Colleyville, Texas: Project Manager. The quality of Colleyville’s
parks and their maintenance are among best in the D-FW area.The City also prides itself on the large amount of
acreage dedicated to private parks. Because the City is fiscally conservative, the plan recommendations focusing on
the development of trails and floodplain protection to provide more access to natural areas for citizens who have
rated such needs as very important.

C Parks, Recreation and Open Space Master Plan, Wylie, Texas: Project Manager. Public involvement served as the
underpinning of the analysis and recommendations for this plan. As part of the master plan vision, major goals were

C to enhance the diversity, choice, and image of Wylie’s parks and recreation system. Unique components included: (1)
The development of strategies for better utilizing the multiple U.S. Army Corps of Engineers parks located within the

C City limits; (2) Responsiveness to the citizens’and City needs and expectations; and (3) A Concept Site Development
Plan for the City’s Municipal Complex, which includes the new City Hall, Library and Recreation Center. Additional

O recommended amenities included an amphitheater, environmental education center and a cultural center — all of
which are situated as a “string of pearls” around the proposed “City Commons”

Parks, Recreation, Trail and Open Space Visioning Plan, Cedar Hill, Texas: Project Manager for a visioning plan
that covers all aspects of a typical parks master plan and more. Key to the project is the unique natural environment of
Cedar Hill, which includes an escarpment with dramatic limestone outcroppings and naturally occurring cedar trees
along with the adjacent Joe Pool Lake. Components of the study other than the parks master plan itself, include a
master plan for a city-wide hike and bike trail system, and a streetscape and entry feature plan that includes concepts
for gateways and entry monuments, among other details. A unique component of the study was the assessment of
11 identified stormwater detention areas for their potential use for future park space, whether in their natural state, or
with the limited addition of recreation facilities, including trails, pavilions and play areas.

J HALFF



Statement of Qualiñcatians: City of Farmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

RANDY WATSON - Deputy Project Manager
Experience: 20 years

Mr. Watson joined Half Associates in January 2009. He has worked on a variety Education: Master’s/Landscape
of projects types, including trail master planning, park planning and design, Architecture, Louisiana State
and streetscape planning and design. His other project work ranges from University
high-end residential, corporate campus, high-rise condos, retail, and multi-use BS/Park Administration, Arkansas
to lifestyle centers and urban design. He is an experience project manager Tech University
with expertise in leading projects from schematic design through design

_________________________________

development, budgeting cost estimating, construction documentation, and -—---

construction administration/construction observation (CA/CD). Relevant projects include:

Pflugerville Athletic Complex and Randig Tract Feasibility Study, Pfiugerville, Texas: Project Manager. Led the
() research and evaluation of existing data and mapping. Assisted with athletic complex site selection criteria, athletic

complex facility programming and benchmarking, sports/athletic league/user group interviews, public participation,

o Randig Tract site investigation and analysis, and master planning.

— Lake Pflugerville Park Master Plan, Pflugerville, Texas: Project Manager for the schematic design and master
‘- planning of Lake Pflugerville Park, including the renovation and improvements for the overall site including

connectivity, ADA accessibility, planting for shade, and three primary focus areas including (1) a beach esplanade with
.) shade pavilions, playground equipment, and meandering plaza space; (2) a lake promenade to the south with upper

and lower trail connections, fishing piers/overlooks; and (3) an amphitheater with outdoor stage at the lake edge
0 covered by a large sail-type shade structure.

0 Stonebridge Ranch Aquatic Center Improvements, McKinney, Texas: Project Manager for the schematic design of
a passive recreational component to be added to an existing aquatic (swim) center. Amenities are to include a picnic

O pavilion with picnic tables, a grand stairway and prominent overlook, and an extensive trail network around and
through the property. The design accounts for future expansion of the playground equipment and other water-related
recreational facilities.

Justin Community Park, Justin, Texas: Project Manager for a 20.25-acre park partially funded with a Texas Parks
C and Wildlife Department grant. The park was designed to serve the community’s needs for outdoor recreation by

providing athletic facilities — including soccer fields for various age groups, softball and baseball fields — and related
amenities. Other amenities provided more passive recreational opportunities with the addition of a picnic pavilion
and overlook, playground equipment, and numerous trails with interpretive nodes describing both local history and

o nature. Special emphasis was given to the use of native plant material in the form of trees, shrubs, and native grasses.

Founders Park, Wylie, Texas: Assistant Project Manager with responsibilities for coordinating the completion of
construction documents, bidding, and CA/CO for the renovation and expansion of an existing sports complex that
offers its users both passive and active recreational opportunities. Amenity upgrades included new sports fields (both
softball and soccer); additional parking; two new concession stands and restroom facilities; numerous trail networks
that provide connections throughout the park, between sports activities and with future regional trail systems; picnic
pavilions; plantings and irrigation. An additional emphasis was placed on documenting local history by providing
interpretive stations along the central pedestrian trail.

Southern White Rock Creek Trail Master Plan, Dallas, Texas: Project Manager for the master planning of a
pedestrian and bike spin trail alignment to link White Rock Lake to Trinity River Corridor, the Trinity River Audubon
Center, and beyond.

0 Lancaster Amphitheater and Trail Improvements, Lancaster, Texas: Assistant Project Manager for improvements to
an existing park facility. Improvements included the design of a large open-air amphitheater with a stage, upgrades
and expansion to an existing trail network, and planting and irrigation enhancements. This project was partially
funded by a grant from Texas Parks and Wildlife Department and was completed in the fall of 2013.

Belleview Pedestrian Bridge, Dallas, Texas: Assistant Project Manager for the design and implementation of a
pedestrian suspension bridge linking downtown Dallas with theTrinity River Corridor. Other responsibilities included
handling coordination between the City and adjacent land owners, taking into consideration future development in
the vicinity.

Camp Wisdom Road Streetscape, Grand Prairie and Dallas, Texas: Project Manager for preliminary planning for
streetscape improvements that included options for road expansion from a two-lane undivided roadway to a four-
lane divided road with pedestrian/bike facilities or trail connections, plantings and irrigation, and decorative bridge
detailing that includes an overlook and rest area serving the pedestrian/bike trail.

jJ HALFF



Statement of Qualifications: City of Farmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

JIM CARRILLO, F. AICP, ASLA, RLA - Athletic Complex, Landscape
0,.,., Architecture and Parks Planning Task Lead Experience: 29 years

( 1 Education: BS/Landscape
0”— Mr. Carrillo, Half Associates’ Director of Planning, has an extensive background Architecture (Summa Cum Laude),

in long-range master planning, urban design, park planning, and site Texas A&M University

C development. His responsibilities as a planner have included comprehensive Registrations: Certified Planner,
city and park master planning, land use master planning, site planning and American Institute of Certified

r development, feasibility studies, zoning and subdivision ordinance review, Planners, No.9875
1 parcelization and subdivision layouts, zoning case studies and coordination, Registered Landscape Architect

O
and highway visual impact mitigation studies. Over the last decade, his Texas No 1377
work has been recognized with multiple awards for planning innovation
and excellence, and he was inducted as a Fellow of the American Institute ofo Certified Planners in April 2012. He is one of approximately 25 AICP Fellows
practicing in Texas today. Relevant projects include:

Hobbs Parks and Recreation Master Plan, Hobbs, New Mexico: The purpose of this master planning process
was to update the city’s 2008 Parks and Recreation Master Plan, also prepared by Half Associates, Inc. The city has
constructed two of their major community parks since the previous master plan was completed. The master plan
update focuses on future trail connections, the need for indoor recreation facilities, and acquiring parkland for the
growing areas of the city.

0 Harlingen Park Master Plan, Harlingen, Texas: Comprehensive parks, open space, and trails master plan for a City
of 59,000. The planning process included extensive public input, an inventory and assessment of current facilities,

0 development of goals, a comprehensive needs assessment, a trail plan component, and the development of a
five- to 10-year facilities priorities plan. Major recommendations of the plan included new eco-tourism facilities, the
development of a major new soccer complex, and the need for a new pool complex for the community.

Park Open Space and Trail Master Plan, Cedar Hill, Texas: Project Manager for a city-wide park system master plan.
0 The master plan is based on a detailed inventory of existing park and recreation facilities, as well as trails and projected

facility needs, in accordance with use area and spatial standards developed for the City. Public input during the needs
C assessment portion of the plan was gathered through an intense phone survey and through interviews with local

athletic leagues. The plan conforms to the City’s comprehensive plan and 5-year capital improvements plan.

0 McAIlen Parks Master Plan/Recovery Action Plan, McAllen, Texas: The preparation of this master parks plan

O focused on (1) acquisition of land for parks in underserved portions of the community, (2) the development of a
comprehensive greenbelt and trail system intended to become the major aesthetic and recreational framework for
the city, and (3) the rehabilitation of existing parks. The plan included a series of policy recommendations that endorse

0 McAllen Parks Department actions, including joint development of parks with the local school district, a proactive
land acquisition philosophy, and extensive attention given to acquiring land as part of the Park Dedication Ordinance

Q instead of fees. The public involvement process included a telephone survey, interviews with key City and user group
leaders, and public meetings.

0 Murphy Parks Master Plan, Murphy, Texas: Project Manager for the community’s first parks master plan.The
extraordinary rate of growth of this community, from 5,000 to 18,000 within a five-year span required a unique parks
plan that could rapidly accomplish both land acquisition as well as parks development. The plan led to the awarding
of a $500,000 Texas Parks and Wildlife grant to Murphy for the development of a greenbelt corridor.

Denton Rail Trail, Denton, Texas: Designed an eight-mile trail section of the Daihoma Trail, which will someday
connect the Oklahoma border and the Dallas/Fort Worth Metroplex. The trail is surfaced with a crushed rock finish,
and includes seven trestle crossings.

Mansfield Parks Master Plan, Mansfield, Texas: Preparation of a city-wide park and recreation master plan for one of
the fastest growing cities in Texas. The plan recommended that the City focus on neighborhood-based park facilities
as well the development of a city-wide aquatics facility. Extensive public involvement and working sessions with the
Parks Development Corporation were included to successfully gain valuable citizen input.

Odessa Parks Master Plan, Odessa, Texas: Project Manager for updating the master plan from previous plan. This
effort established a long-term framework or goals and objectives for the City’s effort to revitalize parks. The plan also
paid special attention to the opportunity for greenway corridors and trails throughout the City and the emerging
“Medical Corridor” in the downtown area. Opinions of probable cost for city-wide improvements and operations!
maintenance were provided for assistance in realizing future improvements and in prioritizing for bond elections. This
master plan received a Region 1,8, and 9 Excellence in Planning award from the Texas Recreation and Parks Society.

EE! HALFF



Statement of Qualifications: City of Farmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

JONATHAN WEST, RLA — Athletic Complex, Landscape Architecture
and Parks Planning Support Experience: 7.5 years

( :) Education: BS/Landscape
-— Mr.West joined Half Associates in 2005 as an intern and has worked full-time Architecture,Texas A&M University

at Half since May 2007. A creative, hard-working professional, Mr. West has Registration: Registered Landscape
Q gained extensive landscape architectural design experience in community and Architect, Texas, No.2628

regional park projects, nature preserves, bridge design, development master
-‘

planning, commercial landscape and hardscape design, wayfinding signage - -

‘—‘ design, and parks and open space master plans. In addition, Mr. West has

o developed superb abilities in architectural illustration. Relevant projects include:

Founders Park, Wylie, Texas: Project Designer responsible for the preparation and development of full construction
() documents. The project included renovating an existing baseball and soccer park to include two new softball fields

and 16 soccer fields. Included in the design were two pedestrian plazas with restrooms and concession stands, shade
structures, entry, and wayfinding signage. The planting design includes vegetated bioswales, native tree and grass
plantings.

Randig Tract Park Master Plan, Pflugerviiie, Texas: Project Landscape Architect responsible for design of potential
park improvements within a large floodplain adjacent to two neighborhoods. The master plan provided a option for
a heavily sports-themed facility, and an option for a more passive recreation option. Each design utilized the existing
vegetation and proposed a series of ponds for improved drainage, water quality, and recreation opportunities.

Justin Community Park, Justin, Texas: Project Designer responsible for the preparation and development of full
construction documents. The project entailed expanding and renovating an existing baseball complex to include
three new softball fields and two new soccer fields. In addition, park amenities included a pavilion, entry and
interpretive signage, a retention pond, creek and pond overlooks.

Stonebridge Ranch Aquatic Center Expansion, McKinney, Texas: Project designer responsible for full design
0 documents and specifications for a 5.5-acre park expansion. Responsibilities included walk layout and dimension

control, wall, step, and rail detailing, schematic grading, and coordination with civil and structural engineering. The
C project featured an elevated pavilion with steps, columns, and a 4-foot-tall stone masonry-veneered retaining wall.

Harts Branch Linear Park, Little Elm, Texas: Project Landscape Architect responsible for master planning of an
80-acre site situated along the Harts Branch creek corridor in Little Elm. The design process involved meeting with

O the Town to discuss desired amenities, conducting an inventory and analysis of existing facilities, coordination with
environmental scientists and hydraulic and hydrologic (H&H) engineers, and the creation of multiple schematic
design options. Key features of the design include an extensive trail network, ponds to mitigate flooding, overlooks,

0 playgrounds, shade structures, pedestrian bridges, and on-street parking.

0 PIano Aquatic Center, Piano, Texas: Project Landscape Architect responsible for the conceptual design, full
construction documentation, and specifications of site amenities, including a 1,500-square-foot spray pad, pavilions,

0
entry plaza, vehicular drop-off, and landscape enhancements.The project goal was to renovate an existing swim
center to provide increased spray pad space, outdoor areas for group gatherings and events, and generally improved

Ih building visibility from the nearby street. The sprayground feature is themed with colored concrete in the form of
— water droplets and there are multiple opportunities for aquatic play — including in-ground sprays and vertical features.

The project involved extensive coordination efforts to ensure a seamless connection between the hardscape and
C aquatics design.

C Moisen Farm, Alien, Texas: Project Designer responsible for site analysis, conceptual design, and layout of a proposed
environmental learning center. Site, slope, vegetation, and drainage analyses were used to generate diagrammatic

o studies of possible site layouts, and then refined into one final master plan. Additionally, an 80-page master planning
document was created to supplement the plan, going into detail about regional context of the project, the potential
of the site, vegetation and wildlife analysis, significant historical events, and gives an in-depth description of all the

‘J design decisions that were made.

East Hill Park, Lewisviile, Texas: Prepared multiple conceptual site plans for proposed neighborhood park serving
residents of a new subdivision near Lake Lewisville. Amenities include pavilion, playground, parking, trails, and native
planting.

::: HALFF



Statement of Qualifications: City of Farmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

EVERETT SPAETH, AlA, LEED AP — Facilities Planning; Architecture
0 Task Lead Experience: 43 years

Education: BA/Architecture, Texas
C”— Mr. Spaeth joined Half Associates in 1996, bringing 25 years of experience. He Tech University

has managed design, document production, and construction administration Registrations: Registered
0 on a wide variety of projects. As such, he has a high degree of technical Professional Architect,Texas, No.

knowledge and proficiency. His experience encompasses architectural design 5205

O and management of large, complex projects. Relevant projects include: Registered Interior Designer, Texas,

Myers Park and Event Center, Collin County, Texas: Project Manager for
No.2547

0 a Master Development Plan for a 223-acre park and event center for Collin National Council of Architectural
County. The project included a 5,000 seat Main Event Arena, 40,000 sf Exhibit Registration Boards Certified, No.

O Building, Multi-Purpose Arena with show-ring and warm-up ring, stall barns 15580

with 400 stalls, four outdoor arenas, RV Park, Maintenance Barn, and parking LEED AP BD+C
for 1,850 cars. Project also included plans for an amphitheater, conference —,

center, and renovation of existing facilities.

Historic Fort Worth Stockyards Master Plan, Fort Worth, Texas: Architect and Urban Designer for development
of a Master Plan for a 125-acre urban, mixed-use, housing, retail and entertainment development that will preserve
the Fort Worth Stockyards National Historic District and attract visitors, tourists and residents to a vibrant 24-
hour destination that will increase revenue and profit for the developer while maintaining the historic Fort Worth
Stockyards authenticity and character.

O Bell County Expo Livestock/Equestrian Facility: Principal-in-Charge for a programming and design of a fully
enclosed and air-conditioned equestrian arena with seating for 1,000 spectators including a separate warm-up arena,

Q stall barn and exhibit space. The new arena is designed for multi-use equestrian and livestock show events that occur
in Bell County throughout the year. The arena includes state-of-the art facilities for a wide variety of equestrian events.

O
Foodservice is provided in a Grille dining area overlooking the activities in the arena with additional foodservice
concessions provided in the arena. The existing Central Plant is upgraded for existing facilities and expanded for the
new arena. Public access and parking is provided for 700 cars and exhibitor truck and trailer parking for 100 vehicles is
included in the site development.

Q Coppell Town Center, Coppell, Texas: Architectural Design of a five-acre plaza and park to be a focal point and
connect the town center, justice center, fire station, elementary school, and YMCA buildings in a way that created

O a unique, significant urban space for Coppell. Significant architectural features include plaza paving, clock tower,
shade structures, and restroom facilities. The town center design was a collaborative design effort of Half’s architects,
landscape architects, planners, and civil engineers.

Renovation of Pease Elementary School, Dallas, Texas: Principal-in-Charge for renovation of 63,230-square-
foot existing building. Upgrades were made to entrances, corridors, toilet accessibility, and architectural upgrades
were made to the building’s interior and exterior as well as the mechanical, electrical and plumbing systems.The

O accessibility upgrades provided building access to physically challenged students, visitors and staff and accessibility
along primary interior corridors, in restrooms and at drinking fountains for student use at each building level.The
project also included the addition of an interior elevator, roofing renovation, sitework related to accessibility and

‘—‘ safety, and the addition of computer technology system infrastructure.

Texas A&M University Campus Housing Facilities Assessment: Project Manager for a facilities assessment that
included surveying and analyzing 106 housing/dormitory buildings containing more than 2.6 million square feet. The
buildings were reviewed to determine their condition, identify deficiencies, and develop cost estimates for deferred
maintenance, code compliance, capital renewal, and routine maintenance. This information was used to rank and
prioritize the needed maintenance and repair projects through a specialized computer program with an interactive
database which provides the university’s Department of Residence Life and Housing accurate information for building
maintenance needs, life-cycle costs and analysis, and strategic planning.

Bear Branch Park, Café Java, Woodlands, Texas: Project Manager for a 2,900-square-foot park structure containing
C food service, a pro shop, and restroom facilities to serve parks patrons. The purpose of the building was to be able to

provide light snacks and drinks as well as necessary equipment and gear for the surrounding activities.

Parr Park Restroom Facility, Grapevine, Texas: Project Manager for a 988-square-foot restroom and storage facility
for the Grapevine Parks and Recreation Department.

EE HALFF



Statement of Qualifications: City of Farmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

0
PHILLIP APPLEBAUM, PE — Facilities Planning; Mechanical,

O Electrical and Plumbing (MEP) Task Lead Experience: 30 years
Education: BS/Electrical Engineering,

(3 Since joining Half Associates in 1998 through acquisition, Mr. Applebaum The University of Texas at Austin
has managed and engineered the development of plans and specifications RegistrationS Licensed Professional

O for MEP projects involving education and other institutional facilities. He is an I Engineer, Texas, No.68404
expert at designing MEP projects in a way that will not disrupt ongoing MEP

____________ _________

operations during construction. His discipline-specific experience in all types
‘—‘ of electrical distribution — including 5 and 15 KV systems as well as functional,

efficient, and decorative lighting design — also makes him a key contributor in the aesthetic design of projects. Mr.
0 Applebaum is also experienced in specialty systems including computer room power and distribution, life safety

systems, emergency power systems, and lighting control. Relevant projects include:

Brushy Creek Municipal Utility District Park Lighting, Brushy Creek, Texas: Electrical Engineer for the upgrades to
three parks that included trail lighting; sport court lighting for basketball, tennis and volleyball; and field lighting for
baseball and soccer. Other upgrades included providing illumination in existing naturally ventilated restrooms, the
lighting of existing pavilions, and the lighting of playgrounds.

Marine Creek, Fort Worth, Texas: Electrical Engineer of Record for three parks: (1) Provided Lincoln Park with new
0 electrical service and connections to new water features; (2) provided Marine Creek Linear Park with an upgraded

electrical service providing electrical connections for pavilion power and lighting; and (3) provided Rodeo Park with
baseball field lighting to replace the existing lights.

o Jefferson Park Upgrades, Hobbs, New Mexico: Electrical Engineer for park upgrades that included baseball field
lighting and concession stand. Construction was completed in 2014.

Myers Park Barn Electrical Upgrade, Collin County, Texas: Program Manager and Electrical Engineer of Record for
the electrical assessment of existing electrical systems and distribution. This report led to the design of a new electrical
distribution system consisting of new main panel circuit breakers with appropriate AIC ratings; new distribution
feeders and panels serving new GFCI outlets located throughout the barn for use by event participants; new lighting
circuits and controls; and a new service grounding system.

Collin County Adventure Park Portable Generator, Collin County, Texas: Project Manager and Electrical Engineer
for the design of the incorporation of a portable emergency generator suitable for the operation of the Collin County
Adventure Park’s maintenance building and wastewater treatment plant.

Rockport Aquatic Center, Rockport, Texas: Project Manager and Electrical Engineer of Record for a 17,500-square-
0 foot building that included a 4,000-square-foot locker room and administrative offices, a 500-square-foot concession

area, and a 13,000-square-foot swimming pool area. The electrical service and distribution throughout the site allowed

C) for connections to lighting fixtures, equipment, and miscellaneous devices. Specific coordination of special systems
such as fire alarm and security systems was also provided.

Bear Branch Park Phase hA, The Woodlands, Texas: Provided quality assurance/quality control (QA/QC) and
technical guidancefora new parkentrance, parkgeneral lighting, and parking lot lighting with provisionsforfuture
parking spaces. Area lighting was also provided for a dog park, and provisions were made for area lighting in a skating
area and a BMX track in the park. The design included lighting controls, electrical service entrance, and distribution.

Lake Fort Phantom Hill Park Improvements, Abilene, Texas: Electrical Engineer for park lighting improvements.

Safety Rest Stop for the Texas Department of Transportation, IH-40 Eastbound, Amarillo, Texas: Provided
4m electrical QA/QC and technical guidance for the design of a new roadside hospitality facility with restrooms, picnic

pavilions, a playground, and a large lighted parking lot. Route 66 deco-style architecture provided opportunities for
,—, design of special exterior flood lighting, landscape lighting, and cold cathode building accents, anterior design, used
L’ direct, indirect, and decorative lighting. Power requirements included emergency generator sized to support life

safety lighting, security, and alarm systems and water well and sanitary process equipment.

Safety Rest Stop for TxDOT on IH-40 Westbound, Amarillo, Texas: Provided electrical QA/QC and technical
guidance for the design of a new roadside facility with restrooms, a playground, picnic pavilions, and lighted parking
lot. The earth shelter construction used indirect and accent interior lighting, and exterior lighting for landscape
parking playground, and walkways. Special color lighting was designed for the architectural sail wall at the building
entrance. Power requirement included emergency generator sized to support life safety lighting, security, and alarm
systems, and water well and sanitary process equipment.

IJ HALFF



Statement of Qualifications: City of Farmersville
J.W. Spain Athletic Complex Park Plan

DAVID LITTLETON, PE — Site Engineering Task Lead
Experience: 33 years

Mr. Littleton has extensive experience in site design. He also has valuable Education: BSICIv1I Engineering,
experience in pre-development studies, construction budgeting, project University of Santa Clara
scheduling, and survey coordination, including the preparation of Registration: Licensed Professional
topographic, boundary, route surveys, improvement and pre-construction Engineer Texas No.62128
surveys and preparation of property file plats. Relevant projects include:

University of Dallas, New Lacrosse Field, Irving, Texas: Principal-in-Charge
for civil work required to develop a new NCAA-regulation lacrosse field and practice field. Work included establishing
field size, site location alternative analysis, site topographic and tree survey coordination, access road and parking
facility design, and utility service analysis for future concession and restroom facilities.

Wylie Civic Center, Wylie, Texas: Principal-in-Charge/Project Manager for civil engineering at the Civic Center
Complex that will provide a consolidated municipal facility for the city of Wylie. The site is located along FM 1378 just
north of FM 544. The facility will rest on approximately 17 acres within an overall 250-acre city owned parcel of land.
The new facility will require relocation of FM 1378 and numerous public utilities. Project included surveying services
for an over-all topographic map and platting of the property. Site civil work included site layout, paving design, utility
service design, grading, drainage and erosion control design, and construction phase services.

Dallas Zoo Storm Water Quality Improvement Project, Dallas, Texas: Design and implementation of Storm water
Quality Improvement efforts. Work includes identification of project phases, design of measures intended to improve
storm water quality at the Zoo, management of sub-consultants during design and construction phases and overall
evaluation of the improvements completed.

0 Nasher Sculpture Center, Dallas, Texas: Civil work at the Nasher Sculpture Center in the Dallas Arts District. Project
design and coordination includes surveying, utility service design, grading, drainage, and platting for on-site work,
relocation of adjacent 16-inch water main, and perimeter street improvement plans. Other design and coordination
tasks include: analysis of existing 9-foot-by-i 2-foot horseshoe storm drain, coordination with landscape designs
regarding garden drainage, addition ofTurell, and Serra sculptures to project.

HOLLY BECKA — Public Outreach Task Lead Experience: 22 years

0 Ms. Becka, who joined Half Associates in 2014, has more than 20 years of Education: BA/Journalism, Texas
communications and project management experience. She previously served A&M University

o as the public outreach task leader on high-profile North Texas transportation —————————

projects and served as a public involvement sub-consultant on various
engineering and transportation projects. She is a former award-winning Dallas Morning News reporter. Relevant
projects include:

Sam Rayburn Tollway Public Involvement Task Leader, North Texas Tollway Authority (NTTA), Texas: For more
than four years, managed public/stakeholder outreach for the NTTA’s $639 million Sam Rayburn Tollway corridor in
Dallas, Denton and Collin counties. Responsibilities included developing and implementing strategic/emergency
communications plans; planning, publicizing and carrying out public meetings on corridor aesthetics, SRT/US 75
interchange design modifications and vendor opportunities; conducting outreach to elected officials, community
members and affected businesses and property owners; and serving as the client’s liaison to project engineers and
construction task leads. Helped client anticipate and respond to concerns from the public, media and elected officials,
tailoring messaging to each audience.

U.S. 75 Corridor Study Public Involvement, U.S. 75 from IH-635 to SH 121, Dallas and Collin Counties, Texas:
As a subconsultant, helped manage public/stakeholder outreach for a Texas Department of Transportation corridor
study and preliminary engineering project to address widening and long-range corridor needs. Wrote/edited public
meeting legal notices, news releases, leave-behinds, and created/managed a database of affected property owners
and other project stakeholders to be invited to public meetings. Staffed and helped conduct public meetings.

(‘ North Carolina Transportation Network Public Involvement (NCDOT), North Carolina: As a subconsultant, helped
manage public/stakeholder outreach for an NCDOT statewide transportation planning effort. Responsibilities included

,-

creating/managing a database of stakeholders in each county statewide to invite stakeholders to regional planning
‘.—‘ meetings. Helped manage public input through MindMixer online tool; created leave-behinds; wrote news releases.

•1•::: HALFF 21



 

Presenter 

2 



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS
CITY OF FARMERSVILLE

J.W. SPAIN PARK PLAN
January 15, 2015



LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE PLANNING URBAN DESIGN ME SA

January 15, 2015

Benjamin White, P.E.
City Manager
City of Formersville
205 S. Main Street
Farmersville, Texas 75442

Re: Request for Qualifications - J.W. Spain Park Plan

Dear Mr. White,

MESA is pleased to present this letter of qualification for the J.W. Spain Park Plan RFQ. It can be said that parks and public
gardens are the gifts of a City to its citizens. Multi-use parks are a means to preserve the natural and cultural heritage of a
growing city such as Farmersville, while providing for the recreational needs of its citizens. Though they address multiple needs,
their diverse functionality must be coupled with experienced and strategic planning in order to maximize the programming and
recreational opportunities for the citizens, as well as preserve the natural heritage and experience of the city’s natural spaces.
This project is an opportunity to create a wonderful destination within Farmersville, one that will be enjoyed for generations to
come.

Company Overview
MESA was formed in 1981 with a simple idea: to bring new design and artistic sensibilities to landscape architecture, creating
a visual language that reflected both nature and local culture to create settings with a strong sense of place. Over thirty years
later, our company has grown and evolved, becoming more interdisciplinary in order to incorporate the essence and spirit of
the land into our projects. Today, MESA is managed by a group of four principals with a wide range of project experience,
combining landscape architecture with experience in planning, urban design and architecture. This allows us to offer our
clients the full diversity of our talents without sacrificing our personalized relationships. The common thread of our experience
is the design process we incorporate with every project. It is this process that ultimately sets us apart from our competitors. Our
process incorporates regional architectural influences, honors the culture and heritage of project sites, and celebrates nature,
interweaving natural beauty and human interaction into communities

Design Philosophy, Project Approach and Experience
Public parks and open spaces should celebrate civic pride and community spirit. When designed with regard for the environment
and the human experience, parks offer a healthy outlet for family communication, festivals, sports, and passive recreation.
MESA passionately believes that positive outdoor spaces are vital components of thriving communities and cities. Well designed
projects become city landmarks and travel destinations regardless of size.

MESA uses a multi-layered system of determinants (land patterns, waterways, ecosystems, history, and other influences) to
encourage a broad awareness of a project’s cultural and ecological implications. In addition to natural systems, we look
at existing urban and rural potterns within a project setting and the cultural preferences of surrounding neighborhoods and
communities. The site is considered a resource, with inherent value that informs every design. The story of the site is then (expressed in an application of regionally appropriate forms, revealing lessons about geology, plants, wildlife, and people.

1807 Ross Avenue, Suite 333 Dallas, Texas 75201 Office 214 871 0568 Fax 214 871 1507 www.mesadesigngroup.com



Our firm is extremely well versed in construction methods, documentation, and project management. We approach these
components of each project as an on-going extension of the design process. Close collaboration with our clients, consultants,
and contractors throughout design development and cost estimation phases is part of every project we work on. In our
experience, we Find that this is this best method to achieve a quality project, with predictable results, that exceeds our client’s
expectations. Throughout the construction phase, we maintain a presence on the jobsite in order to observe construction activities
and to ensure compliance with the intent of the construction documents.

Experience with Multiple Stakeholders
Our experience with municipal park plans, private development entitlements, and regional land use and zoning plans has
provided a variety of experiences with community consensus building. We have facilitated focus groups and work sessions with
city staff, developers, and citizens in an effort to incorporate their needs and interests into a final project design that is a product
of community based discussion and dialog.

Availability and Commitment
The Principal in Charge of this contract, Fred Walters, and the Project Manager, Joe Steffes, will be your primary points of
contact for the duration of the contract. MESA’s staff of 25 is a collection of individuals with unique project expertise in a
complement of design and planning areas. This ensures expertise in various project types and a team-oriented atmosphere
within, each group. While principals maintain a consistent involvement throughout the project, the office structure allows for a
consistent team of associates, project managers, and landscape architects to be present to the project and familiar with the client
and consultant team.

The office structure also promotes flexibility and the ability to react to project deadlines. Staff con be mobilized for critical
timelines and schedules as studio leaders analyze workloads and shift priorities accordingly, sharing among studios to respond
to client needs.

We are enthusiastic about this opportunity to work together and with the staff and citizens of Formersville. We are confident our
team will be able to provice a special service that will facilitate the city’s goals and vision and the development of the J.W. Spain
Park Plan, ensuring its legacy into the future.

Sincerely,

Fred Walters
Principal
MESA

> Point of Contact — Fred Walters, ASLA
> Street Address — 1 807 Ross Avenue Suite 333, Dallas, Texas 75201
> Direct Number-214.871 .4411
> Mobile Number - 214.577.2874
> E-mail Address - fwalters@mesadesigngroup.com
> Web Site - www.mesadesigngroup.com

MESA



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. Firm Information

2. Key Personnel Resumes

3. Prolect Experience

4. References

5. Project Approach

(

(



FIRM

IN FORMATION

1



FIRM INFORMATION

MESA is an award winning Landscape Architecture, Planning, and Urban Design
firm based in Dallas, Texas. For over 30 years, we have enhanced public and private
spaces and created opportunities for recreation, education, and community, both locally
and internationally. Our portfolio ranges from intimate garden spaces to large-scale,
comprehensive, master-planning projects. We create with the understanding that what we
do must be worthy of future generations.

Name of Company

Location

Date of Formation

Principals of Firm

Personnel of Firm

MESA Contact

MESA Design Associates, Inc.

1807 Ross Avenue, Suite 333
Dallas, Texas 75201
(2 14) 871-0568 phone
(214) 871-1507 fax

May 1981

Stan Cowan
Fred Walters
Mary Ellen Cowan
Aaron Duncan

MESA’s staff of twenty-five includes: landscape architects,
planners, urban designers, graphic designers and administrative
support staff. The average employee tenure at MESA is over
10 years.

Fred Walters
Principal
(214) 871.4411 direct
fwalters@mesadesigngroup.com

(

Experience of Firm
MESA has wide-ranging experience in regards to public/private design and has completed numerous projects
within a range of budgets. Our services include the large-scale comprehensive master planning of public/
private projects to the finite construction details that make a project successful.

Professional Licenses
Alabama, Arkansas, Colorado, Florida, Illinois, Kansas, Louisiana, Minnesota, Mississippi, Nebraska, New
Jersey, New Mexico, New York, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Texas, Virginia

Technical Capabilities
MESA has significant computer capabilities in house with AutoDesk (AutoCAD 2014), Adobe Design Suites
CC, Sketch-up, Lumion and various other software capabilities at every desk. In addition, the firm utilizes
GIS databases for several projects and has Full Internet access for transfer and collection of data. With this
technical support, MESA has the adequate staffing and financial stability to work in a timely manner for
project completion.

(

MESA



FIRM HISTORY AND PHILOSOPHY

History
MESA was founded in 1 981 by a group of young designers with a new idea about
landscape architecture. By bringing artistic sensibilities and local cultural knowledge to
the established methods of landscape architecture, we would create a way of seeing, an
awareness of incredible sites, and a strong, authentic sense of place. The idea was simple,
and it worked. Our prolects developed into genuine, living environments supported by a
serious knowledge of local culture and detail. Our philosophy of solving complex design
problems by assembling diverse creative minds at one table proved successful.

Today, we still adhere to that philosophy of collaboration for it has become essential in a
modern, global environment. MESA has grown significantly in 30 years with the opening of
the Abu Dhabi office in 2010. Our team of new designers and partners are guided by the
practical experiences of the founding principals.

MESA’S unfailing dedication to the art and science of landscape architecture, urban design
and planning remains, only the table has grown.

Philosophy John Ruskin

We seek to allow land to best serve the needs of people by integrating the primary
functions of nature and settlement through:

Preservation, Remembrance, Expression

articulated by:

Creation through design

Capturing the creation through activity

Transferring the creation to a larger community

“Therefore, when we build,
let us think that we
build forever.
Let it not be for present
delight, nor for present use
alone;
Let it be such work as our
descendants will
thank us for...”

MESA



(SERVICES

MESA is a full-service landscape architecture, planning, and urban design firm. At the same time, we offer flexible solutions and
personalized service to our clients. Our office houses numerous specialty studios that can work independently or as part of a
larger team depending on the project’s requirements. Each specialty group is managed by an experienced leader well versed in
MESA’s work ethic and philosophy.

URBAN LIVING

MESA

CAMPUS COMMUNITIES CORPORATE ENVIRONMENTAL
EDUCATION

HEALTHCARE & HOSPITALITY
SENIOR LIVING

MASTER PL4NNING

PUBLIC GARDENS RESIDENTIAL RETAIL & MIXED-USE



RECENT AWARDS

2014
Canyon Falls

Mill City Report, Dallas Habitat for Humanity

Mill City Report, Dallas Habitat for Humanity

Reverchon Park

Reverchon Park

Reverchon Park

Rockbrook

Turtle Creek Pump House

2013
Central Park

Dogwood Canyon Audubon Center

Glukhovo

Gramercy on the Park

Light Farms

Mill City Report, Dallas Habitat for Humanity

Mill City Report, Dallas Habitat for Humanity

Stonebridge Ranch Book

Wildwood Residence

2012
Austin Ranch

Brenham Downtown Master Plan

Central Park - Public Safety Building

Central Park - The Summit

CityStars Sharm El Sheikh

CityStars Sharm El Sheikh

CityStars Sharm El Sheikh

Dogwood Canyon Audubon Center

Jawaher Al Saadiyat Landscape Brochure

Lantona

La Palmera

Prairie Creek Library

TRAPS North Region, Committee’s Choice Award

Texas ASLA, Merit Award, Constructed Projects - Public

Texas ASLA, Merit Award, Design Unrealized - Commercial

DBA, McSAM Award, Multifamily Rental Community of the Year

DBJ, Best Real Estate Deals, Single-Family Planned Community of the Year

MarCom, Platinum Award, Pro Bono

Graphic Design USA, American InHouse Design Award

Texas ASLA, Honor Award, Communications

Texas ASIA, Honor Award, Constructed Projects - Residential

GDPC, Urban Design Award

Texas APA, Profect Planning Award

USGBC, LEED Silver

USGBC, LEED Gold

Cityscape Abu Dhabi, Best Residential Project Award (Future)

Cityscape Abu Dhcibi, Best Urban Design & Master Planning Award

Cityscape Abu Dhabi, Best Mixed Use Project Award (Future)

USGBC, LEED Gold

Graphic Design USA, American InHouse Design Award

DBA, McSAM Award, People’s Choice Award, Community of the Year

ICSC, Silver Award, Sustainable Design, Renovation/Expansion of an Existing Proje

USGBC, LEED Platinum

DBJ, Best Real Estate Deals, Single-Family Planned Community of the Year

Texas ASIA, Merit Award, Planning and Analysis

Hermes Creative Awards, Gold Design Award, Pro Bono

Texas ASIA, Merit Award, Constructed Projects - Public

Preservation Texas, Honor Award, Historic Restoration

Preservotion Dallas, Preservation Achievement Award

Texas ASIA, Merit Award, Constructed Projects - Residential

James Rose Center, Suburbia Transformed 30 Award

MESA



RECENT AWARDS

Quinta Mazatlan

Shczngri La Botanical Gardens

Tucson Mall

Westfield Valencia

2011
Central Park

Central Park

Lantana

La Palmera

Santa Fe Enclave

Sowwah Island Central Park Book

Sowwah Island Central Park Book

Valencia Town Center

3600 MalI

360° Mall

2010
Bellevue Square

Blue Cross Blue Shield

Cherry Hill Mall

Cherry Hill Mall

Ferrari World

Fort Worth Museum of Nature & Science

Heights at Park Lane

Heights at Park Lane

Heights at Park Lane

International Business Park 15

Irving Veterans Memorial Park

Kyle Comprehensive Plan

La Maison on Revere

La Maison on Revere

The Monarch

USGBC, LEED Silver

National ASIA, Honor Award, General Design

ICSC, Finalist Award, Renovation or Expansion of an Existing Project

ICSC, Gold Award, Renovation or Expansion of an Existing Project

(

TRAPS, Planning Excellence Award

Tapping Out, Top 10 Award

DBA, McSAM Award, People’s Choice Award, Community of the Year

USGBC, LEED Silver

DBJ, Best Real Estate Deal, Single Family Residential Deal af the Year

Texas ASIA, Award of Excellence, Communications

Graphic Design USA, American lnHouse Design Award

SAD!, Award for Renovated or Expanded Enclosed Center

ICSC Middle East & North Africa, Gold Award, Excellence in Design & Developmer

SAD!, Honorable Mention for New Enclosed Center

ICSC, Silver Award, Renovation or Expansion of an Existing Project

USGBC, LEED Silver

ICSC, Silver Award, Renovation or Expansion of an Existing Project

SADI, Honorable Mention for New Enclosed Center

Cityscape Abu Dhabi, Best Commercial, Office, Retail Future Development

Topping Out Top 10 Award

NAHB Pillars of the Industry, Best High-Rise Apartment, Best Mb!red-Use Community
Multi-Family Community of the Year

PCBC, Gold Nugget Award of Merit - Best Multi-Family Housing Project

USGBC, LEED Silver

USGBC, LEED Gold

Texas ASLA, Award of Excellence, Public Design - Constructed Projects

Texas APA, Comprehensive Planning Award

Aurora Awards, Best of State - Texas

Aurora Awards, Landscape Design & Pool Design

Aurora Awards, Mixed Use Land Development for High Rise

(

MESA



RECENT AWARDS

The Monarch

Mosaic at Mueller Apartments

Muskoseepi Park

Muskoseepi Park

Silver Bay YMCA of the Adirondacks

2009
Atlanta Botanical Garden

Atlanta Botanical Garden

Brownsville Comprehensive Plan

Dallas Habitat for Humanity Book

Dallas Habitat for Humanity Book

Erwin Park Master Plan

International Business Park 15

Light Farms

McKinney Town Center Study Initiative

MESA Holiday Card

Nakheel Headquarters

One Arts Plaza

Seguin Comprehensive Plan

Shangri La Botanical Gardens

Sofitel Resort Hotel

St. Mark’s School of Texas Centennial Hall

Tyler Museum of Art Book

Whispering Pines

NAHB Finalist, Best High-Rise Apartment, Multifamily Pillars of the Industry Awards

Austin Energy Green Building, Three Star Rating

Texas ASLA, Honor Award, Planning and Analysis

Canadian Institute oF Planners, Award of Planning Excellence

Texas ASLA, Award of Excellence, Planning and Analysis

ULI - Atlanta, Development of Excellence Award

ULI - Atlanta, Sustainable Development Award

Texas APA, Comprehensive Planning Award

Graphic Design USA, American InHauso Design Award

MarCom, Platinum Award

Texas ASLA, Honor Award, Planning and Analysis

Tapping Out, Top 10 Award

NSMC, Silver Award, Excellence in Sales, Marketing & Community Development

NCTCOG, CLIDE Award, Public Policy and Planning

Graphic Design USA, American lnHouse Design Award

Texas ASIA, Merit Award, Design Unrealized Commercial

NCTCOG, CLIDE Award, New Development

Texas APA, Comprehensive Planning Award

AlA Committee on the Environment, Honor Award, Top Ten Green Projects

Texas ASLA, Honor Award, Design Unrealized Commercial

AlA Connecticut, Design Award

Texas ASIA, Merit Award, Communications

Middle East Cityscape, Best Residential Development

For additional awards received prior to 2009, please visit our website at www.mesadesigngroup.com.

MESA has received awards from the following professional societies, industry organizations and publications:
AEGB (Austin Energy Green Building), AGC (Associated General Contractors of America) AlA (American Institute oF Architects),
ALCC (Associated Landscape Contractors of Colorado, APA (American Planning Association), ASIA (American Society of Landscape
Architects), Aurora Awards, Aquatics International Magazine, CIP (Canadian Institute of Planners), Cityscape, DBA (Dallas Builders
Association), DBJ (Dallas Business Journal), Graphic Design USA, GDPC (Greater Dallas Planning Council), ICSC (International Council of
Shopping Centers), Interiorscape, MarCom (Marketing Communications), NAHB (National Association of Home Builders), NCTCOG (North
Central Texas Council of Governments), NTHP (National Trust for Historic Preservation), PCBC (Pacific Coast Builders Conference), Preservation
Dallas, Preservation Texas, Recreation Management, Retail Traffic, SADI (Superior Achievement in Design & Imaging), Tapping Out, TRAPS
(Texas Recreation and Park Society), TWC (The Waterfront Center), ULI (Urban Land Institute), USGBC (United States Green Building Council)

MESA



(

KEY

PERSONNEL RESUMES

(

2
(



KEY PERSONNEL RESUMES

Stan R. Cowan, ASIA
Principal in Charge

Mr. Stan Cowan is the managing Principal at MESA and directs the firm’s growth in regional
and international project design and business development. Stan’s design beliefs are deeply
rooted in natural systems with respect for environmental and cultural landscapes. With over
twenty five years experience as a landscape architect, he understands the value of balancing
each project’s economic, environmental, and creative manifestations within the client’s goals
and expectations.

In recent years, Stan has led numerous award-winning projects that reflect his and the firm’s
belief that the successful design of public and private spaces is best shaped by its connection
to the surrounding and regional environment and community. Mr. Cowan’s philosophy and
leadership provide clients with innovative design methods, a creative use of materials, and
follow-through from pre-development to construction.

Professional Experience
MESA, 1987— present

Relevant Project Experience
Arbor Hills Nature Preserve - Piano, Texas
Meadowmere Park Master Plan - Grapevine, Texas
Oak Paint Park and Nature Preserve Master Plan - Piano, Texas
Oak Point Park Festival Venue - Piano, Texas
Collin County Adventure Camp - Westminster, Texas
Ailaso Ranch Youth Camp - Wood County, Texas
Trails Master Plan - Alien, Texas
Central Park - Grand Prairie, Texas
Tom Muehienbeck Center - PIano, Texas
McKinney Aquatics and Fitness Center - McKinney, Texas
NRH2O Long Range Development Plan - North Richiand Hills, Texas
North Richiand Hills New Municipal Complex - North Richiand Hills, Texas
Valley View Municipal Complex - Irving, Texas
U.S. 75 and DART Corridor - Richardson, Texas

Relevant Awards
2014 Merit Award, Texas ASLA, Miii City Area Report for Dallas Area Habitat for Humanity
2013 Committee’s Choice Award, TRAPS North Region, Central Park
2013 Merit Award, Texas ASIA, Dogwood Canyon Audubon Center
2012 LEED Platinum, Prairie Creek Library
2012 LEED Gold, Dogwood Canyon Audubon Center
2012 LEED Gold, The Summit at Central Park
2012 LEED Silver, Central Park Public Safety Building
2011 Planning Excellence Award, Texas Recreation & Park Society, Central Park
2011 Topping Out Award, Grand Prairie Public Safety Building & The Summit
2009 Public Policy and Planning Award, CLIDE, McKinney Town Center Study Initiative
1998 Honor Award, Texas ASIA, Arbor Hills Nature Preserve

dN 4
Education
Bachelor of Landscape
Architecture, Kansas State
University, 1987

Sigma Lambda Alpha and
Tau Sigma Delta Honor
Societies

Honor for Excellence in
Landscape Architecture,
1986— 1987

Professional
Registrations
Licensed Landscape
Architect in the following
states:
Alabama No. 545
Arkansas No. 5073
Colorado No. 1022
Illinois No. 157.00 142
Kansas No. 674
Minnesota No. 43253
Mississippi No. 426
Nebraska No. LA306
New Jersey No.
2IASOO1 11700
New Mexico No. 334
New York No. 002292-1
Oregon No. 522
Texas No. 2118

tL
A

MESA



KEY PERSONNEL RESUMES

Fred Walters, ASLA
Design Principal

Mr. Walters has played an influential role in MESA’s park, open space and environmental
design since he began with the firm in 1993. He studies each project as it pertains to its
geographical, ecological, and cultural region and integrates these endemic qualities into the
civic identity of each site. Fred is attentive to detail not only through construction practices,
but also through his involvement with municipal policies and processes, developing agency
consensus internally and with the public through all stages. He applies his skill to create cost
sensitive solutions and encourage preservation with a goal to educate on more sustainable
practices.

With extensive project experience in neighborhood community services and their ancillary
amenities, Fred has facilitated design teams on numerous public parks, open space master
plans, and environmental camps. The success of these projects display his adept ability to
transform complex sites and development programs into functional environments through careful
design consideration.

Professional Experience
MESA 1993-Present

Relevant Project Experience
Holland Lake Park - Weatherford, Texas
Windhaven Meadows Park - Piano, Texas
Reverchon Park - Dallas, Texas
Central Pork - Grand Prairie, Texas
Oak Paint Park and Nature Preserve Master Plan - Piano, Texas
Oak Paint Park Festival Venue — Piano, Texas
Dogwood Canyon Audubon Center - Cedar Hill, Texas
Meadowmere Park Master Plan - Grapevine, Texas
The Keller Pointe - Keller, Texas
Churchill Recreation Center. Dallas, Texas
North Richiand Hills New Municipal Complex- North Richland Hills, Texas
Addison Pedestrian Connection - Addison, Texas

Relevant Awards
2014 Honor Award, Historic Restoration, Preservation Texas, Reverchon Park
2014 Preservation Achievement Award, Preservation Dallas, Reverchon Park
2014 Merit Award, Texas ASLA, Reverchon Park
2013 Committee’s Choice Award, TRAPS North Region, Central Park
2013 Merit Award, Texas ASLA, Dogwood Canyon Audubon Center
2012 LEED Gold, Dogwood Canyon Audubon Center
2012 LEED Gold, The Summit at Central Park
2012 LEED Silver, Central Park Public Safety Building
2012 LEED Silver, Quinta Mazatlan
2011 Planning Excellence Award, Texas Recreation & Park Society, Central Park
2003 Honor Award, Texas ASIA, DART/ Richardson Corridor Study
1998 Honor Award, Texas ASIA, Arbor Hills Nature Preserve

Bachelor of Fine Arts,
Kansas State University,
1989

(

(Professional
Registrations
Licensed Landscape
Architect in the following
states:
Louisiana No. W260
Oklahoma No. LA 0384
Pennsylvania No.
LAOO3Q 12
Texas No. 2137
Virginia No. 0406001733

Education
Master of Landscape
Architecture, University of
Texas at Arlington, 1996

(

MLSA



KEY PERSONNEL RESUMES

Joe Steffes, ASIA, LEED AP
Senior Project Manager

Mr. Steffes is a Senior Project Manager at MESA with twelve years of experience in both
private and public sector development projects. His portfolio exhibits a full range of landscape
architecture and site planning expertise—concept through construction—and knowledge
in specialty areas including parks and recreation, education, corporate, government, and
healthcare projects. Major projects include the Aquatic and Fitness Center at Gabe Nesbilt
Park in McKinney, Texas, Meadowmere Park in Grapevine, Texas and Oak Point Park and
Nature Preserve in Piano, Texas.

Mr. Steffes is an active member of the American Society of Landscape Architects (ASLA),
U.S. Green Building Council (USGBC), and is a committee member for Certification with the
Council of Landscape Architectural Registration Boards (CLARB).

Professional Experience
MESA, 2013 - present
GLMV Architecture, Inc., 2010 - 2013
McCluggage Von Sickle & Perry, 2005 - 2010

Relevant Project Experience
Meadowmere Park - Grapevine, Texas
Oak Point Park and Nature Preserve Master Plan - Piano, Texas
Oak Point Park Festival Venue - Piano, Texas
McKinney Aquatic Center at Gabe Nesbiti Park - McKinney, Texas
Windhaven Meadows Park - Piano, Texas
City of Wichita Garvey Park — Wichita, Kansas *

Coiwich Park Master Plan — Coiwich, Kansas *

Northeast Baseball Complex — Wichita, Kansas *

Sunrise Rotary Boundless Playground - Wichita, Kansas*

Ralph Wulz Riverside Tennis Center Remodel - Wichita, Kansas *

Delano Streetscape Prolect - Wichita, Kansas *

* Experience while employed at a previous firm

Relevant Awards
2014 LEED Silver, GLMV Office Renovation *

2012 Chapter Service Award, American Society of Landscape Architects
2011 LEED Gold, City of Greensburg Public Works Facility*

2011 LEED Gold, Kiowa County Jail, Greensburg *

2011 LEED Gold, Smoky Hill Range Support Facility Complex *

2011 LEED Silver, Wichita Transit Van Maintenance Facility*

2010 LEED Silver, Kiowa County Maintenance Facility*

2009 LEED Platinum, Greensburg lncubator*
* Experience while employed at a previous firm

Publications
“Sunrise Boundless Playscape,” Landscape Architect and Specifier News, September 2011

Bachelor of Landscape
Architecture, Kansas State
University, 2001

Natural Resources and
Environmental Sciences
(NRES), Secondary Major,
Kansas State University,
2001

Professional
Registrations
Licensed Landscape
Architect, Kansas No. 704

Licensed Landscape
Architect, Texas, No. 2941

Green Building Initiative,
Green Globes Professional
(GGP) Certification

U.S. Green Building
Council, LEED AP, 2006

U.S. Green Building
Council, LEED AP BD÷C,
2009

Education
Graduate Certificate of
Business Administration,
Kansas State University,
2011

MESA



(

PROJECT

EXPERIENCE

(

3
(



PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Holland Lake Park
Weatherford, Texas

This 47-acre park is situated on a historic pecan orchard with gently sloping topography leading down to an
old spring-fed swimming hole. Tucked within the trees are three adult competition-level softball fields - the first
for the City, a concession building, meandering trails, and a playground. The plan preserves a portion of the
site for a future aquatics facility, capitalizing upon the historic community memories of the park. Lake access
was a challenge, but the trails balance accessible slopes with tree preservation. Holland Lake will serve as a
county trailhead, guiding visitors to historic cabins and all park amenities.

MESA



PROJECT EXPERIENCE (

Holland Lake Park
WeatherFord, Texas

(

41fl/

MESA



PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Windhaven Meadows Park Master Plan
Piano, Texas

The site for Windhaven Meadows Park (formerly White Rock Creek
Community Pork) is one of the few remaining parcels within the City of
Piano boundaries to remain partially undeveloped. MESA conducted an
inventory and analysis of the 124-acre site and its regional influences.
An inventory of park program offerings in neighboring cities, as well
as input from the City of Piano Parks Department and local stakeholders
helped guide the development of the park program, activities and
site Features. The final master plan addresses visitor experiences,
maintenance of the various site features and ecosystems, and conceptual
visual character of the improvements.

d Sea Pines I5riv

3

Boardwalk

MESA



PROJECT EXPERIENCE (
Windhaven Meadows Park Master Plan
Piano, Texas

Regionel Porke Progrontrting - Metric of Intornretion Gererel Peej.o) #11070 tvE SA
Ottore,e,,c,10. Peeefoe I I I I Merck 26, 2011

Active

________

0

________ _______

I

__

—

LI
h1::

OlgLokePgrk

_____________

— X — — — X It — 9 —

01cc RIdge Perk

_____________

— , — — — —

Bk,ebvtrnetlreil 9 5.37 — X — — — 0 9 — —

Bob Woodroff Perk 31 0 A 0 0 9 0 9 — X — — —

Bcck)rornPork A 0 0 9 9
CoddoPork 0 0 0 9 0 A A A
Cepetocro Pork 9 A A 0 A A 0 A
Corpenter Pork 107 9 It A A A A A
Cheye,ne Pork 20 3 0 0 0 9 9
Chioholr,r Pork 04 S.44 It 0 0 0 A 9 0 0
Cloorciew Perk 0 9 A A 9 A
Cooper Creek Poryground 4 9 0 0 9 0 0
Cottonwood Crook Groerbolt 107 1.5 It 0 A A

As part of the assessments leading to the Windhaven Meadows Park Master Plan, MESA
completed a park programming analysis of six jurisdictions, including Piano, McKinney, Allen,
and Richardson. The analysis identifies major parks within the mid-west region which shared
similar program elements identified by stakeholders to the program being developed for the master
planning effort. This matrix gave park locations, size, distance from the Piano park site, the various
program or venues accommodated and any additional notes relating to events or other important
notes regarding the site.

MESA



PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Oak Point Park Special Events Venue
Piano, Texas

LEGEND:

PRIMARY STAGE

SECONDARY STAGE

LOCAL BAND STAGE

TERTIARY STAGE

RAND VIP ZONE

PAN VIP ZONE

VIP ENTRANCE

FOOD & FESTIVAL MARKET

FIRST AID

BOX OFFICE 1

BOX OFFICE 2

BOX OFFICE 3

FESTIVAL TOWER

TRUCK STAGING

SERVICE ACCESS

SPONSOR TENTS

RESTROOMS

FUTURE PRIMARY STAGE

.1- 60,000)

FIRE STATION

I

4

The City of Piano was contacted by on international concert promoter about the possibility of hoSting a large outdoor music
festival at Oak Point Park and Nature Preserve. MESA collaborated with the City of Piano and the concert promoter to
generate a site layout that would showcase the natural features and unique possibilities of the outdoor venue. The concept
layout incorporates the festival attractions requested by the concert promoter, while incorporating unique landscape views and
protection of the park’s natural features.

MESA

-



MESA

PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Greenville Sports Complex
Greenville, Texas

This Master Plan outlines a player and fan friendly
vision for a new athletic complex in Greenville.
Fields and circulation are oriented to convey a
competitive atmosphere that is also a civic landmark
in the community. Important to the design concept
were arrival courts that welcome visitors and provide
safe pedestrian crossings. A number of supporting
elements also include maintenance, stormwater
detention, and playground elements.

(

(

(



PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Forrest Moore Park
Van Aistyne, Texas

Forrest Moore Pork serves dual uses as a public
park and as the High School athletic baseball
fields. This park was funded almost fuliy through
private donations and grant money. The bleachers
and concession building were made using local
stone. A restored turn of the century truss railroad
bridge was used as a pedestrian troilwciy. The
pedestrian trailway connects the park to the
surrounding community.

MESA



PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Walker’s Creek Park
North Richiand Hills, Texas

Award
1999 Merit Award
Texas Chapter ASIA
Design - Constructed
Projects - Public

(

MLSA

This tournament level facility in North Richiand Hills provides a
unique setting for teams and fans alike. The centrally located
grouping of concession, meeting, utility, and restroom facilities
sets the tone for this single-use facility by spelling out the word
“SOFTBALL” across the front of the buildings. The spirit of the
park is exactly that. The bleachers are carefully planned for the
comfort of fans and field visibility. A pavilion sits at the center of
the fourplex and serves as a landmark gathering space between
games. The park also provides connection to the regional trail
system. A future phase of the park will double the number of
playing Fields and complete this regional sports destination.

(



PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Bicentennial Park Tennis Complex
Southlake, Texas

Bicentennial Park is the premier
recreational sport facilities in the City
of Southlake. MESA prepared site
design and construction drawings for
the tennis complex which was one of
the first master plan elements to be
implemented. Practice and training
courts surround the ceremonial
“Center Court” which is flanked
by amphitheater style seating for
spectators enjoying tournament play.
A pro-shop and in-line hockey rink
were also constructed.

MESA



PROJECT EXPERIENCE (
DoubleTree Ranch Park Master Plan
Highland Village, Texas

H.

]: !L..1.

The Doubletree property is a classic example of the hybrid park concept. This 40 acre site
is home to ponds, wetlands, and rolling prairie. The park also claims shoreline on an inlet
of Lake Lewisville. MESA’s sensitivity assessment identified the southern most area of the
park as the most delicate habitat and the master plan builds upon that realization in the
form of environmental education trails, classroom shelters, and habitat restoration. Future
phases of park development may consider more active recreational facilities in the northern
zones. MESA is currently working on the master plan and prepared a Texas Parks and
Wildlife Grant application on behalf of the city for the Phase I conservation area.

MESA



PROiECT EXPERIENCE

Meadowmere Park Master Plan
Grapevine, Texas

LEGEND
•RVAREA

) DOG PARK

PARK ENTRY

• BOATHOUSE

• INTERPRE1TVE TRAILS

• JETTY POINT

• ENVIRONMENTAl. EDUCATION CENTER

® AMPHITHEATER

® PICNIC AREA

() SWTM BEACH

© MARSH PRESERVE

© TOWER

PUTT - PUTT

I
• ZIP LINE

• SESC GOLF

• ARCHERY RANGE

• DESTINATION PAWUON

•
• TENT CAMPING

•
• OFF ROAD BIKETRAIE.

• PRIMITIVE TENT CAMPING

• SWIMMING AREA

* BOAT RAMP

• SOCCER FIELDS

In order to facilitate park phasing and future construction, a long term vision is necessary to coordinate land use and
activities. This two hundred fifty acre park utilizes a strong sense of arrival and circulation to organize a variety of active and
passive recreation opportunities on the shores of Lake Grapevine. Recreation amenities will range from a swimming beach
to natural interpretive trails. Potential elements of the program include additional RV and camping areas, waterfront stage
and amphitheater, environmental education center, archery range, disc golf, and a jetty system with boardwalks and a lake
overlook.

MESA



PROJECT EXPERIENCE (
NRH2O Long Term Development Plan
North Richiand Hills, Texas

MESA and the Architect are collaborating with
the City of North Richland Hills to develop a
Long Term Development Plan for the NRH2O
Family Water Park. The plan will guide the
development of the remaining expansion area
and ultimately build out the water park. The
plan will not only address the potential for
the park’s future expansion and development,
but also take a comprehensive assessment
of the existing attractions, themes, signage,
parking and parking lot circulation. The
recommendations from the plan will also include
the pork’s ability to respond to the recreational
and economical needs of the service area and
its guests and to the increasingly competitive
water park industry.

Adventure Zone Diagram

Programming Plan (

MESA



n
0

C

0

-a C a CD CD a 0 a CD z CD U
I 0 -o a

rn (I
-) >



PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Tom Muehienbeck Center
Piano, Texas

This new recreation landmark in Piano capitalizes upon the endemic site conditions to set the tone for site design and
materials selections. Preserving the natural creek that bisects the property yielded a strong design determinant and thematic
element, welcoming visitors across three bridges from the parking area. The design team worked to integrate this new
facility into an existing park and ensure trail connections for all existing park programs with the community. Finishes and
materials at the pool area recall this stony creek and plant materials.

(

(

(

Awards
2007 Dream Designs Award
Aquatics International
Magazine

2008 Dream Designs Award
Aquatics International
Magazine

2008 Innovative Architecture
and Design Award
Recreation Management
Magazine

MESA



PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Tom Muehienbeck Center
Piano, Texas

MESA

tr :.



PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Central Park
Grand Prairie, Texas

(

Awards
2013 Committee’s Choice
Award
Texas Recreation and Park
Society North Region

2012 LEED Gold
Certification - The Summit
U.S. Green Building
Council

2012 LEED Silver
Certification - Public
Safety Building
U.S. Green Building
Council

2011 Planning Excellence
Texas Recreation and Park
Society C

Central Park in Grand Prairie is destined to become a new landmark destination in the community. This 1 80-acre site features
a 36-acre lake system that serves to solve severe flooding problems while also cleaning the stormwater runoff from surrounding
neighborhoods. A new Public Safety Facility and Adult Activity Center anchor the park as a part of daily life for city residents.
Restored prairie and wetlands offer numerous educational opportunities. A restaurant and other visitor amenities further create an
engaging atmosphere.

2011 Top lOAward
Topping Out

MESA



PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Central Park
Grand Prairie, Texas

L

MESA



PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Arbor Hills Nature Preserve
Piano, Texas

The City of Piano spared 200
acres of pristine roiling land
from development and presented
a hands-on environmental
education and discovery park
to its citizens and those in the
surrounding region. Arbor Hills
is a living example of what was
once native to Piano: blackland
prairie, upland forest, wetlands,
and a riparian corridor.

(

(

(

Award
1998 Honor Award
Texas Chapter ASIA
Design - Unrealized Prolects

MESA



PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Arbor Hills Nature Preserve
Piano, Texas

MESA



PROJECT EXPERIENCE (
Collin County Adventure Camp
Westminster, Texas

The YMCA Collin County Adventure Camp is forty-five miles
northeast of Dallas on over 400 acres of rolling prairie and
forest. MESA’s master plan includes over six miles of trails,
sports fields, a new lake, swim center, prairie restoration,
and wildlife interpretive destinations. A document of soils,
hydrology, vegetation, wildlife habitat, and topography
revealed development sensitivity zones on the property and
guided the prolect’s spatial arrangement.

(

Award
2004 Award of Excellence
Texas Chapter ASIA
Planning and Analysis

MESA



PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Collin County Adventure Camp
Westminster Texas

MESA



MESA

PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Allaso Ranch
Wood County, Texas

(

Opened in summer 2008, AIloso Ranch youth camp and retreat is located in the East Texas Piney Woods and owned and
operated by Fellowship Church. Integrating non-secular teachings with environmental awareness, the camp supports three
hundred fifty overnight visitors and offers week long summer youth camps for children age eight to eighteen and fall retreats for
all ages. MESA’s master plan and first phase development include a man made lake, sports facilities, cabins, dining hall, health
center, and arts and crafts buildings.

I’



PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Allaso Ranch - Sports
Wood County, Texas

MESA

ijIl

Basketball Court

Horseback Riding Trails



REFERENCES

(

(

(



REFERENCES

City of Piano
Windhaven Meadows Park
Oak Point Park and Nature Preserve
Arbor Hills Nature Preserve
Tom Muehlenbeck Center
Amy Fortenberry, Director
Parks and Recreation Department
(972) 941.7250
amyf@plano.gov

City of Weatherford
Holland Lake Park
Shannon Goodman, Director
Parks and Recreation Department
(817) 598-4248
sgoodman@weotherfordtx.gov

City of Grand Prairie
Central Pork
Rick Herold, Director
Parks and Recreation Department
(972) 237.8375
rherold@gptx.org

City of Grapevine
Meadowmere Park
Kevin Mitchell, Director
Parks and Recreation Department
(817) 410.3347
kmitchell@grapevinetexas.gov

MESA



(

PROJECT

APPROACH

(

(



PROJECT APPROACH

PROJECT APPROACH
We understand the scope of this project is to include preliminary schematic design and preparation of a strategic
phased design development recommendation for future design development services and project bidding. The
below scope of services is geared to address those tasks while adding features formulated to incorporate
sustainability, pre and post development budget reviews, and citizen involvement in an efficient model to create an
economic product. We see this as a flexible agenda that can be modified to respond to the City’s priorities.

PHASE 1: SITE ASSESSMENTS, INVENTORY & ANALYSIS
Task 1.1: Kick Off, Data Confirmation, & Assessments
MESA will meet with City staff to review all existing base data, goals previously developed and new initiatives
identified by the City for the project. A key component of this meeting will be the confirmation of schedules and
deliverables. We will also confirm the core client team, primary points of contact, stakeholder groups, and their
roles within the park planning and design process. Dates and formats for public workshops will be discussed. The
Kick-Off Meeting will be combined with the initial site visit associated with the assessments listed below.

These activities are intended to provide a basis of policy, physical, natural,
historical, and cultural information about the sites as a foundation of the
park planning and design process and include the Following:

• Base Maps, Code Review, and Previous Research
• Site Assessments - Habitat & Systems
• Use Assessments - Program Patterns & Activities
• Built Fabric Assessments - Existing Facilities and Infrastructure
• Sensitivity Composite Assessment
• Experiential Assessments - Patterns, Forms, & Features

Product: MESA will meet with City staff, visit the site, collect and synthesize base data into a composite existing
conditions assessment plan. MESA will provide the city with one (1) hard copy of each map as well as digital files.

Task. 1.2: Programming Workshop
MESA will host a “visioning” workshop with City staff and City Council to review the assessments, stakeholder
input, and discuss potential park programming. After this meeting, MESA will consolidate the thoughts into a
diagrammatic plan to be shared with the public in the following Task.

Product: MESA will host a programming workshop/presentation for City Council.

Task 1.3: Public Workshop - Assessments and Programming Input
MESA will conduct a workshop session with the community. The workshop will begin with a presentation of the
findings and assessments associated with the park, adjusted per the input received from the City. MESA will
facilitate a discussion, encouraging participants to provide additional commentary on the park’s program. The goal
of these discussions will be the generator of a list of program and facility goals, objectives, and initiatives for the
park.

Product: MESA will facilitate a public workshop and create a combined summary document of all public and City
staff comments/goals to be referenced in future park planning tasks. MESA will meet with the City to prioritize all
input received prior to moving forward with the following tasks.

MESA



PROJECT APPROACH

PHASE 2: MASTER PLAN
Task 2.1: Concept Master Plan
MESA will develop a descriptive level vision for the pork that is directly derived from the goals identified in the City
staff visioning and public workshops. This graphic is a preliminary concept that depicts the program for the park
and comprises a checklist of effects that the master plan must accomplish. It is the “structure” that the plan will be
built around and serves as an opportunity for confirmation before development of the final vision. MESA and the
design team will host a presentation to City staff and share the following aspects of the concept:

(

A. Programs will graphically depict zones for each activity
on site and serve to describe the relationships between
each.

B. Connectivity identifies the external and internal linkages
and circulation throughout the park and connections the
surrounding community.

C. Facilities & Amenities will describe the list of structures
and infrastructure that ore necessary to provide and
support the programs framework, also denoting circulation
patterns, arrival sequences, and other patterns.

D. The Natural Systems Framework will identify an
approach to habitat restoration, ecological strategies, and
other management agenda to increase the quality and
vitality of the park’s natural systems, directly addressing
issues identified in the assessments.

(

A preliminary cost projection will be prepared for consideration. MESA will meet with the City to share the concept
master plan, and adjustments will be made prior to the public presentation to be conducted in Task 2.2.

Product: MESA will prepare the concept master plan and supporting documents for internal City presentation and
public workshop.

Task 2.2: Public Workshop - Master Plan Confirmation
MESA will present the Concept Plan to the public to solicit commentary and approval of the structural vision for the
park. Th community will see their goals (from Workshop #1) identified on the diagrammatic plan. Following the
public meeting, the design team will meet with the City in order to refine priorities, if necessary, based on public
input.

Product: MESA will facilitate a public meeting and create a summary document of all public comments to be
incorporated into the schematic design.

Task 2.3: Final Master Plan and Recommendations for Future Phased Development
MESA will refine the Concept Master Plan into a vision for future park development. This will be a descriptive
level graphic plan, including sections and perspectives necessary to convey the design, which will graphically cdepict all park amenities at a real scale — depicting forms, material concepts, habitat enhancements, and detailed
connections. The plans will illustrate all programs and areas of park development comprised within one graphic:

MESA



PROJECT APPROACH

A. Adaptive Reuse Initiatives identify the structures, spaces,
pathways, and other features of the site that deserve and
need to be preserved, maintained, restored, renovated, and/
or reconstructed.

B. Natural Fabric Initiatives address projects associated
with the preservation, conservation, restoration, and
maintenance of natural systems that influence the park’s form.

C. Thematic Structure Initiatives represent projects that
address key thematic improvements such as entrance portals
and sequencing, gateways, nodes, edges, and the definition
of unique park districts.

D. Traffic and Circulation Initiatives identify those projects that establish an efficient and humble
relationship between the park and its varied circulation patterns — pedestrian, vehicular, and trails,
including community connections.

E. Program Plan & Amenity Enhancement Initiatives will organize the preservation, restoration,
integration, and removal of program opportunities with the park.

F. Implementation and Phasing Initiatives will identify the subsequent design stages for the project
and set a framework for implementation and funding mechanisms required to move forward at the
anticipated schedule.

While the Final Master Plan illustrates the above mentioned elements (and others) on the site, the design team
will also prepare elevation studies, sections, perspective sketches and more detailed floor plans and alignments
to illustrate the aesthetic character of the constructed vision. These schematic architectural studies of pavilions,
amenities, and other thematic elements begin to give a sense of vitality and life to the plan.

MESA will prepare a refined cost projection and break out the holistic vision into a series of attainable and
fundable phases for execution. The end result of this subtask will be the definition of a Phase I scope and
construction budget to further refine and bring forth to implementation.

Product: MESA will prepare a master plan graphic and report that depicts the information outlined above —

specific area enlargements, sections, elevations, and sketches may be prepared as necessary. The updated cost
projection will break out the discussed phases of project development, and identify the scope of the first phase of
construction. A summary of the master planning process, as well as project and site history, and recommendations
will be components of the Final Report.

MESA



(

(

MESA (
Corporate Office
1 807 Ross Avenue, Suite 333
Dallas, Texas 75201
+1 214 871 0568

www.mesadesigngroup.com



 

TO:  Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: City Manager Ben White 

DATE:  May 26, 2015 

SUBJECT:   Consider, discuss and act upon Margaret Vigil’s resignation from the 
Main Street Board 

 

 Ms. Vigil’s resignation is attached for review. 
 

ACTION:   Approve or deny the resignation as presented. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(III – E)  



May 15, 2015

To: Adah Leah Wolf

From: Margaret Vigil

Re: Main Street Board

Due to health concerns and schedule conflicts, I must resign from the Main Street Board.

Thank you for allowing me to be of service.

Sincerely,

çz2



 

TO:  Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: City Manager Ben White 

DATE:  May 26, 2015 

SUBJECT:    Reorganize Boards and Commissions to each Board and Commission  

 

 A spreadsheet reflecting the current and expiring/replacement board 
members is attached for review 

 

ACTION:   Make appointments per each board/commission respectively. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(III – F)  



FEDC

(Council Liaison: Joe 

Helmberger)

2 members must live in 

City/3 members can be non‐

residents

2 Terms ‐3yrs ea

FCDC

(Council Liaison: Jim Foy)

All members must live in FISD

2 Terms ‐ 2 yr ea

Building & Property 

Standards

(Council Liaison: John Politz)

All members must live in City

2 Terms ‐ 3 yr ea

Capital Improvement Advisory 

Commission / Planning & 

Zoning Commission

(Co Liaison: John Klostermann)

All members must live in City

2 Terms ‐ 3 yr ea

Library/Civic Center Board

(Council Liaison: Michael 

Hesse)

No residency requirements

2 Terms ‐ 3 yr ea

Main Street

All members must be City 

residents OR FISD OR have 

business in Main St District

1 Term ‐ 3 yr ea

Parks & Recreation Board

(Council Liaison: Chandler)

2 members must live in City/2 

members can live in FISD

2 Terms ‐ 3 yr ea

Senior Citizens Advisory 

Committee

(Co Liaison: John Klostermann)

3 members must live in City/2 

members must live in FISD

2 Terms ‐ 3 yr ea

TIRZ North Texas Municipal 

Water District

(Liaison:  Bill Harrison)

(Needs Replacement)

Texoma Housing 

Partners

(Liaison: Ben White)

Farmersville ISD

(Council Liaison: Jim Foy)

Bob Collins

2nd Term 5/13 – 5/16  

Leaca Caspari 

2nd Term 5/14 – 5/16   

(Needs Replacement)

Autumn Barton

1st Term 5/13 – 5/16  

Craig Overstreet 

2nd Term 5/14 – 5/17

Judy Brandon

2nd Term 5/14 – 5/17 

Anne Hall

1st Term 5/14 ‐ 5/17

Charles Casada

1st Term 5/14 – 5/17

Chad Dillard

1st Term 5/14 ‐ 5/17

Joe Helmberger

Chairman term ends 

annually

Robbie Tedford 

2nd Term 5/12 – 5/15

(Needs Replacement)

Dick Seward 

2nd Term 5/14 – 5/16

Chris Calverley

1st Term 5/15 – 5/18 

Charles Casada

1st Term 5/14 – 5/17

Leaca Caspari

1st Term 5/14 ‐ 5/17

(Needs Replacement)

Andy Washam 

1st Term 5/12 – 5/15

(Up for Renewal)

(Received Renewal App)

Autumn Barton

1st Term 5/13 – 5/16

Britt Leigh Pollard

1st Term 5/14 ‐ 5/17

Robbie Tedford

2nd Term 10/2013 ‐ 

12/2015

(Needs Replacement)
Kris Washam

1st Term 5/13 – 5/16

Paul D. Kelly 

2nd Term 5/14 – 5/16  

Autumn Barton

1st Term 5/13 – 5/16

Chad Dillard

1st Term 5/14 – 5/17

Sarah Odom

1st Term 5/12 – 5/15

(Up for Renewal)

(Received Renewal App)

Margaret Vigil

2nd Term 5/13 – 5/16 

(Resigned, Needs 

replacement)

Glen Bagwell

1st Term 5/12 – 5/15

(Up for Renewal)

(Received Renewal App)

Billy J Harrison

1st Term 5/13 – 5/16

Stefanie Hurst

2nd Term 10/2013 ‐ 

12/2015

(Needs Replacement)
Chris Lair

2nd Term 5/13 – 5/16

John Garcia 

1st Term 5/14 ‐ 5/16

Frank Delorantis

Completing Huddleston's term 

1st Term ends 5/16

Patti Ford 

2nd Term ends 5/15

(Needs Replacement)

Rafiqa Huddleston

1st Term 5/13 – 5/16

Sarah Jackson‐Butler

1st Term 9/13 –  5/16

Marianne Politz

2nd Term 5/12 – 5/15

(Needs Replacement)

Rafiqa Huddleston

1st Term 5/13 – 5/16

Chris Hill

2nd Term 10/2013 ‐ 

12/2015

(Needs Replacement by 

County Commissioners)
Kevin Meguire

1st Term 5/12 – 5/15

(Up for Renewal)

(Received Renewal 
Application)

David Ketcher

1st Term 5/13 – 5/15

(Needs Replacement)

Patti Ford

2nd Term 5/13 – 5/15  

(Needs Replacement)

Mark Vincent

1st Term 9/12 – 5/15

(Up for Renewal)

(Received Renewal App)

Sharon Spangler

1st Term 9/13 – 5/16

Matthew Busby

2nd Term 5/12 – 5/15

(Needs Replacement)

Todd Rolen

1st Term Began 5/13 – Term 

ends 5/16

(Received Renewal 
Application)

Tom Waitschies

2nd Term 5/14 – 5/17

(Needs Replacement)

Cheryl Williams

2nd Term 10/2013 ‐ 

12/2015

(Needs Replacement by 

County Commissioners)

LEGEND

Donna Williams

1st Term 5/13 – 5/15

(Up for Renewal)

(Received Renewal  App)

Anne Hall

1st Term 5/14 ‐ 5/17

Todd Rolen

1st Term 5/13 –  5/15

(Up for Renewal)

(Received Renewal App)

Mark Vincent

2nd Term 5/12 – 5/15

(Needs Replacement)

Up for Renewal with 

application

Barbara Stooksberry

1st Term 5/13 – 5/15

(Needs Replacement)

Bryce Thompson

1st Term 5/12 – 5/15

(Up for Renewal)

(Received Renewal app)

Needs Replacement

FEDC FCDC Building & Property 

Standards

Capital Improvement Advisory 

Commission / Planning & 

Zoning Commission

Library/Civic Center Board Main Street Parks & Recreation Board Senior Citizens Advisory 

Committee

TIRZ North Texas Municipal 

Water District

Texoma Housing 

Authority

Farmersville ISD

EXISTING BOARD MEMBERS



Christi Adams (lives outside City 

Limits & meets residency 

qualifications)

[1st Choice]

Christi Adams (lives outside 

City Limits & meets residency 

qual.) [2nd Choice]

Glenn Bagwill (meets all 

residency req) [4th Choice]

Glenn Bagwill (meets all residency 

requ)    [3rd Choice]

Glenn Bagwill (meets all 

residency requ.) [5th Choice]

Glenn Bagwill (meets all residency 

requ)    [2nd Choice]

Glenn Bagwill (meets all 

residency requ) [7th Choice]

Glenn Bagwill (meets all 

residency requ) [6th Choice]

Glenn Bagwill (meets all 

residency requ) [1st Choice]

Glenn Bagwill (meets all residency 

requ) [8th Choice]

Diane Jackson (meets all 

residency requ) [1st Choice]

Diane Jackson (meets all 

residency requ)[2nd Choice]

Sarah Jackson‐Butler (meets all 

residency requ) [1st Choice]

Cynthia Craddock‐Clark (meets all 

residency requ)[1st Choice]
LEGEND

Kim Smith‐Cole (lives outside 

City Limits & meets residency 

requ.)

[1st Choice]

Staff Recommendation 

Mike Goldstein (lives outside City 
Limits & meets residency requ.) 

[1st Choice]

Mike Goldstein  (lives outside City 

Limits & meets residency requ.) 

[2nd Choice]

Suzie Grusendorf (lives outside 

City Limits)        [1st Choice]

Suzie Grusendorf (lives outside 

City Limits)           [2nd Choice]

Suzie Grusendorf (lives outside 

City Limits)             [3rd Choice]

Glenda Hart (meets all 

residency requirements [2nd 

Choice]

Glenda Hart (meets all 

residency requirements [1st 

Choice]
Patricia Jablonski (meets all 

residency requ.)

[2nd Choice]

Patricia Jablonski (meets all 

residency requirements)

[1st Choice]
Jason Lane (meets all residency 

requirements [1st Choice]

Jason Lane (meets all residency 

requirements          [4th Choice]

Jason Lane (meets all residency 

requirements [3rd Choice]

Jason Lane (meets all residency 

requirements [2nd Choice]

Wayne May

(meets board requirements)

Craig Overstreet (meets all 

residency requ)[1st Choice]

Bettye Petree (lives outside City 

Limits & meets all residency requ.) 

[1st Choice]

Bettye Petree (lives outside City 

Limits & meets all residency 

requ) [2nd Choice]

Diane Piwko (meets all 

residency requirements) [1st 

Choice]

Diane Piwko (meets all residency 

requirements)      [2nd Choice]

  Diane Piwko (meets all 

residency requirements) [2nd 

Choice]
Kim Potter (meets all residency 

qualifications)                         [1st 

Choice]

Kim Potter (meets all residency 

qualif)             [2nd Choice]

Wyndi Veigel

(no residency requ)

[1st Choice]
Andy Washam

(meets all residency 

requirements) [2nd Choice]

Andy Washam

(meets all residency 

requirements) [1st Choice]
Donna Williams (lives outside City 

Limits & meets all residency 

qualifications)

[1st Choice]

Donna Williams (lives outside 

City Limits & meets all 

residency qual)

[1st Choice]

Kathy Wingo (lives outside City 

Limits & meets all residency 

qualifications)

[3rd Choice]

Kathy Wingo (lives outside City 

Limits & meets all residency qual

[2nd Choice]

Kathy Wingo (lives outside City 

Limits & meets all residency 

qual)[4th Choice]

Kathy Wingo (lives outside City 

Limits & meets all residency 

qualifications)

[1st Choice]

POTENTIAL BOARD MEMBERS



 

TO:  Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: City Manager Ben White 

DATE:  May 26, 2015 

SUBJECT:    Update on Chaparral Trail project  

 

 An update is attached for review 
 

ACTION:   Receive information. 

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(III – G)  



Chaparral Trail Project Update 
 
 

Description 
Total Project 

Estimate 
City's Share 

Estimated 
Construction 
Begin Date 

Estimated 
Construction 

Completion Date 
Comments and Status 

Chaparral Trail 
Grant 
Collin County 
Open Space 
(Phase III) 

$300,000 $150,000 
(4B, $60K 2013) 
(4B, $60K 2014) 

(CoF, $30K 2014) 
 

Feb-15 Jun-15 Activity in work: bollards, bridge at 
mile ~4.5, road crossings, 
benches, trash cans, storm water 
ditches, decomposed granite. 

Complete activity: Onion Shed 
parking lot. 

 



 

TO:  Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: City Manager Ben White 

DATE:  May 26, 2015 

SUBJECT:    Update on street, water and wastewater General Obligation Bond projects 
 

 An update is attached for review 
 

ACTION:   Receive information. 

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(III – H)  



Street GO Bond Project Status 
 
 

 

Project 

Number
Project Name

Current 

Budget

Actual 

Bond CTD
Status

Estimated 

Construction 

Start Date

Estimated 

Construction 

End Date

1 Sycamore Street Panel Replacement 

(Hwy 78 to Jackson)

156,119  156,119  Complete Apr‐13 Aug‐14

2 Orange Street Overlay (380 to Old 

Josephine, Partially County Funded)

59,589  59,589  Complete Oct‐14 Nov‐14

3 CR557 Overlay (US 380 to SH 78), Majority 

County Funded

265  265  Complete Oct‐12 Jul‐13

4 Westgate Overlay (Hwy 78 to Wilcoxson) 203,627  203,627  Complete Dec‐13 May‐14

5 Hamilton Overlay (McKinney to Yucca) Complete May‐14 Sep‐14

6 Hamilton Street Overlay (Yucca to Gaddy) Complete May‐14 Sep‐14

7 Central Overlay (College to Prospect) 103,607  103,607  Complete Apr‐14 May‐14

8 Beech  Street Overlay (Main to Beene) 247,718  247,718  Complete Aug‐14 Oct‐14

9 Windom Overlay (Maple to McKinney) 48,053  48,053  Complete Nov‐14 Nov‐14

10 South Washington Overlay (Farmersville 

Parkway to Sid Nelson)

145,410  0  Construction Mar‐15 Jun‐15

11 Sid Nelson Overlay (South Washington to 

Hamilton)

240,963  688  Contract Apr‐15 Jul‐15

12 Hamilton Street (380 to Farmersville 

Parkway)

1,384,000  0  Engineering Jun‐15 Oct‐15

13 Santa Fe Reconstruct (Johnson to Main) 92,001  274  Construction Mar‐15 Jun‐15

14 Locust Street Overlay 297,120  274  Contract Jun‐15 Jul‐15

15 Street Signs and Installation 95,000  2,048  Ready for 

Construction

Dec‐15 Aug‐15

3,415,715  1,164,506  2,251,209 

3,575,000 

Street Projects

Street Projects Total

Street Projects GO Bond Allocation

342,243  342,243 



Water/Wastewater GO Bond Project Status 
 
 

 

Project 

Number
Project Name

Current 

Budget

Actual 

Bond CTD
Status

Estimated 

Construction 

Start Date

Estimated 

Construction 

End Date

16 North ET/North Main Street Complete Apr‐14 Feb‐15

17 Sycamore St/Hwy 78/N Washington Complete Apr‐14 Oct‐14

18 Hamilton St 24,737  24,737  Complete Jun‐14 Jul‐14

19 Rike/Houston/Austin Street 180,000  8,300  Engineering May‐15 Aug‐15

20 Automated Meter Reading System 520,000  391,417  Construction Mar‐13 May‐15

21 Bob Tedford Drive 100,000  85,741  Complete Nov‐14 Mar‐15

22 S Washington/Sante Fe 150,000  2,799  Contract Apr‐15 May‐15

23 CR 608/CR 609 0  N/A

24 S Main & Abbey – Gravity Main 18,750  Engineering Jul‐15 Nov‐15

25 Hwy 78 & Maple St – Gravity Main 18,750  Engineering Jul‐15 Nov‐15

26 Hwy 78 & CR 611 – Gravity Main 18,750  Engineering Jul‐05 Nov‐15

27 Floyd St – Lift Station 75,000  Not Started Jun‐15 Dec‐15

28 Sycamore – Gravity Main 16,497  16,497  Complete May‐13 Jul‐13

29 Hamilton St ‐ Gravity Main 16,608  16,608  Complete Jun‐14 Jul‐14

30 Hwy 380 & Welch Dr – Gravity Main 0  Not Started Jun‐15 Dec‐15

31 Hwy 380 (AFI to Floyd St) – Lift Station & 

Force Main

550,000  Not Started Jun‐15 Dec‐15

32 Locust – Gravity Main 50,000  Not Started Jun‐15 Dec‐15

2,397,892  1,152,475  1,245,417 

2,400,000 

Water Projects

Wastewater Projects

Water and Wastewater Projects Total

Water and Wastewater Projects GO Bond 

606,378 658,800 



 

TO:  Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: City Manager Ben White 

DATE:  May 26, 2015 

SUBJECT:    Update on Highway 380 project 
 

 An update is attached for review 
 

ACTION:   Receive information. 

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(III – I)  



US 380 Highway Project Status 
 

 

1. 1st Railroad Bridge, Passing Track: Complete. 

2. 2nd Railroad Bridge, Main Track: Dec 2014 thru Jun 2015 

3. 380 Roadway, East Bound: Complete.  Open to two-way traffic. 

a. East Bound Off-Ramp (Southwest Ramp), June 2015 

b. East Bound On-Ramp (Southeast Ramp), Complete.  Two-way ramp. 

4. 380 Roadway, West Bound:  June 2015 

a. West Bound Off-Ramp (Northeast Ramp), Complete, opens with westbound 

traffic 

b. West Bound On-Ramp (Northwest Ramp), June 2015 

c. Street interconnection, Floyd: Complete 

d. Street interconnection, Mimosa:  Complete 

e. Street interconnection, Beene:  Complete 

f. Street interconnection, Rike:  Complete 

g. Street interconnection, Hamilton:  Complete 

h. Street interconnection, Raymond:  Complete 

i. Street interconnection, Orange:  June 2015, opens with west bound lanes 

5. Main Street Bridge Construction: Complete 

a. Main Street Roadway: Complete 

6. Hill Street Crossing:  Complete, sidewalk concrete complete, awaiting clean-up. 

7. Walnut Street Crossing:  Jul 2015 

8. Main/Summit Street Crossing 

a. Passing track: Complete 

b. Main track:  Jul 2015 



 

 

TO:  Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: City Manager Ben White 

DATE:  May 26, 2015 

SUBJECT:    Update on wastewater treatment facility 
 

 An update is attached for review 
 

ACTION:   Receive information. 

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(III – J)  



Wastewater Treatment Plant Project Status 
 
 
1. Received responses from Request for Qualifications for wastewater treatment plant and 

interceptor line engineer. 
2. Selection team evaluated responses and has recommended top two candidates. 
3. 4A was informed of the selection team’s recommendation and has forwarded the 4A 

recommendation via the City Manager.  City Manager to cover the selection 
recommendation at City Council on 24 March 2015. 

4. Kimley-Horn selected as engineering design firm by City Council.  Contract in work. 
5. 4A has budgeted $150K this fiscal year to support the design effort. 



 

TO:  Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: City Manager Ben White 

DATE:  May 26, 2015 

SUBJECT:    Update on Collin County dispatch services 
 

 Police Chief Mike Sullivan will address this topic 
 

ACTION:   Receive information. 

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(III – K)  



 

TO:  Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: City Manager Ben White 

DATE:  May 26, 2015 

SUBJECT:   Receive, discuss and act upon information regarding platting, permitting 
and application of the International Codes in the City’s extraterritorial 
jurisdiction, and the “City-County Plat Approval Agreement (Exclusive 
City Control)” (“1445 Agreement”) prepared by Collin County and 
entered into by and between Collin County and the City 

 

 City Attorney Alan Lathrom will address this topic 
 

ACTION:   Receive information. 

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(III – L)  


	Agenda
	Yards of Yard Sales Event
	FBC Farmersville 150th Anniversary Proclamation
	II - A 1st reading - prohibited parking on Sycamore St
	II - B Rate Review Mechanism Settlement with Atmos
	III - A City Financial Reports
	III - B Renaming Account for TIRZ
	III - C Market Adjustment for CWD
	III - D Consider offer for planner - JW Spain
	III - E Main Street Board resignation
	III - F Board/Commission appointments
	III - G Update on Chaparral Trail project
	III - H Update on Bond projects
	III - I Update on Highway 380 project
	III - J Update on WWTP
	III - K Update on Dispatch services
	III - L ETJ discussion



